
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Residents' and 
Environmental 
Services Policy 
Overview 
Committee 

 

   
Date: TUESDAY, 27 JULY 2010 

 
Time: 6.00 PM 

 
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Councillors on the Committee 
 
Michael Markham (Chairman) 
Shirley Harper-O'Neill (Vice-Chairman) 
Janet Duncan (Labour Lead)  
Judy Kelly 
June Nelson 
Susan O'Brien 
 

  
Published: Monday, 19 July 2010 

 
 
This agenda and associated reports can 
be made available in other languages, in 
Braille, large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

 Contact:  Natasha Dogra 
Tel: 01895 277 488 
Fax: 01895 277 373 
Email: ndogra@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://lbh-modgov:9071/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=114&Year=2009 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

Residents’ & Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
To perform the policy overview role outlined below: 
 

1. conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service which have either been 
referred by Cabinet, relate to the Cabinet Forward Plan, or have been chosen by 
the Committee according to the agreed criteria for selecting such reviews; 

 
2. monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit (including the 

management of finances and risk); 
 

3. comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for the Council 
services within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and Council; 

 
4. consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on 

Key Decisions which relate to services within their remit (before they are taken by 
the Cabinet); 

 
In relation to the following services: 

 
1. culture, arts and sport including the provision and/or management of museums, art 

galleries, theatres, archives and local history activities, libraries, leisure centres, 
swimming pools and other like facilities; 

2. lifelong learning; 
3. community safety;  
4. the provision, planning and management of parks and open spaces, allotments, 

cemeteries, pitches and other like facilities; 
5. transport, highways and parking; 
6. waste management and recycling; 
7. conservation and biodiversity;  
8. safety education; 
9. licensing and registration; 
10. trading standards; 
11. consumer protection; 
12. environmental health functions 
13. planning and building control 
14. the Council’s planning policies (including the Unitary Development Plan and other 

plans for the use and development of land), Local Agenda 21 Strategy and Local 
Transport (Implementation Plan). 

 

Policy Overview Committees will not investigate individual complaints. 
 



 
 
 
 

 

Agenda 
 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Declaration of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 To confirm that all items marked Part 1 will be considered in Public 
and that any items marked Part 2 will be considered in Private 

 
 

4 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2010 1 - 4 
 

5 Consultation on Policy Framework Document: LDF Core Strategy 5 - 180 
 

6 Performance and Budget Report 181 - 196 
 

7 Review Discussion: consideration of scoping reports 197 - 208 
 

8 Forward Plan 209 - 216 
 

9 Work Programme 2010 217 - 220 
 

 



Minutes 
 
RESIDENTS' AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
 
8 June 2010 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 
 Committee Members Present: 

Councillors Mike Markham (Chairman), Shirley Harper-O’Neill (Vice-Chairman), Janet 
Duncan (Labour Lead), Judy Kelly, June Nelson and Susan O-Brien.  
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Natasha Dogra, Democratic Services 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

Action by 

 None. 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

Action by 

 None. 
 

 

3. TO CONFIRM THAT ALL ITEMS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT ANY ITEMS MARKED PART 2 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

Action by 

 It was confirmed that all items would be considered as Part 1 and in 
public.  
 

 

4. TO AGREE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 MARCH 
2010  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

Action by 

 The minutes were agreed by the Committee.  
 

 

5. TO DISCUSS POTENTIAL POC REVIEW TOPICS FOR 2010/11  
(Agenda Item 5) 
 

Action by 

 The Committee discussed potential review to undertake during 
2010/11. Members said it would be timely to discuss the problems of 
the drug Khat, with the recent closure of “Khat Houses” in areas in the 
South of the borough. Khat was becoming a major problem with some 
communities and Members were aware of some women’s associations 
located within the borough who were facing difficulties at home due to 
problems related to Khat usage. Officers informed the Committee that 
Khat problems had recently been highlighted in the media and a review 
into the drug could lead to some very useful recommendations to help 
deal with the problem of the drug. Members narrowed down the scope 
of the review to the following main points: 
• Production – where the drug was grown, who grew it and how much 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 4

Page 1



  
it cost to produce it. 

• Importation – controls at Heathrow Airport  
• Distribution – where was the drug sold and how much was it 
• Usage – profile of the average user, social effects, health side 

effects and effects in relation to crime  
• Future – would it be possible to grow the drug in the UK and could 

this lead to expansion of use not only within communities renowned 
for consuming this drug now but more wide-spread usage.  

• How could the London Borough of Hillingdon help tackle the 
problem of Khat in the future? 

 
Members discussed further topics for review. The Committee said a 
review of car parking might lead to some useful recommendation. 
Members said the review would need to be focused on a specific area 
of car parking, such as commuter parking. Officers were asked to 
provide a scoping report to the Committee at the subsequent meeting. 
 
 
Members discussed other areas of interest to the Residents’ and 
Environmental Service Policy Overview Committee. Emerging themes 
were the provision of toilets available to the public and the availability 
of Community Centre meeting rooms available to use by small 
community organisations. In regards to the provision of public facilities, 
the Committee discussed the availability of toilets in town centres and 
high streets. Members considered the following areas: 
• What facilities are available to the public at the moment 
• Are Hillingdon residents able to use toilets in cafes, bars and clubs 

for free? 
• Are current provisions used by the public? 
Members agreed that an update report on the current provision may 
suffice.  

 
Members said that there were a large number of small public groups 
who met on a regular basis but had difficulties finding places to meet. 
Members considered the following themes: 
• How many rooms were available for the public to use in community 

centres within the borough? 
• Were these rooms fitted with toilets, kitchens and further amenities 

which may be needed? 
• Could the planning policy be reviewed to include a term in each 

contract when building blocks of flats or community flats that a room 
must be built within the building for community use? 

• Are some community centre meeting rooms only open to people of 
certain faith groups? If so, what can the Committee do to 
discourage this? 

Members agreed that an update report on community centres may 
suffice. 
 
 
AGREED: 
The Committee agreed to consider two scoping reports at their 
meeting on 27 July 2010 and to decide on review topics at their 
subsequent meeting. Members decided to receive scoping reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Natasha 
Dogra, DSO 

Page 2



  
on Khat and car parking at the next meeting. Update reports on 
community centres and the provision of public toilets may be 
considered by Committee later in the year depending on the 
workload of the Committee.  
 
 

6. FORWARD PLAN 2010  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

Action by 

 The Committee noted and Forward Plan. 
 

 

7. WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

Action by 

 The Committee noted the Work Programme with an addition to the 27 
July 2010 meeting as follows: 
Cllr Shirley Harper-O’Neill would provide a verbal update to the 
Committee on updated police tactics when dealing with terrorism and 
drug use. 
 

 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.00 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Natasha Dogra on 01895 277 488.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



RESPOC – PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 

 

Local Development Framework Core Strategy Document  
 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: Natasha Dogra 

Telephone: 01895 277488 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The draft Local Development Framework Core Strategy Document is out for public 
consultation. This policy framework document it requires some Member-level as 
well as public consultation before it goes back to Cabinet and Council for approval 
later in the year 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
To provide Officers with comments on the attached Local Development Framework 
Core Strategy Document. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Committee is responsible for monitoring the performance of the Council 

services within their remit (including the management of finances and risk.  
 

2. The Committee can comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans 
for the Council services within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and 
Council 
 

 
SUGGESTED ACTIVITY  
 
1. That the Committee note the attached document and provide Officers with any 

comments. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



www.hillingdon.gov.uk

A VISION FOR 2026
Local Development Framework

Core Strategy
consultation draft June 2010

Page 7



What will our borough look like?  

Have your say!

We want to hear your views on 
the Consultation Draft Core Strategy.

The consultation is from 16 June to 30 July 2010.  

This is your chance to influence the long term vision and objectives for Hillingdon in terms of 
what development will take place, where and how it will be achieved.

Copies of the document can be seen on www.hillingdon.gov.uk under ‘have your say’ and at 

public libraries

the Hayes One Stop Shop and 

Planning Information Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge

Please let us have your comments by 30 July 2010.  You may:

submit an online response on www.hillingdon.gov.uk under ‘have your say’

email to ldfconsultation@hillingdon.gov.uk

write to us at LDF Team 3N/02, Planning, Environment and Community Services, Civic 
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

complete a response form – please request a from by contacting us on 01895 250230

fax on 01895 277042, marked for the attention of the LDF Team

Please note that all comments received will be available for public inspection.

Page 8



1 Introduction 4

2 A Summary of The Vision 7

3 A Portrait of Hillingdon - where we are now 8
Hillingdon's Characteristics 8
Main Challenges 13
Major Infrastructure Projects 16

4 The Vision - where we want to be 18
Strategic Objectives to deliver The Vision 20
The Spatial Strategy 22
The Key Diagram 25
Core Policies 27

5 Core Policies - The Economy 28
Supply of Employment Land 28
Location of Employment Growth 32
Strategy for the Heathrow Opportunity Area 36
Uxbridge 42
Town and Neighbourhood Centres 46
Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SME) 50
Raising Skills 51

6 Core Policies - New Homes 53
Housing Growth 55
Affordable Housing 60
Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision 62

7 Core Policies - Historic and Built Environment 65
Heritage 65
Built Environment 68

8 Core Policies - Environmental Management 75
Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation 75
Open Spaces, Rivers and Canal Corridors 80
Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains 81
River and Canal Corridors 85
Open Spaces, Sport and Leisure 89
Flood Risk Management 98

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

C
ontents

Page 9



Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 102
Water, Air and Noise Management 106
Minerals and Waste 113

9 Core Policies - Transport and Infrastructure 120
Accessible Local Destinations 121
Public Transport Network 125
Heathrow Airport 129
Community Infrastructure 131
Appendices

Appendix 1 Evidence Base 139

Appendix 2 Infrastructure Schedule 146

Appendix 3 London Borough of Hillingdon Housing Trajectory 155

Appendix 4 Glossary 159
Policies
Policy E1: Managing the Supply of Employment Land 31
Policy E2: Location of Employment Growth 35
Policy E3: Strategy for Heathrow Opportunity Area 41
Policy E4: Uxbridge 45
Policy E5: Town and Local Centres 49
Policy E6: Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SME) 50
Policy E7: Raising Skills 52
Policy H1: Housing Growth 55
Policy H2: Affordable Housing 61
Policy H3: Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision 63
Policy HE1: Heritage 67
Policy BE1: Built Environment 73
Policy EM1: Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation 78
Policy EM2: Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains 84
Policy EM3: River and Canal Corridors 88
Policy EM4: Open Space and Informal Recreation 93
Policy EM5: Sport and Leisure 97
Policy EM6: Flood Risk Management 101
Policy EM7: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 105
Policy EM8: Water, Air and Noise 111
Policy EM9: Safeguarding Mineral Resources 115
Policy EM10: Mineral Extraction 116

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

C
on
te
nt
s

Page 10



Policy EM11: Sustainable Waste Management 118
Policy T1: Accessible Local Destinations 124
Policy T2: Public Transport Interchanges 127
Policy T3: North-South Sustainable Transport Links 128
Policy T4: Heathrow Airport 130
Policy CI1: Community Infrastructure Provision 132
Policy CI2: Leisure and Recreation 135
Policy CI3: Culture 137
Maps
Map 4.1 Key diagram 26
Map 5.1 Locations for Employment Growth 30
Map 5.2 Strategic Site (indicative): Boundary Changes to Uxbridge Town Centre 45
Map 5.3 Town Centre Improvements 47
Map 6.1 Distribution of units from large SHLAA sites (2011-2021) 58
Map 7.1 Hillingdon's Heritage 66
Map 8.1 Open Spaces 83
Map 8.2 River and Canal Corridors 87
Map 8.3 Flood Risk Assessment 99
Map 8.4 Sites of Importance for Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 104
Map 8.5 Water, Air and Noise 108
Map 8.6 Mineral Areas for Safeguarding 114
Map 9.1 Transport infrastructure 123
Tables
Table 3.1 Main Planning Challenges for Hillingdon 13
Table 4.1 Summary of Growth in Hillingdon 2011-2026 22
Table 5.1 GLA Projected Office Based Employment Growth 33
Table 5.2 Projected Hotel Growth 35
Table 5.3 Heathrow Opportunity Area - Future of Key Sub-Areas 37
Table 5.4 Future of Uxbridge Town Centre 43
Table 5.5 Net Additional Comparison Goods Floorspace Requirement (sq.m) 48
Table 6.1 : Existing Housing 53
Table 6.2 : Hillingdon's Five Year Land Supply for Housing 56
Table 6.3 : Proposed Annual Target for the Provision of Housing 56
Table 6.4 : Proposed units to be delivered from large and small SHLAA sites 57
Table 6.5 : Proposed delivery of units from large SHLAA sites, by area 57
Table 6.6 London Plan Tenure Split 60
Table 8.1 : Parks for Green Flag Status in 2010 93
Glossary 159

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

C
ontents

Page 11



1 Introduction

The Local Development Framework

1.1 The Core Strategy is the key strategic planning document for Hillingdon and will support
the delivery of the spatial elements of the Sustainable Community Strategy. It sets out the
long-term vision and objectives for the Borough, what is going to happen, where, and how it
will be achieved. While the Core Strategy includes broad policies for steering and shaping
development, it does not set out guidelines for decisions about planning applications (this
will be done through the Development Management document) and nor does it allocate
specific sites (this will be done through the Site Allocations document and Proposals Map).

1.2 The Core Strategy is consistent with the Sustainable Community Strategy, which
focuses on three key components that together make up Hillingdon now and in the future,
people, place and prosperity. Emerging from these three components are the six priority
themes of the Community Strategy, i.e. improving health and wellbeing; strong and active
communities; protecting and enhancing the environment; making Hillingdon safer; a thriving
economy; and improving aspiration through education and learning.

1.3 These themes are taken forward in the Core Strategy, which has an ambition for
Hillingdon to be an attractive and sustainable borough. This Strategy encourages sustainable
use of land, resources and the natural environment, methods of travel and the design of
development that helps to create sustainable communities, and minimises harmful impacts
on climate, biodiversity, landscape and neighbourhoods.

1.4 The Core Strategy is one of the documents that makes up Hillingdon's Local
Development Framework (LDF). Together with the London Plan, the LDF comprises the
borough wide development plan and sets out the growth that is expected to take place in the
borough up to 2026. It covers issues such as the number of new homes to be built and
changes in employment land.

1.5 The LDF is made up of the following documents:

Hillingdon's Core Strategy: A Vision for 2026
Development Management Policies: Policies that will be used to determine planning
applications
Site Allocations: Specific site proposals for land uses such as housing and employment
Proposals map: Where site proposals are located
Heathrow Area DPD: A strategy for growth in the Heathrow Opportunity Area

1.6 A considerable amount of work has been undertaken to ensure that the Core Strategy
reflects local issues and is based on sound evidence. It has been developed through
discussion with Hillingdon Partners to ensure a close fit with the Sustainable Community
Strategy. This version of the Core Strategy has evolved following consultation on the following
documents:

Issues and Options (Spring 2005): This document set out the key social, environmental
and economic issues facing Hillingdon with a number of strategic alternatives.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 20104

1
In
tr
od
uc
tio
n

Page 12



Preferred Options (Autumn 2005): This built on the Issues and Options document and
identified a preferred option.
Revised Preferred Options (Spring 2007): Refined the process further and identified
a series of challenges for Hillingdon with alternative options.

1.7 The comments received from these consultations have helped to shape the content
of this Core Strategy. Other factors which have influenced the document include additional
evidence base reports, changes in national and regional policies, and best practice guidance
from government agencies. The format is necessarily different from previous versions as
the Core Strategy is being prepared separately from the Site Allocations and Development
Management Development Plan Documents.

How to get involved - making representations

1.8 You are invited to comment on this Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010
(Regulation 25 stage) and accompanying Sustainability Appraisal. The 6 week public
consultation begins on 16th June 2010 and ends on 30th July 2010.

1.9 All documents are available to view on the Council’s website at www.hillingdon.gov.uk
under 'Have your say' and at public libraries throughout the borough, Hayes One Stop Shop,
49-51 Station Road, Hayes (Monday 8.30am - 4.30pm, Tuesday 9.30am - 4.30pm,
Wednesday-Friday 8.30am - 4.30pm) and at Planning Information Services, Level 3, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday and Friday 9.00am - 5.00pm, Thursday
9am - 7.30pm).

1.10 All information will be available on request in Braille, large copy print, audio cassette
or in a number of different languages other than English.

1.11 Representations can be made in the following ways:

Submit an on-line response on the Council's website under 'Have your say'
By email - ldfconsultation@hillingdon.gov.uk
By writing to us at LDF Team 3N/02, Planning, Environment and Community Services,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.
By completing a consultation response form. You can request a form by contacting
us on 01895 250230. All forms should be returned to LDF Team at the above address.
By fax on 01895 277042, marked for the attention of the LDF Team.

1.12 Please note that copies of representations will be made available on request for
inspection at the Council offices. They cannot therefore be treated as confidential. All
responses must be received by 5pm on Friday 30th July 2010. Comments received after
the end of the consultation period do not have the right to be considered.

Next Steps

1.13 Following the consultation period, the Council will carefully consider all representations
received and where appropriate, seek to resolve objections. This document will then be
amended and formally submitted to the Secretary of State.

1.14 The submitted document will be made available for another statutory six week period
during which formal representations can be made.

London Borough of Hillingdon

5Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

1
Introduction

Page 13



1.15 All representations received to the submission version will be considered at an
Examination to be conducted by an independent Planning Inspector. He / she will test the
‘soundness’ of the plan. The Inspector’s report will be binding on the Council. The Core
Strategy is scheduled for adoption in December 2011.

Structure of this document

1.16 This document is structured in two parts:

Chapters 2-4: Looks at how the Vision has been developed, what it means for Hillingdon
and how it will be achieved
Chapters 5-9: Contain the policies that will deliver the Vision through to 2026

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 20106

1
In
tr
od
uc
tio
n

Page 14



2 A Summary of The Vision

2.1 The Core Strategy starts from an overall vision of what the Strategy is trying to achieve.
The vision forms the basis of a series of strategic objectives which are the stepping stones
to deliver the vision. These strategic objectives provide the overarching framework for the
more detailed core polices that set out how the vision will be delivered.

2.2 Taking account of the priorities in the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Core
Strategy has a seven point vision, which sets out how the borough will look in 2026.

The Vision for Hillingdon 2026

Hillingdon continues to prosper, through the implementation of the following seven
point vision:

Hillingdon is taking full advantage of its distinctive strengths with regard to its places
and communities

The social and economic inequality gaps in Hillingdon are being closed

Improved environment and infrastructure is supporting healthier living and helping
the borough to mitigate and adapt to climate change

Economic growth has been concentrated in Uxbridge, Heathrow and the Hayes/West
Drayton Corridor, without ignoring local centres

Improved accessibility to local jobs, housing and facilities is improving the quality
of life of residents

Hillingdon has a reliable network of north/south public transport routes and improved
public transport interchanges

Hillingdon has continued to prosper from the presence of Heathrow

London Borough of Hillingdon

7Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

2
A
S
um

m
ary

ofT
he

V
ision

Page 15



3 A Portrait of Hillingdon - where we are now

Hillingdon's Characteristics

Hillingdon's Characteristics

3.1 Hillingdon has approximately 250,000 residents and covers an area of 44 square miles.
The borough has a strong economy and excellent transport links to/from London, the west
of England and the world. As one of the greenest boroughs in London, Hillingdon is in general
a healthy place to live and crime rates are falling.

3.2 Notwithstanding the above, Hillingdon is a borough of contrasts. The area to the north
of the A40 is semi-rural, with Ruislip as its main district centre. The south of the borough is
more densely populated, urban in character and contains the metropolitan centre of Uxbridge
and the district centres of Hayes and West Drayton. Most of the area south of the A40 finds
itself in the top 40% nationally in terms of deprivation. Parts of West Drayton, Yeading, and
Townfield fall into the 20% most deprived category.

3.3 These issues set the scene for the Core Strategy. The starting point for developing a
forward looking vision for Hillingdon is to understand where we are now and how the borough's
positive attributes can be used to address the key challenges that are expected to arise
through to 2026. Key facts that have contributed to the vision are as follows:

Hillingdon's Key Facts

Population

Hillingdon is home to approximately 250,000 residents and the population is expected
to increase by approximately 5% over the period of the Core Strategy
Under 16 year olds currently represent approximately 20% of Hillingdon's population.
This figure is expected to remain relatively unchanged up to 2026
As a result of a recent increase in birth rates, the population of 0-2 year olds is now
significantly higher than in recent years
Those aged 65 and over currently represent 15% of the borough-wide population,
increasing to 16.5% in 2026. Statistics indicate that the current and predicted
proportion of residents of this age is lower than the wider UK demographic
At a borough-wide level, the proportion of residents from non-white British ethnic
groups is below the average for outer London, however the proportion of ethnic
groups living in Hayes is well above this average
Hillingdon is the 11th most deprived borough in outer London. Most of the areas
south of the A40 fall into the top 40% of most deprived areas in England
The average household income is £34,000 per annum. This is nearly £4,000 higher
than the national average and just under £3,000 less than the Greater London
average
The borough has a crime rate better than the average for London, but with
considerable variations between wards. There has been a gradual fall in the annual
crime count from 28,144 in 2006/7, 26,390 in 2007/8 to 25,419 (as of November
2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 20108

3
A
P
or
tr
ai
to
fH

ill
in
gd
on

-
w
he
re

w
e
ar
e
no
w

Page 16



Economy

Heathrow is a major contributor to the UK economy at all levels; it directly employs
over 76,500(1) people with around 170,000 indirect jobs generated by the airport
Around 9,000 of Hillingdon's residents work at Heathrow Airport (which is 1 in 15)
Each year Heathrow accommodates 480,000 flights and approximately 67m
passengers
Uxbridge is themain urban centre and there are a further 15 town and neighbourhood
centres (2)and 46 local parades
Hillingdon is home to around 8,400 registered businesses providing 188,600 jobs
Hillingdon's resident working age population has below average qualifications of
NVQ1-4 or above
25.3% of unemployed are 16-24 year olds compared to 14.3% nationally
26.9% of working age residents are in ‘skills poverty’ (below NVQ Level 2), yet the
number of adult learners is the lowest in West London
There is significant commuting out of the borough to central London and the Thames
Valley, and significant in-commuting (for example nearly 88% of the workforce at
Heathrow Airport live outside the borough and around 68% travel to work by car)
Hillingdon's manufacturing sector is declining but office-based industries are growing
Only 37% of local jobs are taken by Hillingdon residents

Housing

Hillingdon currently has 106,606 households
By 2028 there will be 114,000 households living in the borough
Approximately 33% of households in the borough are unable to afford market housing
The London Plan (2008) sets an annual monitoring target to provide 365 new homes
per annum
The Replacement London Plan (2009) indicates that Hillingdon will need to provide
620 new homes per annum
In accordance with the London Plan (2008), the Council seeks to provide 50% of
all new housing provision as affordable housing.

1 Heathrow Employment Survey 2008/09:summary report (Heathrow Airport Limited,
March 2010)

2 District, Minor and Local Centres are collectively referred to in this Strategy as
‘neighbourhood centres’

London Borough of Hillingdon

9Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

3
A
P
ortraitofH

illingdon
-
w
here

w
e
are

now

Page 17



Environmental Management

Hillingdon is one of the greenest London boroughs with over 5,000 acres of open
countryside including 4,970 hectares of Green Belt. Hillingdon contains:

200 parks and open spaces that cover approximately 1,800 acres, containing
a mixture of habitats with over 11,500 species.
Over 8,000 individual trees and woodlands protected by Tree Preservation
Orders and over 15,000 highway and Hillingdon Homes trees.
1 National Nature Reserve Ruislip Woods surrounds Ruislip Lido, a 60-acre
lake.
6 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs), 14 sites of Metropolitan Importance
for Nature Conservation, 61 sites of Borough Importance (17 Grade I, 44 Grade
II), including parts of Hillingdon House Farm and 9 sites of local importance.
Approximately 7% of the borough is covered by Conservation Areas
A number of rivers run through the borough, the Colne, Frays, Yeading Brook
and Wraysbury as well as approximately 20 kms of Grand Union Canal.
Hillingdon is a major producer of minerals compared to other London boroughs.
The southern two-thirds of the borough is designated an Air Quality Management
Area.
Approximately 7000 properties (6%) are located in areas of flood risk.

Hillingdon has the fourth highest carbon emissions of the thirty-three London
boroughs with:

432,000 tonnes from transport within the borough (aviation fuel and motorway
travel are excluded).
8 tonnes of CO2 per person.
560,000 tonnes of CO2 from domestic fuel.
1,000,000 tonnes of CO2 from industrial processes.

Heathrow Airport has a significant impact on local residents living in the south of
the borough and in adjoining areas. Some of the adverse impacts include congestion,
noise and poor air quality.
Significantly high concentrations of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) are found around the
major roads in the borough and around Heathrow Airport.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201010

3
A
P
or
tr
ai
to
fH

ill
in
gd
on

-
w
he
re

w
e
ar
e
no
w

Page 18



Built Environment and Heritage

Hillingdon is a suburban borough containing areas of 1930s development and typical
“Metro land” estates with themost common house type being semi-detached (40.3%)
followed by terraced (27.9%)
Hillingdon's designations include:

30 conservation areas and 14 Areas of Special Local Character (ASLC)
410 statutory listed buildings and 107 locally listed buildings
5 Scheduled Ancient Monuments and 9 Archaeological Priority Areas

The borough includes distinctive building types ranging from timber framed buildings
in semi-rural settings to groups of Victorian workers' houses
There are examples of early concrete and steel industrial buildings
Hillingdon includes high quality modern buildings such as those at Stockley Park
which is internationally renowned for its quality of building and landscape design

Community Facilities

Hillingdon maintains 92 educational establishments made up of 65 primary schools,
18 secondary schools, 6 special schools, 1 nursery and 2 pupil referral units.
A number of secondary educational establishments in the borough are subject to
improvements and in some cases redevelopment through the BSF21 programme,
part of the Government's Building Schools for the Future programme.
The borough contains one further educational establishment (Uxbridge College)
and one University (Brunel).
Hillingdon Primary Care Trust owns and manages 25 health centres, clinics and
administrative buildings and manages 51 GP practices.
Hillingdon Hospital (Acute Care) Trust manages Hillingdon Hospital and Mount
Vernon Hospital in the north of the borough.
There are currently 87 places of worship in Hillingdon.
Hillingdon contains 4 Metropolitan Police Stations facilities, with additional facilities
located at Heathrow. The borough also accommodates 4 London Fire Brigade
Stations.

Culture and Leisure

Hillingdon has Museum collections at Uxbridge Library and Brunel University as
well as 17 public libraries and one mobile library
The borough plays host to the popular BIGfest music and arts festival
Hillingdon opened the first 50m indoor swimming pool in London for 40 years in
March 2010 and the borough boasts a rich collection of sports and leisure facilities,
including the new Sport and Leisure Centre in Botwell Green.
The borough contains 4 public golf courses in Ruislip, Northwood (Haste Hill),
Stockley Park and Uxbridge along with 2 public swimming pools and 3 Fitness Zones
located in Ruislip and Hayes.

London Borough of Hillingdon

11Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

3
A
P
ortraitofH

illingdon
-
w
here

w
e
are

now

Page 19



Transport

The borough is home to Heathrow Airport, a key gateway for the UK and one of the
busiest airports in the world. Heathrow Airport is also the second busiest public
transport interchange in the UK, with rail, bus and coach links around the country
There is excellent road access into and out of central London on the M4, A40, A312
and nearby M25 and M40; however these have congestion and environmental
impacts
North to south road and public transport accessibility within the borough is severely
constrained
55.6% of residents travel to work by car
National rail connections are available into central London from Heathrow (via the
Heathrow Express and Heathrow Connect service) and West Drayton and Hayes
(to Paddington) and West Ruilsip and South Ruislip into Marylebone
The borough contains 13 Underground stations for the Piccadilly, Metropolitan and
Central Lines with interchanges at Heathrow, Uxbridge and West Ruislip
Further enhancements to the rail network are planned, including Crossrail and
Airtrack
Northolt Aerodrome provides handling facilities for private flights in addition to Ministry
of Defence activities.
Uxbridge station provides the most significant interchange between the Underground
and bus services with 140 bus and 12 train services per peak hour (over 5.4 million
trips per year)
Hayes and Harlington station is the borough’s secondmost important rail interchange
with 94 bus and 15 train services per peak hour (over 1.2 million trips per year)
Heathrow Terminals 1,2 and 3 have over 8,000,000 trips per year and Eastcote
station has over 2,000,000 trips per year
Walking trips have declined whilst cycle trips have marginally increased in recent
years
The borough has a strong school travel plan programme in place

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201012

3
A
P
or
tr
ai
to
fH

ill
in
gd
on

-
w
he
re

w
e
ar
e
no
w

Page 20



Main Challenges

3.4 The main challenges to be addressed in the Core Strategy are set out in Table 3.1.
These have been identified from the key facts outlined above and also from evidence of the
changes that will take place in the borough up to 2026. Further information on each of the
main challenges and how these are addressed is contained in Chapters 5-9.

Table 3.1 Main Planning Challenges for Hillingdon

PolicyIssueTopic

E1, E2London Plan requirement to accommodate a
proportion of 9-11,000 new jobs in Heathrow
Opportunity Area (3)

The Economy

E1London Plan requirement to adopt a ‘Limited
Approach’ to the transfer of industrial sites to other
uses(4)

E2London Plan requirement to deliver a proportion of
new hotel growth (5)

E7Resident working age population has below
average qualifications and a low number of adult
learners

E7Pockets of deprivation within the borough

E6Low level of business start ups and small affordable
business units

E3Continued pressure for expansion at Heathrow
Airport with economic benefits at a national level
but significant adverse local impacts

E1Pressure on employment land for other uses

E5Threat to market position of Uxbridge through
increased competition from other major retail
centres

E4Threats to the viability and vitality of town and
neighbourhood centres

H1, H2Overall housing needs and affordable housing in
the borough

Housing

3 See Table 5.1 for further details
4 Industrial Capacity: London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (Greater London Authority, March 2008)
5 See Table 5.2 for further details

London Borough of Hillingdon

13Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

3
A
P
ortraitofH

illingdon
-
w
here

w
e
are

now

Page 21



PolicyIssueTopic

H2Insufficient appropriate forms of affordable tenure,
particularly intermediate housing

H1A proposed significant increase in Hillingdon's
London Plan annual housing monitoring target

H2The need to agree a borough affordable housing
target

H3The requirement in the London Plan for an
increased number of gypsy and traveller pitches

H1Retention of indicative housing density targets

BE 1Delivery of energy efficient housing

CI 1Need to provide sufficient community infrastructure
to underpin growth, as defined in the Strategic
Infrastructure Plan (SIP).

Community Facilities

CI 1Opportunity to improve access to community
infrastructure, particularly for residents in areas of
identified need.

EM2, EM3,
EM4, EM5

The need to improve the quality of and access to
open spaces, rivers and canals for all groups of
people in the community

Environmental
Management

EM3, EM4,
EM5

The need to improve the quality of and access to
open spaces, rivers and canals for all groups of
people in the community

EM1, EM6Pressure to balance the demands of growth and
the impacts of flood risk with minimal harm on the
environment

EM2Pressure for release of green belt land,
Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains for
other uses

EM1, EM8The need to mitigate noise and air quality impacts,
especially around Heathrow and the major road
network

EM1, EM8National and EU requirements to meet climate
change and carbon dioxide emission targets

EM1, EM7Threats to the biological and geological interests
of the borough from development pressures and
climate change

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201014

3
A
P
or
tr
ai
to
fH

ill
in
gd
on

-
w
he
re

w
e
ar
e
no
w

Page 22



PolicyIssueTopic

EM9, EM10The need to meet the London Plan mineral
apportionment figures

EM11The need to minimise waste

BE1, HE1The need to maintain the character, identity,
suburban qualities and historic fabric of the
Borough's places and buildings

Historic and Built
Environment

BE1Pressure for high density residential developments

BE1, HE1Loss of local characteristics through unsympathetic
design

EM1Balancing new sustainability requirements to
combat climate change whilst protecting the
existing character of places, in particular within
conservation areas

BE1, HE1Demand for large scale commercial/ mixed use
developments particularly in the southern part of
the Borough on the fringe of Green Belt and/ or
Conservation Areas.

T2Poor north/south public transport linksTransport

T1, T2Slow and deficient public transport access between
Uxbridge and central London and other key
centres.

T2, T3Delivery of planned public transport improvements
at Heathrow, Hayes, West Drayton Uxbridge and
West Ruislip.

T4Congestion causing traffic delays, particularly in
the 30 identified congestion hotspots(6)

T3Pressures on the road and public transport network
from the high volume of vehicles associated with
Heathrow Airport

T4Poor and unsustainable access to and from local
destinations, including shopping centres,
employment and leisure concentrations/areas

6 Identified in Hillingdon's Local Implementation Plan 2006/6-2010/11 (London Borough
of Hillingdon, March 2006): Appendix 9

London Borough of Hillingdon

15Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

3
A
P
ortraitofH

illingdon
-
w
here

w
e
are

now

Page 23



PolicyIssueTopic

T1, T2, T4High dependency on private vehicles and low
proportion of trips made by cycling, walking and
public transport.

Major Infrastructure Projects

Heathrow Expansion

3.5 In January 2009 the government gave its support to the principle of a third runway at
Heathrow. In April 2009 a legal challenge to this decision was submitted by Hillingdon and
nine other claimants. In March 2010 the High Court ruled that ministers' decision to give a
green light to the proposed third runway does not hold any weight(7).

3.6 If the Government decides to go ahead with the runway project it must now review the
climate change implications of Heathrow expansion, the economic case for a third runway,
and the issue of how additional passengers would get to a bigger airport. The judge has
invited the Government to sign a legally binding undertaking that it will not base future aviation
policy solely on its 2003 Air Transport White Paper(8).

3.7 More recent policy developments, such as the report on climate change(9), as well as
the planned National Policy Statement for Aviation (NPS) due in 2011(10) will also have an
impact on development plans for the airport.

3.8 The Council strongly opposes any further capacity increase at Heathrow, including
mixed mode(11) and any further runway expansion. In light of the above, the Council is taking
a common sense approach to dealing with Heathrow Airport in the Core Strategy. Consistent
with our Community Strategy, the Core Strategy policies seek to maximise the economic
benefits of Heathrow and reduce any negative environmental impacts of the airport. Detailed
policy for the airport will form part of the Heathrow Area DPD (see Policy E3 in Chapter 5 of
this Core Strategy).

7 London Borough of Hillingdon & ORS v Secretary of State for Transport [2010] EWHC
626

8 The Future of Air Transport: Cm 6046 (Department of Transport, December 2003)
9 Meeting the UK aviation target – options for reducing emissions to 2050 (Committee on

Climate Change, December 2009)
10 The draft NPS for aviation will be published for consultation in 2011 by the Department

of Transport
11 Mixed mode is defined as "A method of operating two runways allowing for a mix of both

take-offs and landings on each" in Adding Capacity at Heathrow: Consultation Document
(Department for Transport, 2007): Appendix F Glossary and Abbreviations. Currently,
aircraft at Heathrow are only allowed to take off from one runway and land on the other
(spreading the noise burden). While Mixed Mode would allow for additional aircraft
capacity for the airport, it would see increases in aircraft noise and pollution over a large
area of West London and the South East.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201016

3
A
P
or
tr
ai
to
fH

ill
in
gd
on

-
w
he
re

w
e
ar
e
no
w

Page 24



High Speed 2

3.9 The High Speed 2 (HS2) Company was set up in January 2009 to work with the
Government on the feasibility of a new rail route between London and the West Midlands.
The Department of Transport issued a paper on 11th March 2010 which sets out the
Government’s proposed strategy for High Speed Rail(12). The proposed London-Birmingham
route will run from London Euston via Old Oak Common (near Wormwood Scrubs prison)
then via Ruislip, through the Chilterns to Birmingham. A connection to Heathrow will be
provided by an interchange with Crossrail at a new Old Oak Common station.

3.10 In principle, the Council is supportive of high speed rail. However, this support will
be very much conditional upon climate change objectives and local community aspirations
being met. The Council will not support any proposals that could lead to an increase in
demand for flights from Heathrow, an increase in road congestion or significant adverse local
environmental impacts.

3.11 The Government's paper notes that the proposed scheme would come forward in
phases from 2026. It is therefore outside the time frame of this Core Strategy, although
clearly there will be implications for Hillingdon in the future. The Government will begin formal
consultation on high speed rail in the autumn and the Council will make its response after
careful consideration of the proposals. The Council is not seeking views on HS2 as part of
this Core Strategy consultation.

12 http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/rail/pi/highspeedrail/hs2ltd/hs2report/

London Borough of Hillingdon

17Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

3
A
P
ortraitofH

illingdon
-
w
here

w
e
are

now

Page 25



4 The Vision - where we want to be

4.1 The previous chapter looked at where Hillingdon is now and this chapter looks to the
borough’s future. The Vision is an important part of the Core Strategy because it sets out the
position of the borough in 2026. It presents a vision for Hillingdon that has been developed
closely with Hillingdon Partners, and shows what the borough can look like if the main
challenges outlined in Table 3.1 are tackled successfully.

4.2 The Vision aligns with the six priority themes of the Council's Sustainable Community
Strategy included in paragraph 1.2. Agreement was reached with Hillingdon Partners that
this Vision provides a clear spatial expression of these priority themes.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201018

4
T
he

V
is
io
n
-
w
he
re

w
e
w
an
tt
o
be

Page 26



The Vision for Hillingdon 2026

Hillingdon continues to prosper, through the implementation of the following seven
point vision:

Hillingdon is taking full advantage of its distinctive strengths with regard to
its places and communities: The special character of the borough’s natural and
built assets have been protected and enhanced, fewer historic buildings and wildlife
habitats are at risk, there are more locally-distinct buildings, and new higher standards
of development, integrating renewable energy technology. More residents are
accessing the borough’s quality public open spaces, particularly in Harefield and
south of the A40.
The social and economic inequality gaps in Hillingdon are being closed: The
social and economic contrast between different parts of the borough have been
improved. Hillingdon residents are benefiting from safer and more inclusive
communities. Successful strategies have identified and addressed the particular
reasons for inequalities in areas of identified need.
Improved environment and infrastructure is supporting healthier living and
helping the borough to mitigate and adapt to climate change: Areas lacking
the social, physical and green infrastructure required to support healthy lifestyles
have been identified and measures are well under way to address these. Improved
building design and less reliance on cars has helped the borough to reduce its
carbon footprint. Generation of energy from renewable sources is common practice
and older housing stock is also benefiting from climate change initiatives. Town and
neighbourhood centres are the focus for community activities and have a diverse
range of uses including health clinics, cultural activities, local and business services,
as well as retail and office uses.
Economic growth has been concentrated in Uxbridge, Heathrow and the
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, without ignoring local centres: Sustainable
growth aroundHeathrow and the Hayes/West Drayton corridor (HeathrowOpportunity
Area) is being managed through the Heathrow Opportunity Area Framework.
Hillingdon continues to retain viable mineral resources within the Opportunity Area.
Regeneration in Hayes and West Drayton town centres is under way through new
high quality mixed-use development and Crossrail stations. Uxbridge has expanded
its role as the main urban centre in the borough through the development of RAF
Uxbridge, an improved public transport interchange, and fast Underground links into
central London. Development in Uxbridge and the HeathrowOpportunity Area have
led by example in setting standards for new quality development that meets the
challenges of climate change. Local centres in the north of the borough continue
to flourish as a result of improved community infrastructure.

London Borough of Hillingdon

19Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

4
T
he

V
ision

-
w
here

w
e
w
antto

be

Page 27



The Vision for Hillingdon 2026

Improved accessibility to local jobs, housing and facilities is improving the
quality of life of residents:More residents are enjoying the benefits of an improved
quality of life. There is a wider choice of housing, and workplaces are located where
they are accessible by a range of transport options and neighbourhoods that lack
adequate facilities and services have been addressed. Low emissions strategies
are helping to improve air quality with associated health benefits.

Hillingdon has a reliable network of north/south public transport routes and
improved public transport interchanges: Previously poor north south public
transport access in the borough has been addressed. New services link Heathrow
and the Hayes/West Drayton corridor through Uxbridge to Northwood, Ruislip,
Eastcote and Harefield. Improved public transport interchanges have been created
at Heathrow, Hayes, West Drayton, Uxbridge and West Ruislip reducing the
dependence on cars. As a whole the borough is benefiting from Crossrail.

Hillingdon has continued to prosper from the presence of Heathrow: The
economic benefits of Heathrow Airport are being harnessed by local people through
access to jobs and links to training to create greater prosperity, especially in the
south of the borough with improved air quality and benefits to the environment.

Strategic Objectives to deliver The Vision

4.3 The following Strategic Objectives are the stepping stones to deliver the Vision and
form the basis of policies contained in chapter 5-9.

Hillingdon is taking full advantage of its distinctive strengths with regard to its places
and communities:

SO1: Preserve and enhance the Borough’s heritage by ensuring new development,
including changes to the public realm, is of high quality design and sensitive to the
character of its wider setting.
SO2: Create neighbourhoods that are of a high quality sustainable design, distinctive,
safe, functional and accessible and which maintain the identity and suburban qualities
of the borough's places and serve the long-term needs of all residents.
SO3: Improve the quality of and accessibility to, the borough’s open spaces, including
rivers and canals as areas for sports, recreation, visual interest and bio-diversity. In
addition, address open space needs by providing new spaces identified in Hillingdon's
Open Space Study.
SO4: Ensure that development contributes to a reduction in crime and disorder, is resilient
to terrorism, and delivers safe and secure buildings, spaces and inclusive communities.
SO5: Safeguard and promote areas of geological importance and make a proportionate
contribution to West London’s target to extract 0.5 million tonnes of minerals.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201020

4
T
he

V
is
io
n
-
w
he
re

w
e
w
an
tt
o
be

Page 28



The social and economic inequality gaps in Hillingdon are being closed:

SO6: Promote social inclusion through equality of opportunity and equality of access to
social, educational, health, employment, recreational, green space and cultural facilities
for all in the borough, particularly for residents living in areas of identified need.
SO7: Address Hillingdon’s housing needs by providing affordable housing as identified
in Hillingdon's Housing Needs Study.

Improved environment and infrastructure is supporting healthier living and helping
the borough to mitigate and adapt to climate change:

SO8: Protect and enhance biodiversity to support the necessary changes to adapt to
climate change. Where possible, encourage the development of wildlife corridors.
SO9: Promote healthier and more active lifestyles through the provision of access to a
range of sport, recreation, health and leisure facilities.
SO10: Improve air and water quality and safeguard quiet areas from noise pollution.
SO11: Address the impacts of climate change and in particular minimise carbon emissions
from new development and transport.
SO12: Reduce the reliance on the use of the car by promoting safe and sustainable
forms of transport, such as improved walking and cycling routes and encouraging travel
plans.
SO13: Support the objectives of sustainable waste management.

Economic growth has been concentrated in Uxbridge, and the Heathrow and
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor without ignoring local centres:

SO14: Provide 9,000 new jobs and accommodate most economic growth in Uxbridge
and the Heathrow Opportunity Area.
SO15: Protect land for employment uses to meet the needs of different sectors of the
economy. Manage the release of surplus employment land for other uses.
SO16: Manage appropriate growth, viability and regeneration of town and neighbourhood
centres.

Improved accessibility to local jobs, housing and facilities is improving the quality of
life of residents:

SO17: Link deprived areas with employment benefits arising from the development of
major sites and existing key locations.
SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure facilities,
especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of the borough
through well planned routes and integrated public transport.
SO19: Meet the current London Plan (2008) target to provide 365 new homes per annum
and consider the revised targets in the Replacement London Plan (2009).
SO20: Improve facilities at bus and underground/rail interchanges to promote sustainable
growth in Uxbridge, Heathrow, the Hayes/West Drayton corridor and accessibility to
other town centres.

London Borough of Hillingdon

21Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

4
T
he

V
ision

-
w
here

w
e
w
antto

be

Page 29



Hillingdon has a reliable network of north/south public transport routes and improved
public transport interchanges:

SO21: Improve public transport services between the north and the south of the borough
to ensure easier access between residential areas such as Northwood and South Ruislip,
Hillingdon Hospital, Brunel University, Stockley Park and Heathrow Airport.
SO22: Promote efficient use of public transport and in particular the enhancement of
Underground services to Uxbridge and faster services to central London.

Hillingdon has prospered from the presence of Heathrow:

SO23: Develop and implement a strategy for the Heathrow Opportunity Area, in order
to ensure that local people benefit from economic and employment growth without
detrimental social and environmental impacts.
SO24: Optimise the potential employment and educational benefits of Heathrow airport
for local residents.

The Spatial Strategy

4.4 Hillingdon's places and spaces are what makes the borough unique. The following
section explains what the proposals shown on the Key Diagram and the policies contained
in chapters 5-9 will mean for key places in Hillingdon.

Summary of growth in the borough 2011-2026

Table 4.1 Summary of Growth in Hillingdon 2011-2026

Growth figureProposed growth during plan period

9,000-11,000Total new jobs

5,475 - 9,300 dwellingsTotal new homes

6,400New office-based jobs

A proportion of 9-11,000New jobs in Heathrow Opportunity Area

Estimated 1,160 permanent direct
jobs (175 indirect jobs)

New jobs in RAF Uxbridge town centre extension

Approximately 1,600New homes at RAF Uxbridge

358haTotal designated employment land

17.58haIndustrial and employment land release

13.63haNewly designated industrial and employment land

3,800-5,600Additional hotel bedrooms

18,855 sq.mNew retail floorspace in Uxbridge

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201022

4
T
he

V
is
io
n
-
w
he
re

w
e
w
an
tt
o
be

Page 30



Uxbridge

4.5 The status of Uxbridge as the main urban centre in Hillingdon and aMetropolitan Centre
in London will be strengthened. The town centre currently supports 100,000 sq metres of
retail floorspace and the growth of retail, leisure and employment uses in Uxbridge town
centre will be encouraged to support its Metropolitan status. Uxbridge requires 18,855 sq.m
net of comparison goods floorspace between 2011 and 2026 and it will be promoted as a
key location for offices and hotel development.

4.6 Uxbridge town centre will be expanded to include the office component of the North
Uxbridge Industrial Estate and the RAF Uxbridge site. RAF Uxbridge is identified for high
quality residential-led mixed-use development, accommodating up to 1600 homes, around
14,000 sq.m of office space, a 90 bed hotel and it will deliver an estimated 1,160 permanent
jobs.

4.7 The growth in employment, housing and leisure within Uxbridge will ensure new
development is delivered in an area with existing transport and community infrastructure.
This will help encourage sustainable modes of transportation and help to minimise carbon
emissions.

4.8 The Uxbridge industrial estates are strategic employment areas that will be protected
from release for other uses.

4.9 Transportation improvements are key to ensuring the future success of Uxbridge as a
Metropolitan Centre. An enhanced transport interchange is proposed, including improved
underground links to the capital. The exact nature and scale of transportation improvements
required to support growth in Uxbridge will be defined through detailed assessment of
proposals as they come forward.

4.10 The Replacement London Plan (2009) estimates that 754 new homes will be delivered
from large sites in Uxbridge north and Uxbridge south. These figures have not been agreed
and will be examined through the London Plan EIP.

Heathrow

4.11 The role of Heathrow Airport as a key employment area will be strengthened and the
continuing demand for associated freight handling and commercial floorspace will be met.
The aim is to maximise the economic benefits of Heathrow whilst mitigating the negative
environmental and social impacts.

4.12 Subject to protecting local amenity, the Council will optimise its mineral resources
and prevent their sterilisation.

4.13 The Heathrow Opportunity Area (OA) is identified in the current London Plan (2008)
as being capable of accommodating a proportion of 11,000 new jobs and over 10,000 new
homes. The area covers 821ha of land both inside and outside the borough. The Draft
Replacement London Plan (2009) proposes a revised 700 ha Opportunity Area providing
9,000 new jobs to 2026 and 9,000 new homes.

London Borough of Hillingdon

23Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

4
T
he

V
ision

-
w
here

w
e
w
antto

be

Page 31



4.14 This Core Strategy sets out specific aims to tackle the poor air quality associated with
the airport. Heathrow is the primary source of adverse air quality emissions through aviation
activities and associated infrastructure and transport. The growth of employment and housing
in this area will be carefully managed so it does not have a detrimental impact on climate
change initiatives.

4.15 A clearer definition of the Heathrow Opportunity Area boundary and specific growth
figures for Hillingdon will be identified in a Heathrow Area Development Plan Document, to
be developed with the Greater London Authority and London Borough of Hounslow.

Hayes/West Drayton

4.16 The Hayes and West Drayton corridor will be a key location for employment growth
in the Heathrow Opportunity Area.

4.17 While traditional manufacturing has declined, the logistics and distribution sector has
strengthened and the area contains a good mix of units to accommodate a variety of
businesses.

4.18 Stockley Park will continue to be a strategic employment site that could contribute a
significant proportion of the new employment proposed as part of the Heathrow Opportunity
Area. The park will need to deliver sustainable transportation opportunities alongside any
further growth. The area contains a number of locally significant employment sites with
potential for growth which will be protected from release for other uses.

4.19 Some employment sites in the Hayes/West Drayton corridor will be partially released
for mixed use development. A subsequent Site Allocations DPD will identify specific sites in
Hayes, West Drayton and Yiewsley for mixed use development.

4.20 Crossrail will be a catalyst for growth and regeneration in the corridor, particularly
around Hayes town centre where the station will be modernised as a public transport
interchange.

4.21 The Grand Union Canal will be a key green corridor with improved public access and
enhanced natural environment.

4.22 The Replacement London Plan estimates that 483 new homes will be delivered in
the Hayes/West Drayton Corridor from sites over 0.25 hectares. These figures have not been
agreed and will be examined through the London Plan Examination In Public (EiP).

Yeading

4.23 Parts of Hayes End and Yeading are within the 20% most deprived areas of England.
The Council will develop strategies to address the complex reasons for this deprivation.

4.24 A key part of this Core Strategy will be improving access to open spaces, key
employment areas and community facilities.

4.25 The Replacement London Plan (2009) estimates that in the Yeading area to the north
of the Uxbridge Road, 144 new homes will be delivered from large sites over 0.25 hectares.
These figures have not been agreed and will be examined through the London Plan EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201024

4
T
he

V
is
io
n
-
w
he
re

w
e
w
an
tt
o
be

Page 32



North of the A40

4.26 The green and open character of the area to the north of the A40 will be enhanced
and access to public open space will be improved.

4.27 Fray’s FarmMeadows, Harefield Pit and the Gravel Pit will be protected and enhanced
where possible. The natural environment north of the A40 represents an important part of
Hillingdon’s fight to tackle climate change. The natural environment will be protected and
enhanced where possible with further opportunities for nature conservation identified through
the Biodiversity Action Plan.

4.28 Public transport links will be improved to increase access to employment areas, shops
and services in the south.

4.29 An improved transport interchange is proposed at West Ruislip.

4.30 With the exception of Harefield, levels of deprivation to the north of the A40 are
relatively low. Residents of Harefield will benefit from improved access to jobs and community
services.

4.31 Strategies will be developed to ensure that local centres, particularly the district centres
of Northwood, Ruislip and Eastcote respond to changes in shopping patterns.

4.32 The Replacement London Plan (2009) estimates that 864 dwellings will be delivered
to the north of the A40 from large sites over 0.25 hectares. These figures have not been
agreed and will be examined through the London Plan EIP.

The Key Diagram

4.33 The key diagram shows how the borough will look in 2026 after the vision and strategic
objectives have been implemented.

London Borough of Hillingdon

25Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

4
T
he

V
ision

-
w
here

w
e
w
antto

be

Page 33



Map 4.1 Key diagram

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201026

4
T
he

V
is
io
n
-
w
he
re

w
e
w
an
tt
o
be

Page 34



Core Policies

4.34 The following sections explain how the Spatial Strategy for Hillingdon will be
implemented. Chapters 5-9 contain a series of Core Policies on economic growth, housing,
historic and built environment, environmental management, transport and infrastructure. It
is through the delivery and monitoring of these policies that the Vision and Objectives of this
Core Strategy will be achieved.

London Borough of Hillingdon

27Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

4
T
he

V
ision

-
w
here

w
e
w
antto

be

Page 35



5 Core Policies - The Economy

5.1 This chapter looks at Hillingdon’s economic future; how many new jobs the borough
will accommodate, where that growth should go to best support sustainable communities,
and how to maintain the viability of our town and neighbourhood centres. While the impact
of the current economic downturn is well known, this document looks beyond this economic
cycle to a longer term growth strategy for the borough.

Supply of Employment Land

Strategic Objective

SO15: Protect land for employment uses to meet the needs of different sectors of
the economy. Manage the release of surplus employment land for other uses.

Related Policy: E1

5.2 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies two main challenges relating to the supply of
employment land:

Pressure on employment land for other uses
The London Plan requirement to adopt a ‘Limited Approach’ to the transfer of industrial
sites to other uses

5.3 Hillingdon has 358ha of designated employment land which is focused on the industrial
areas of the Hayes - West Drayton Corridor, Uxbridge, Heathrow and South Ruislip. While
historically much of this area was industrial, employment has become increasingly office
based with many office parks located on former industrial sites. Uxbridge, Stockley Park and
the Heathrow perimeter are the principal office locations, and there are increasing development
opportunities in Hayes following the introduction of the Heathrow Connect service and the
prospect of Crossrail. The transport sector, including Heathrow Airport, accounts for about
a third of jobs in the borough (13).

5.4 There has been a steady decline in industrial and warehousing floorspace in Hillingdon
but an increase in office floorspace. The Council maintains an effective employment land
supply, and any release of land over the past 10-20 years has not harmed employment or
business functions within the borough. Hillingdon remains a key industrial, warehousing and
office location. To sustain a strong supply of office, factory and warehouse floorspace, this
Core Strategy will provide appropriate sites and premises for different business needs and
protect employment land in the long term from redevelopment for other uses.

5.5 A key consideration for businesses locating in Hillingdon is the proximity of other
businesses and therefore established employment areas are an important factor in attracting
new investment. This Core Strategy will protect Hillingdon’s future prosperity and employment
generation through employment land designations.

13 GLA Economics Working Paper 38: Employment projections for London by sector and
trend-based projections by borough (Greater London Authority, November 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201028

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 36



5.6 Hillingdon has four regionally important Strategic Industrial Locations totalling around
270ha. These are designated through the London Plan and shown on Map 5.1. These
include three Preferred Industrial Locations (PIL); Uxbridge Industrial Estate, Victoria
Road/StonefieldWay in South Ruislip and Hayes Industrial Area which are suitable for general
industrial, wholesale distribution, waste management and recycling. They also include the
Industrial Business Park (IBP) at North Uxbridge which is more suitable for activities that
need better quality surroundings including research and development and light industrial.

5.7 To complement the Strategic Industrial Locations, this Core Strategy proposes
designations for two types of employment land; Locally Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS)
where industrial and warehousing activities can operate, and Locally Significant Employment
Locations (LSEL) that have a light industrial, office and research role. The purpose of this is
to ensure that new office development, which has a high trip generating capacity, is located
where public transport accessibility is strongest, thereby reducing the need for car trip
generation. It will also help ensure that the function of industrial areas are not compromised
by 'sensitive' neighbouring uses. Locations of proposed LSIS and LSEL are shown on Map
5.1 below with specific boundaries brought forward through the Site Allocations Development
Plan Document.

5.8 It is proposed that Prologis Logistics Park in Stockley is included in the LSIS
designations, given that it is a major employment area. In addition the Odyssey Business
Park in South Ruislip is identified as a LSEL given that it is a modern office park of significant
size. These two new employment sites provide a total of 13.63ha of new employment land.

5.9 In general, economic growth has been identified for areas that already benefit from
good transport infrastructure and that will not harm the environment. The Heathrow
Opportunity Area is seen as an important economic growth area, but has already been
identified as an Air Quality Management Area (see Map 8.4). The Business Park at Stockley
is also highly valuable to the Borough, but does not benefit from the same level of sustainable
transport links as other areas for growth. Growth in areas without good infrastructure will
reduce car dependency and harmful emissions through policies EM8, T3 and T4.

5.10 There is more employment land than currently needed, and any release of surplus
industrial land will be carefully managed to support Hillingdon’s employment generation whilst
creating opportunities for regeneration and release to other uses including much needed
housing. The London Plan requires Hillingdon to adopt a ‘Limited Approach’ to the transfer
of industrial sites to other uses(14).

14 Industrial Capacity: London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004)
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Greater London Authority, March 2008)

London Borough of Hillingdon

29Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 37



Map 5.1 Locations for Employment Growth

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201030

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 38



5.11 Hillingdon’s Position Statement on Employment Land and Retail Capacity (2010)(15),
which updates the Employment Land Study (London Borough of Hillingdon, July 2009),
reveals that 17.58ha of surplus industrial and warehousing land (4ha net from SIL) could be
released from 2011-2026. This is equivalent to 4.9% of the total current designated
employment land in the borough and 1.5% of Strategic Industrial Land. Designated
employment areas will be reviewed as part of the Site Allocations DPDwhich will take account
of sites which have already been released for other uses and boundaries will be consolidated
where appropriate. Locations proposed for the managed release of employment land are
shown in Map 5.1 above and may include:

Part of Summerhouse Lane/ Royal Quay/ Salamander Quay, Harefield
Part of Uxbridge Industrial Estate
Part of Braintree Road area, South Ruislip
Part of Trout Road area, Yiewsley
Part of Pump Lane area, Hayes
Warwick Road area
Part of Blyth Road area, Hayes
Hayes Bridge area

Policy E1: Managing the Supply of Employment Land

The Council will accommodate growth by protecting employment land through designating
Locally Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS) and Locally Significant Employment Locations
(LSEL) including the designation of 13.63ha of new employment land.

The Council will manage the release of 17.58ha of surplus industrial land for other uses
over the plan period (see Map 5.1).

Implementation of Policy E1: how we will achieve this

Policy E1 will be delivered through the Site Allocations and Development Management
Development Plan Documents.

15 Position Statement on Employment Land and Retail Capacity (London Borough of
Hillingdon, March 2010)

London Borough of Hillingdon

31Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 39



Monitoring of Policy E1: how we will measure success

Policy E1 will be monitored through the Council's Annual Monitoring Report, with specific
links to:

BD1 (Core) Indicator: Total amount of additional employment floorspace – by type.
Target: Minimum of 20,000 sq.m per annum of new/replacement B1c/ B2/B8.
BD3 (Core) Indicator: Employment land available - by type. Target: To maintain
an appropriate supply of employment sites, premises and floorspace to meet the
needs of business.

Regular monitoring of the take up and availability of employment sites and premises will
continue to be used in order to assess whether there are shortfalls or surpluses of sites
and floorspace.

Location of Employment Growth

Strategic Objective

SO14: Provide 9,000 new jobs and accommodatemost economic growth in Uxbridge
and the Heathrow Opportunity Area.

Related Policy: E2

Regionally Significant Areas

5.12 West London is fundamental to London's economic growth as a whole due to its
accessibility and links to existing businesses and infrastructure. Hillingdon has benefited
from the strength of West London as a primary office location with a history of occupiers
moving westwards from Central London to sites like Stockley Park. Typically these have
been technology, engineering, manufacturing, and consumer goods companies looking for
business clusters or cost reductions.

5.13 Hillingdon is part of the Thames Valley market, which attracts global investment, and
the Western Wedge, which is a development corridor of regional importance. The corridor
extends from Paddington to Hillingdon where it includes the area from Uxbridge southwards
to Heathrow Airport. Hillingdon has sources of economic growth which function above the
sub-regional level, including logistics, transport-related sectors, leisure/tourism, and education.
The growth of these sectors is encouraged in the replacement London Plan (2009) through
strategic outer London development centres. The London Plan requires most of west London's
employment growth to be located within the Western Wedge and this Core Strategy will help
direct new economic development to this area.

5.14 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies two main challenges relating to the location of
employment growth:

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201032

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 40



The London Plan requirement to accommodate a proportion of 9-11,000 new jobs in the
Heathrow Opportunity Area
A requirement to deliver a proportion of new hotel growth

Office Based Employment Growth

5.15 Hillingdon’s employment is estimated to grow from 201,000 in 2011 to 210,000 in
2026(16) with much of this growth based in offices. Table 5.1 shows Greater London Authority
(GLA) forecasts for employment growth. Hillingdon is part of both the Outer London economy
and the strategically important West London sub-region, and is forecast to be the largest
outer London growth borough (17). The 2009 GLA estimate for new jobs in the London
Borough of Hillingdon is a total of 9,000 during the period 2011-2026, including around 6,400
office jobs. The London Plan (2008) requires a proportion of 11,000 new jobs to be
accommodated within the Heathrow Opportunity Area (which extends beyond the borough
boundary) up to 2026, while the replacement London Plan (2009) requires 9,000 new jobs
up to 2026.

Table 5.1 GLA Projected Office Based Employment Growth

PeriodNumber of new
jobs

LocationSource

2001-2026Proportion of
11,000

Heathrow Opportunity
Area (821ha)

London Plan (2008)

2011-2031
(2011-2026)

Proportion of
12,000
(9,000)

Heathrow Opportunity
Area (700ha)

Replacement London Plan
(2009)

2011-20269,000HillingdonGLA Working Paper 39
(2009) Table 9: triangulated
employment projections

2011-20266,413 (office jobs)HillingdonGLA London Office Policy
Review (2009)

5.16 In the short term (2009 -2016) it is estimated that there will be only limited need for
further office space in Hillingdon based on current vacancies and allowing for a third of
outstanding planning applications to be built. However from 2016, additional office floorspace
will be required to meet the need through to 2026/7(18). GLA studies (19) estimate a total of
76,950 sq.m of new office space will be needed over the plan period. This Core Strategy
will ensure further land is available for additional office development through to 2026 through
Policies E1 and E4.

16 GLA Economics Working Paper 39: Borough employment projections to 2031 (Greater
London Authority, November 2009); Table 9

17 London Office Policy Review 2009 (Greater London Authority, November 2009)
18 Local Development Framework Background Technical Report: Employment Land Study

(London Borough of Hillingdon, July 2009)
19 London Office Policy Review 2009 (Greater London Authority, November 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

33Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 41



5.17 The London Office Policy Review 2009 (20) identifies three core office locations of
Uxbridge, Stockley Park and Heathrow Perimeter for office growth. These and other
established employment areas suitable for new office development are shown on map 5.1
above as Locally Significant Employment Locations. Hayes town centre is a suitable location
for smaller-scale office development, particularly as part of mixed-use regeneration schemes.
Business parks are important locations for specialist industry clusters, such as Research &
Development at Brunel University Science Park, and IT and pharmaceuticals at Uxbridge
and Stockley Park. Locations for office growth and business clusters are identified on Map
5.1. Future demand for office floorspace may be influenced by factors such as the growing
importance of mobile technologies, reducing the amount of office space required to
accommodate staff. It will therefore be reviewed regularly.

Hotel and Visitor Facilities

5.18 Hillingdon received an estimated total of £697 million in tourism spending in 2007
(21). Jobs in tourism accounts for over 8% of the borough's total employment, which is higher
than the London-wide average. This is due in part to the interaction with Heathrow Airport
which is a gateway to London and the UK for many overseas visitors. Tourism is therefore
a significant contributor to the borough's economy and meeting the needs of visitors, including
provision of hotels, conference facilities and cultural activities, is an important consideration
for Hillingdon. Visitors include tourists, business visitors, and friends/family of people living
in the area, such as university students. Hillingdon benefits from tourism through employment
and training opportunities, wealth creation and support for the local economy and culture.
This Core Strategy will help link tourism development with regeneration in Hayes and the
wider Heathrow Opportunity Area, and provide access to training and new jobs for local
people (Policy E7).

5.19 Table 5.2 below summarises projected hotel growth targets. Hillingdon is the fourth
most significant London borough in terms of visitor accommodation (22)and can therefore
expect to accommodate a proportionate share of the London-wide figure of 40,000 additional
hotel bedrooms. The GLA's Hotel Demand Study (23) allocates a requirement of 3,800 new
hotel rooms to the borough. However Hillingdon's Tourism Study concludes that this figure
underestimates long term future growth based on recent trends, and suggests a need for
5,600 rooms by 2026. This estimated figure will be closely monitored, for example in light
of any changes in operations at Heathrow or other significant developments. Hotel
development in Hillingdon will help meet targets for both visitor accommodation and the
Heathrow Opportunity Area employment growth target.

20 London Office Policy Review 2009 (Greater London Authority, November 2009)
21 Local Area Tourism Impact Model: Hillingdon borough report (London Development

Agency, July 2009)
22 Hotel Demand Study (Greater London Authority, June 2006)
23 Hotel Demand Study (Greater London Authority, June 2006)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201034

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 42



Table 5.2 Projected Hotel Growth

PeriodNumberLocationSource

By 202640,000 additional hotel
bedrooms

London-wideThe London Plan (2008)

2007-20263,800 additional hotel
bedrooms

HillingdonGLA Hotel Demand Study
(2006)

2012-20265,600 additional hotel
bedrooms

HillingdonHillingdon’s Tourism Study
(2007)

Flexibility

The figures for employment and hotel growth are taken from reports published before
the current economic downturn using pre-recession data and trends to calculate future
growth. The estimates therefore need to be treated with caution. The Council will monitor
these targets through the Annual Monitoring Report and will review the targets if they
are not met for two consecutive years.

5.20 Accommodating hotel growth must not be at the expense of employment land around
Heathrow Airport, and Policy E1 safeguards Locally Significant Industrial Sites on the Heathrow
perimeter. Three key locations for hotel growth are identified by Hillingdon's Tourism Study;
Heathrow, Hayes and Uxbridge. These areas for growth are shown on Map 5.1.

5.21 Carbon emissions from transportation are much higher in Hillingdon than the London
average(24) and this has led to poor air quality, particularly around Heathrow where hotels
and offices have been developed. The delivery of new hotels and office space will be managed
to minimise the impacts on climate change and local air quality through Development
Management policies.

Policy E2: Location of Employment Growth

The Council will accommodate 9,000 new jobs during the plan period. Most of this
employment growth will be directed towards suitable sites in the Heathrow Opportunity
Area, Locally Significant Employment Locations (LSEL), Locally Significant Industrial
Sites (LSIS), and Uxbridge town centre. The Council will promote development in highly
accessible locations that supports sustainable travel behaviour and reduces impacts on
climate change. The Council will accommodate a minimum of 3,800 additional hotel
bedrooms, and new hotels and visitor facilities will be encouraged in Uxbridge, Hayes
and sites outside of designated employment land on the Heathrow perimeter.

24 National Indicator 186 Local and Regional CO2 Emissions Estimates for 2005-2007
(Department of Energy and Climate Change, November 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

35Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 43



Implementation of Policy E2: how we will achieve this

Policy E2 will be delivered through partnership working with key stakeholder like TfL,
land owners and private developers. Inward investment opportunities will be identified
in partnership with Think London. The Council will apply national, regional and local
policies when considering development growth and set out area-specific policies through
the Site Allocations and Heathrow Area Development Plan Documents.

Monitoring of Policy E2: how we will measure success

Policy E2 will be monitored through the Council's Annual Monitoring Report, with specific
links to:

BD1 (Core) Indicator: Total amount of additional employment floorspace – by type.
Target: Minimum of 20,000 sq.m per annum of new/replacement B1c/ B2/B8.
LO1 (Local) Indicator: Amount of floorspace developed for employment by type,
in a designated employment area. Target: Min of 10,000 sq.m per annum.
LO3 (Local) Indicator: Number of hotel and visitor accommodation rooms in the
borough. Target: 3,800 new rooms between 2007 – 2026.

Business registrations and failures will be regularly monitored using ONS Business
Demography: Enterprise Births and Deaths statistics.

Strategy for the Heathrow Opportunity Area

Strategic Objectives

SO23: Develop and implement a strategy for the Heathrow Opportunity Area, in
order to ensure that local people benefit from economic and employment growth
without detrimental social and environmental impacts.
SO24: Optimise the potential employment and educational benefits of Heathrow
airport for local residents.

Related Policy: E3

5.22 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to the Heathrow
Opportunity Area:

Continued pressure for expansion at Heathrow Airport with economic benefits at a
national level but significant local impacts

5.23 Heathrow Opportunity Area (OA) is a London Plan growth area and currently includes
Hayes, West Drayton, Feltham, Bedfont Lakes, Hounslow and Southall, although the
replacement London Plan (2009) proposes to separate the latter into an Opportunity Area

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201036

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 44



of its own. This Core Strategy defines the Hillingdon Heathrow OA as an area including the
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, Stockley Park and the area within and around Heathrow
Airport. This is shown on Map 5.1.

5.24 Table 5.3 sets out the current position and future growth of the key Heathrow OA
sub-areas.

Table 5.3 Heathrow Opportunity Area - Future of Key Sub-Areas

DirectionArea

Current Position

Stockley Park is an important contributor to the local economy and
prestige of the borough through its high quality offices. With 175,000
sqm of office stock, it is the largest concentration of office space in

Stockley Park

Outer London. It is described by the London Office Policy Review 2009
as "perhaps the most iconic business park in the UK" and has a
particular draw for prestigious national and European headquarters.
The Park is home to IT, pharmaceutical and communications sector
businesses as well as many other blue chip companies.

Future Growth

Stockley Park has a significant role in the delivery of jobs in the
Heathrow Opportunity area, and has an estimated capacity of around
5,000 new jobs(25). There are opportunities to extend the business
park and to include a hotel which could further add to the Park’s offer.
However, its out of town location means improved public transport links,
in particular north-south links and connections with Hayes and West
Drayton town centres is essential for a sustainable future for the Park.
Stockley Park also provides an opportunity to use its prestigious status
to help deliver high quality and innovative approaches to design and
transportation. The Park is situated out of town which promotes car
dependency and increases impacts on air quality. This Core Strategy
will help deliver better connections to Stockley Park through policy T2.
There are opportunities to link these high end jobs with university
courses to help retain the local graduate population after university
through Policy E7.

Current Position

Heathrow Airport is the UK's biggest airport and has a substantial impact
on the economy of Hillingdon, particularly in the south of the borough.
Just under 9,000 Hillingdon residents work at Heathrow which 12% of

Heathrow Airport
and Perimeter

25 Local Development Framework Background Technical Report: Employment Land Study
(London Borough of Hillingdon, July 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

37Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 45



DirectionArea

all airport employees(26). Activities related to the operation of Heathrow,
such as passenger terminals and maintenance facilities, take place
inside the airport boundary while many associated businesses, such
as freight handling and hotels, are located around the perimeter just
outside the airport boundary. Many businesses are reliant on the airport
and proximity is a key driver for the continued demand for freight
handling facilities and commercial floorspace near Heathrow. There
is a wide variety of office space from small to very large operators which
include government, aviation, logistic and distribution.

Future Growth

There is currently uncertainty around the direction of any future
expansion at Heathrow Airport. The outcome of the Judicial Review
on R3 in March 2010, means the Government must reconsult before
publishing any National Policy Statement for Aviation. This will inevitably
delay any future decision.

Heathrow is a crucial influence in attracting new investment to the area
and this Core Strategy will ensure that land within the airport boundary
continues to be protected for activity directly related to the airport.
Outside the boundary there is a requirement to balance demand for
hotel and employment uses in order to manage economic growth. The
designated employment areas along Bath Road will be protected as
Locally Significant Industrial Locations, while the Heathrow perimeter,
specifically Bath Road, BA Waterside, Harmondsworth and along the
South West Road, will continue to be a key location for offices. There
is particular pressure on employment land for hotel uses in the Heathrow
area and hotel development will be directed to locations outside the
airport boundary and outside of designated employment areas.

Transport infrastructure to support the function of Heathrow Airport and
growth in the Heathrow Opportunity Area will be delivered through
policy T4. The economic benefits of Heathrow will be maximised while
mitigating the negative environmental impacts through policies such
as EM8.

Current Position

The HayesWest Drayton Corridor extends fromWest Drayton to Hayes
Town Centre through to the A312 to Springfield Road. Where traditional
manufacturing has left the area, logistics and distribution activities have

Hayes West
Drayton Corridor

increased, benefiting from its proximity to Heathrow Airport. There is a

26 Heathrow Employment Survey 2008/09: summary report (Heathrow Airport Limited,
March 2010)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201038

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 46



DirectionArea

goodmix of different size units to accommodate a variety of businesses,
with smaller units adjacent to Hayes Town Centre and along Horton
Road, West Drayton.

Future Growth

Three Crossrail stations are proposed at Heathrow, West Drayton and
Hayes and these will help establish the Corridor as a key transportation
node in West London. The enhanced stations will act as a driver for
market-led investment in Hayes, maximise regeneration and growth
opportunities, create new jobs, and generate increased footfall within
the town centres which will support their retail and leisure functions.

The Grand Union canal runs through the corridor and will have a role
to play in the regeneration of the area. The canal has the potential to
provide an attractive waterfront setting, and regeneration projects will
deliver enhancements to this important natural environment as well
benefiting from its presence. These opportunities will be delivered
through Policy EM3 as well as specific requirements in the Development
Management and Heathrow Area Development Plan Documents.

Current PositionHayes Town
Centre

Hayes grew up as a manufacturing centre located on the
Bristol-Paddington railway line and Grand Union Canal. With the demise
of manufacturing there are opportunities to diversify the area. Hayes
is classified as a District Centre and supports approximately 200
retailers, 30,900 sq m gross of retail floorspace and 40,000 sq.m. of
office space. The introduction of the Heathrow Connect Service has
created greater links and attracted investment. While there have been
successes in recent years with the arrival of businesses associated
with Heathrow and the entertainment sectors, there remains a significant
supply of high quality office space.

Future Growth

There has already been significant developer interest in Hayes with
major new investment at London Gate (Blyth Road) and Hyde Park
(Millington Road). Ballymore’s High Point development is a mixed-use
scheme with a range of affordable housing provision aimed at housing
local families. The introduction of Crossrail will create further
regeneration opportunities through an improved transport interchange
and help the town centre develop a new identity as the location for
small and emerging businesses, suitable for business start-up units,
small-scale offices and mixed use development. Hayes is identified as
having capacity for an additional 3,350 sq.m of comparison retail

London Borough of Hillingdon

39Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 47



DirectionArea

floorspace for the plan period (27)which will be accommodated within
the existing town centre. The Grand Union Canal offers an attractive
and sustainable alternative for pedestrian and cycle routes through the
area.

Development in Hayes is likely to provide opportunities for employment
for those in nearby areas of deprivation. It is important that Hayes and
nearby Yeading prosper from the considerable economic influence of
Heathrow. It is also vital to monitor threats to Hayes, such as the impact
of other centres, including the potential extension to Southall in
neighbouring Ealing, and the impact on local jobs from in-commuting
via new Crossrail links. The Heathrow Opportunity Area is shown on
Map 5.1 and specific policies for economic growth and regeneration of
Hayes and improvements to community infrastructure at Yeading will
be developed in partnership with stakeholders through the Heathrow
Area DPD.

Current PositionYiewsley & West
Drayton Town
Centre Yiewsley & West Drayton serves a localised catchment area and is

classified as a District Centre. The town grew up as an
industrial/manufacturing centre located on the Bristol-Paddington
Railway line (West Drayton Station) and Grand Union Canal, although
many of the area’s manufacturing and industrial jobs have now gone.
The centre supports 29,336 sq m gross of retail floorspace and over
12,000 sq.m. of office space, although much of the stock is ageing.
Whilst there are a number of single occupiers, much of the remaining
space for larger units has been converted into smaller units and serviced
suites. Turnover of businesses is high but the offices continue to meet
local need and provide employment for local people.

Future Growth

The planned Crossrail station at West Drayton will create further
regeneration opportunities. Improved connections to Stockley Park,
through transport policy T2 will create better access to jobs and help
support an additional retail capacity of 1,650 sq.m(28). Yiewsley &West
Drayton is a suitable location for mixed-use development with modern
business accommodation, including affordable units. The Grand Union
Canal will also have a role to play in the regeneration of the area.

27 Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority, March 2009)

28 Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority, March 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201040

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 48



DirectionArea

Economic growth opportunities for Yiewsley & West Drayton will be
developed in more detail through the Heathrow Area DPD and Site
Allocations DPD.

Flexibility

The figures for additional retail capacity in Hayes and Yiewsley &West Drayton are taken
from a report published by the Greater London Authority in March 2009. The report uses
pre-recession data and trends to calculate future growth and therefore estimates need
to be treated with caution. The Council will monitor these targets through the Annual
Monitoring Report and will review the targets if they are not met for two consecutive
years.

5.25 The London Plan requires Hillingdon to work with key partners to prepare and
implement a spatial planning framework for the Heathrow OA. This will take the form of a
Development Plan Document (DPD) and the Council will work with neighbouring local
authorities like Hounslow to set out a sustainable and coordinated development programme.
Due to the uncertainty around Heathrow expansion it is not possible to provide substantial
detail about what the Heathrow Area DPD will cover; however it will include strategies to
deliver the economic growth identified in Tables 5.1-5.3, deliver housing growth shown in
Table 6.1 and mineral apportionment. It will include requirements to deliver high quality
sustainable development and the need to incorporate innovative approaches to sustainable
transportation as well as needing to address the climate change criteria set out in policy EM1,
and will contain specific strategies for areas such as Hayes town centre and Bath Road.

Policy E3: Strategy for Heathrow Opportunity Area

The Council will prepare a Development Plan Document (DPD) for the Heathrow area
to achieve the future growth set out in Table 5.3. This DPDwill help manage development
and protect land within Heathrow for airport-related activities. It will balance demand for
hotel and employment uses, and ensure that local people benefit from sustainable
economic growth. The DPD will also set requirements for climate change mitigation and
adaptation and to help deliver air quality improvements through a low carbon emission
strategy.

Implementation of Policy E3: how we will achieve this

Policy E3 will be delivered through cross-boundary and regional partnership working,
and local stakeholder partnerships.

London Borough of Hillingdon

41Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 49



Monitoring of Policy E3: how we will measure success

Policy E3 will be monitored through the Council's Local Development Scheme and
subsequent targets will be set out in the Annual Monitoring Report.

Uxbridge

Strategic Objectives

SO16: Manage appropriate growth, viability and regeneration of town and
neighbourhood centres.
SO20: Improve facilities at bus and underground/rail interchanges to promote
sustainable growth in Uxbridge, Heathrow, the Hayes/West Drayton corridor and
accessibility to other town centres.

Related Policy: E4

5.26 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to Uxbridge:

Threat to market position of Uxbridge through increased competition from other major
retail centres

5.27 Hillingdon’s town centre network comprises a hierarchy of centres which are shown
onMap 5.3. Uxbridge is the main urban centre in Hillingdon and is classified as a Metropolitan
Centre, serving a wide catchment area and offering a high level and range of shopping,
employment, service and leisure functions. The town centre supports around 100,000 sq m
of retail floorspace, of which 33,000 sq m is located in the Mall Pavilions shopping centre
and 30,000 sq m in the Chimes centre. The centre has a night-time economy of
regional/sub-regional importance and has the potential to accommodate a wider leisure and
cultural offer(29). Uxbridge has a very small number of hotels which support the visitor
economy, and Policy E2 seeks to improve the hotel offer in Uxbridge. Table 5.4 and Policy
E2 set out the future direction of Uxbridge as an office location for medium growth and
business clusters of pharmaceuticals, IT, business support services and food sectors.
Improvements to the public transport interchange is set out in the Transport chapter.

29 The London Plan Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London Consolidated with
Alterations since 2004 (Greater London Authority, February 2008)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201042

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 50



Table 5.4 Future of Uxbridge Town Centre

DirectionArea

Current Position

Uxbridge has an office stock of around 205,000 sq.m, the fourth largest
concentration in outer London, and is a key centre for the office market
in west London. A number of operators have their headquarters or

Uxbridge

European headquarters in Uxbridge which has cluster strengths of
pharmaceuticals and IT companies, business support services and
food sectors. Businesses are attracted by good road access, the quality
of the townscape and service provision, availability of suitable premises,
Brunel University and the local skills base. While the centre is
accessible by both public and private transport, there is restricted
parking ratios when compared with competing centres outside Greater
London. Building owners are reluctant to give up the historic parking
ratios attached to existing buildings in Uxbridge and this actively
discourages stock renewal in the town centre. Uxbridge both competes
with and benefits from Uxbridge Business Park, which is situated just
over the border in South Bucks. There is a shortage of good quality
office stock in Uxbridge, although it is still considered as a viable office
location(30).

Future Growth

The replacement London Plan (2009) identifies Uxbridge for medium
growth and for promotion as a commercial location. The London Office
Policy Review 2009 describes the local economy of Uxbridge as robust
and expected to grow, although it highlights a lack of opportunity for
new development in the existing centre. This Core Strategy will therefore
extend the town centre to include the office component of the North
Uxbridge IBA and the town centre quarter of the proposed RAFUxbridge
site (Policy E4). The RAF Uxbridge town centre extension is estimated
to include approximately 14,000 sq.m B1a offices, a 90 bed hotel and
deliver an estimated 1,160 permanent jobs. Further details will emerge
through the planning application process.

Uxbridge Business Park has more generous parking allowances for
new office development than Hillingdon which adheres to London-wide
ratios. In order to ensure the future of Uxbridge as a commercially
competitive location, this Core Strategy will improve public transport
links and interchanges and encourage a more sustainable approach
to transportation through Policy T1 and T2.

30 London Office Policy Review (Greater London Authority, November 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

43Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 51



DirectionArea

Uxbridge requires an estimated 18,855 sq.m net of comparison goods
floorspace between 2011 and 2026 (31) in order to maintain its market
position in the area.

5.28 The market position of Uxbridge is under pressure through competition from other
major retail centres such as Westfield, High Wycombe and Brent Cross. In order to maintain
its Metropolitan status, Uxbridge requires 18,855 sq.m net of comparison goods floorspace
between 2011 and 2026(32). This is a net growth of around 20% and equates to 1,260 sq.m
of additional comparison floorspace per annum for the plan period of the Core Strategy.
Hillingdon’s Position Statement on Employment Land and Retail Capacity (2010)(33) shows
that this new retail provision can be accommodated within Uxbridge for the medium-term.

Flexibility

The figure for additional comparison floorspace capacity in Uxbridge is taken from a
report published by the Greater London Authority in March 2009. The report uses
pre-recession data and trends to calculate future growth and therefore estimates need
to be treated with caution. The Council will monitor this target through the Annual
Monitoring Report and will review the target if it is not met for two consecutive years.

5.29 This Core Strategy will accommodate new growth and strengthen the Metropolitan
status of Uxbridge town centre by expanding the town centre boundary to include the office
component of the North Uxbridge Industrial Estate (former Highbridge Estate) and the town
centre quarter of the proposed RAF Uxbridge site. This is shown on Map 5.2 which will
remain indicative until the commercial element of the town centre extension can be defined
through the planning application process. The extension of the town centre will maximise
opportunities for employment, retail and leisure growth in a sustainable location which reduces
the need to develop further out of town business and retail parks. The inclusion of the former
Highbridge estate will help stimulate further investment in the office sector and contribute to
employment generation in Hillingdon. The RAF Uxbridge extension will include commercial
floor space, limited retail uses, restaurants and cafés, and will enhance the arts and cultural
offer in Uxbridge, alongside improved links to the town centre.

31 Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority, March 2009) Table 6

32 Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority 2009). Table 6)

33 Position Statement on Employment Land and Retail Capacity (London Borough of
Hillingdon, March 2010)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201044

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 52



Map 5.2 Strategic Site (indicative): Boundary Changes to Uxbridge Town Centre

Policy E4: Uxbridge

The Council will strengthen the status of Uxbridge town centre as a Metropolitan Centre
by delivering growth set out in Table 5.4 and promoting Uxbridge as a suitable location
for retail, offices, hotels, recreation and leisure, entertainment and culture, evening and
night-time economy, education, community services, and mixed-use development. The
Council will secure improvements to Uxbridge public transport interchange and the town
centre boundary will be expanded as shown on Map 5.2.

Implementation of Policy E4: how we will achieve this

Policy E4 will be delivered through the planning application process, including
implementing the existing RAF Uxbridge SPD, through the Site Allocations DPD, by
co-ordinating and developing a strategy for tourism and visitor attractions in Uxbridge
Town Centre, and through partnership working with TfL.

London Borough of Hillingdon

45Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 53



Monitoring of Policy E4: how we will measure success

Policy E4 will be monitored through the Council's Annual Monitoring Report, with specific
links to:

BD4 (Core) Indicator: Total amount of completed floorspace for ‘town centre uses’
(A1, A2, B1a, and D2 uses) within (i) town centre areas and (ii) the local authority
area. Target: (i) 800 square metres of retail development per annum. (ii) Up to 8,100
sq.m of comparison goods floorspace and 1,300 sq.m of additional convenience
goods floorspace by 2016.
LO2 (Local) Indicator: Amount of secured and implemented developer contributions
towards the provision and improvement of town centres. Target: The revised SPD
on Planning Obligations will lead to discussions about an appropriate target.

Town and Neighbourhood Centres

Strategic Objectives

SO16: Manage appropriate growth, viability and regeneration of town and
neighbourhood centres.
SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure
facilities, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of
the borough through well planned routes and integrated public transport.
SO20 - Improve facilities at bus and underground/rail interchanges to promote
sustainable growth in Uxbridge, Heathrow, the Hayes/West Drayton corridor and
accessibility to other town centres.

Related Policy: E5

5.30 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to town and local centres:

Threats to the viability and vitality of town and neighbourhood centres

5.31 District, Minor and Local Centres (collectively referred to in this Strategy as
‘neighbourhood centres’) provide convenience goods and services for more local communities
and some have developed specialist shopping functions. They are drivers of the local
economy and also play a role in fostering social inclusion. The Council is already investing
in local centres, for example through the library modernisation programme which has not
only increased learning and local employment opportunities, but has generated increased
footfall to support the sustainability of town centres.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201046

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 54



Map 5.3 Town Centre Improvements

London Borough of Hillingdon

47Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 55



5.32 Hillingdon’s neighbourhood centres are vulnerable to the impact of larger town centres
and new out-of-borough town centre regeneration schemes which can draw trade away from
smaller centres. There are a number of other threats to the viability and vitality of town and
neighbourhood centres influenced by changing consumer demand as well as economic
factors. Among these are the growing e-economy, the popularity of one-stop supermarkets
in out of centre locations, and car parking issues. Through Policy E5, this Core Strategy will
help diversify the future role of Hillingdon’s local centres and build on their unique advantages
like specialist retail and service offer, historic environment, access to public transport,
affordable small office units and opportunities for social interaction. In Hayes and Yiewsley
& West Drayton the Council will allocate land for mixed-use employment, residential and
transport-led regeneration schemes. Map 5.3 shows how the Council will improve the
borough's centres.

5.33 Table 5.5 identifies additional comparison retail floorspace capacity for Hillingdon's
District Centres during the plan period (34). Additional retail floorspace will be accommodated
within the existing town centre boundaries.

Table 5.5 Net Additional Comparison Goods Floorspace Requirement (sq.m)

2026202120162011District Centre

1,14351213320Eastcote

3,3451,594547135Hayes

6613229616Ickenham

77039413635Northwood

2,5031,18835365Ruislip

1,65084328469Yiewsley & West Drayton

Flexibility

The figures for additional comparison goods floorspace requirement in Hillingdon's District
Centres are taken from a report published by the Greater London Authority in March
2009. The report uses pre-recession data and trends to calculate future growth and
therefore estimates need to be treated with caution. The Council will monitor these
targets through the Annual Monitoring Report and will review the targets if they are not
met for two consecutive years.

5.34 Parades are a smaller entity than neighbourhood centres but perform an important
function in terms of meeting the daily needs of local communities. The viability of local
parades is threatened by competition from supermarkets and retail warehouses. Local shops

34 Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority, March 2009): Extract from Table 14: Net additional comparison
goods floorspace requirements by town centre (2011 - 2031) using 2.2% growth

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201048

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 56



are particularly susceptible to closure and pressure for change of use. For some local shopping
areas the closure of just one essential shop may be so significant as to precipitate the closure
of other shops and ultimately the demise of the centre. Through Policy E5, this Core Strategy
will ensure that local parades continue to perform a role in providing essential goods and
services, as well as social contact.

Policy E5: Town and Local Centres

The Council will accommodate additional retail growth in District Centres as set out in
Table 5.5 and will promote uses appropriate to their size and location. The Council will
improve town and neighbourhood centres across Hillingdon as set out in Map 5.3, and
improve public transport, walking and cycling connections to town and neighbourhood
centres while recognising the importance of parking provision for accessibility to local
services and amenities. Public transport will be improved to strengthen the viability and
vitality of all town centres including Uxbridge, Eastcote, Hayes, Northwood, Ruislip,
Yiewsley and West Drayton.

Local parades will be protected and managed to ensure they meet the needs of the local
community and enhance the quality of life for local residents, particularly those without
access to a car.

Implementation of Policy E5: how we will achieve this

Policy E5 will be delivered by applying national, regional and local policies including the
Site Allocations and Development Management DPDs, and working in partnership with
town centre managers.

Monitoring of Policy E5: how we will measure success

Policy E5 will be monitored through the Council's Annual Monitoring Report, with specific
links to:

BD4 (Core) Indicator: Total amount of completed floorspace for ‘town centre uses’
(A1, A2, B1a, and D2 uses) within (i) town centre areas and (ii) the local authority
area. Target: (i) 800 square metres of retail development per annum. (ii) Up to 8,100
sq.m of comparison goods floorspace and 1,300 sq.m of additional convenience
goods floorspace by 2016.
LO2 (Local) Indicator: Amount of secured and implemented developer contributions
towards the provision and improvement of town centres. Target: The revised SPD
on Planning Obligations will lead to discussions about an appropriate target.

London Borough of Hillingdon

49Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 57



Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SME)

Strategic Objectives

SO15: Protect land for employment uses to meet the needs of different sectors of
the economy. Manage the release of surplus employment land for other uses.

Related Policy: E6

5.35 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies onemain challenge relating to small andmedium-sized
enterprises:

Low level of business start ups and small affordable business units

5.36 New occupiers are attracted by the availability of high quality, modern stock in attractive
town centres or sites close to Heathrow or the M25 with good access. There is also a local
demand for small office units, and affordable work spaces for small and medium-sized
enterprises (SME). The London Plan (2008) and the replacement London Plan (2009) contain
policies to support local SMEs as being of particular importance for local regeneration and
especially important in suburban areas. Hillingdon Council is already engaged with local
SME businesses through initiatives such as supply chain intervention and brokerage.

5.37 Council initiatives will continue to link universities with affordable research space,
through schemes like the business incubation studios at Uxbridge College Hayes campus,
and support for industry clusters. The principal reasons why businesses in Hillingdon choose
their current location are the suitability of their premises and affordability. This Core Strategy
will therefore help to ensure the right mix of new office units is available in the borough,
including an adequate supply of modern affordable units(35).

Policy E6: Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SME)

Hillingdon will encourage the development of affordable accommodation for small and
medium-sized businesses in appropriate locations.

Implementation of Policy E6: how we will achieve this

Policy E6 will be delivered through the Development Management DPD, Planning
Obligations SPD and through partnerships with the private sector.

35 in accordance with Circular 05/05: Planning Obligations (ODPM, July 2005)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201050

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 58



Monitoring of Policy E6: how we will measure success

Policy E6 will be monitored through the Council's Annual Monitoring Report, with specific
links to:

BD1 (Core) Indicator: Total amount of additional employment floorspace – by type.
Target: Minimum of 20,000 sq.m per annum of new/replacement B1c/ B2/B8.
LO1 (Local) Indicator: Amount of floorspace developed for employment by type,
in a designated employment area. Target: Min of 10,000 sq.m per annum.

Raising Skills

Strategic Objectives

SO6: Promote social inclusion through equality of opportunity and equality of access
to social, educational, health, employment, recreational, green space and cultural
facilities for all in the borough, particularly for residents living in areas of identified
need.
SO17: Link deprived areas with employment benefits arising from the development
of major sites and existing key locations.

Related Policy: E7

5.38 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies two main challenges relating to raising skills:

Resident working age population has below average qualifications and low number of
adult learners
Pockets of deprivation within the borough

5.39 There are a number of challenges relating to skills and access to employment in
Hillingdon. Firstly, a significant proportion of workers in the borough have a low level of
qualifications or job skills, typically in pockets of deprivation. There is a need to raise the
aspirations and job mobility of these residents by increasing skills so they can maximise
employment opportunities. This Core Strategy will help ensure that local skills match
employment growth in the borough and that employment helps address pockets of deprivation
within the borough by linking training and employment needs. Inequalities can be reduced
by increasing employability and promoting businesses that can create job opportunities for
local residents. Jobs in tourism account for over 8% of the borough's total employment, and
this Core Strategy will help local people benefit from this through access to employment and
training opportunities in the tourism industry. The Council will also harness opportunities to
link high end jobs, for example at Stockley Park, with university courses to help retain local
graduates after university.

London Borough of Hillingdon

51Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

5
C
ore

P
olicies

-
T
he

E
conom

y

Page 59



5.40 There is significant commuting out of the borough to central London and the Thames
Valley and approximately two-thirds of employees in-commute from outside the borough.
This Core Strategy will also help to ensure that local people can physically access jobs,
particularly at Heathrow, by a range of transport modes. This is dealt with in the Transport
chapter through policies T2, T3 and T4.

Policy E7: Raising Skills

The Council will ensure training opportunities are linked with the development of major
sites for both construction phases and end use occupiers, and through liaising with local
colleges and businesses to ensure workforce development initiatives and training
programmes reflect skill requirements in the workplace. The Council will engage with
local businesses and universities to link high end jobs in the borough with higher education
courses. The Council will promote Hillingdon as a destination for visitors and tourists
and ensure that local residents have access to jobs within related industries.

Implementation of Policy E7: how we will achieve this

Policy E7 will be delivered through preparing and implementing the Local Economic
Assessment, and by means of partnership working with businesses, Adult Education
services, universities and FE colleges, Jobcentre Plus, Chamber of Commerce, West
London Working, Visit London and private developers. Delivery will also be through
implementing the Planning Obligations DPD, the economic development strategy, strategy
for tourism and visitor attractions, and the Subregional Employment and Skills Plan.

Initiatives such as the Chief Executives working contacts with local 'Big Hitters' in the
business community, Gateway Heathrow 2012, 14-19 diplomas and 16-19 Commissioning
will also help deliver Policy E7. Further initiatives will be developed to encourage active
travel within the borough and information will be provided dynamically and responsively
to encourage modal change to reduce car commuting on key corridors.

Monitoring of Policy E7: how we will measure success

Policy E7 will bemonitored through NOMIS data for skills/employment. Internal monitoring
will be through the Local Strategic Partnership Theme Group responsible for measuring
skills targets within the Local Area Agreement.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201052

5
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
T
he

E
co
no
m
y

Page 60



6 Core Policies - New Homes

Strategic Objectives

SO7: Address Hillingdon’s housing needs by providing affordable housing as identified
in Hillingdon's Housing Needs Study (2005).

SO19: Meet the current London Plan target to provide 365 new homes per annum and
consider the revised targets in the Replacement London Plan (2009).

Related Policies: H1, H2, H3

6.1 Ensuring the delivery of a sufficient level of housing is a key challenge for this Core
Strategy and the Council as a whole. The delivery of, in particular, more affordable housing
is a priority identified in the Council’s Sustainable Community Strategy.

6.2 This chapter sets out the minimum number of new homes that Hillingdon will provide
over the period of the Core Strategy and the steps that will be taken to demonstrate the
viability of revised housing targets contained in the Replacement London Plan (2009). It also
identifies key housing needs in the borough and the extent to which these can be met.

6.3 The starting point for assessing housing issues in Hillingdon is to look at the number
of existing homes and households in the borough. This is summarised in Table 6.1:

Table 6.1 : Existing Housing

106,606A) Total number of households

102,500 unitsB) Number of homes in the borough

17,044 unitsC) Total number of existing affordable homes in the
borough

Source: a) London Borough of Hillingdon Housing Needs Survey, 2005, Fordham Research.
b) London Borough of Hillingdon Housing Market Assessment 2009: Third Draft, Fordham
Research. c) HSSA data

6.4 The key points relating to the figures in Table 6.1 are:

Housing Type:Of the total number of homes in the borough, the 2001 census data indicates
that almost a quarter are flats, approximately one third are semi detached and a quarter are
terraced properties.

Tenure: Hillingdon's Housing Needs Survey (2005) (HNS) indicates that at 71%, levels of
owner occupation in the borough are higher than the national and regional (London) average.
Approximately 13% of all households live in private rented accommodation and 5.5% are
housed in the social rented sector. There continues to be a need for both intermediate and
social rented forms of affordable housing, particularly larger family units.

London Borough of Hillingdon

53Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 61



Size and Price: The emerging borough wide Housing Market Assessment (HMA) indicates
that homes in Hillingdon have more rooms than the regional average. Less than 1% of
properties fall into the lowest Council Tax band, well below the national and regional average.
Notwithstanding the current economic downturn, this indicates that house prices in the
borough are relatively high.

Vacancies and Property Condition: A certain number of vacant properties are required to
ensure a dynamic housing market and the proportion of vacant market properties in Hillingdon
is about the same as the regional average. The majority of vacancies (of all tenures) are
located to the south of the A40. Further information on the number of vacant properties in
the borough will be contained in the emerging HMA. The recent Private Sector Stock Condition
Survey concluded that in general terms, the overall condition of housing in Hillingdon is better
than average.

Main Challenges

6.5 The challenges for housing provision over the period of the Core Strategy fall into two
categories: to, as far as possible, meet housing supply targets contained in the London Plan
and to address housing needs in Hillingdon.

The London Plan

6.6 The main challenges for the Core Strategy in relation to meeting London Plan targets
are:

1. A proposed significant increase in Hillingdon's annual housing monitoring target;
2. The need to agree a borough-wide affordable housing target;
3. A proposed increase in the number of gypsy and traveller pitches; and
4. The retention of indicative density targets.

6.7 The London Plan (2008) sets a target for Hillingdon to provide 365 new dwellings per
annum. In accordance with Government guidance, this target has been rolled forward to
cover the Core Strategy period up to 2026. The Replacement London Plan (2009) contains
a revised target for Hillingdon to provide 6,200 dwellings up to 2021, based on the GLA’s
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA). It should be noted that the proposed
target has not been agreed with GLA and is expected to change as a result of the EIP process.

Housing Needs in Hillingdon

6.8 The main challenges in relation to meeting housing needs in the borough are:

1. Meeting the requirements for affordable housing in the borough;
2. The lack of appropriate forms of affordable tenure, particularly intermediate housing;

and
3. The particular needs of the travelling community in the borough.

6.9 For the purposes of the Core Strategy, housing need is defined as ‘the number of
households who lack their own housing, or who live in unsuitable housing and who cannot
afford to meet their housing needs in the market.’ Evidence of and strategies to address
housing needs in Hillingdon are contained in a number of documents:

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201054

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 62



LondonBorough of HillingdonHousingNeeds Survey Update (2005): This document
is the current assessment of housing needs in the borough.
London Borough of Hillingdon Draft Housing Market Assessment (HMA): The
emerging HMAwill provide an update on how housing needs have changed in Hillingdon
since the publication of the Housing Needs Survey.
West London Sub Regional Housing Market Assessment: This study is also in
production and will provide a broader picture of housing needs in the West London
Sub-Region.

6.10 Hillingdon’s Housing Needs Survey (2005) indicates an annual requirement to provide
3,564 affordable dwellings. The emerging borough wide HMAwill revise this figure and identify
the absolute need for all dwelling tenure and types. Notwithstanding, affordable housing
needs are expected to remain prohibitively high.

Housing Growth

6.11 The following policies have been developed to deliver the key objectives for housing
and to address the main challenges outlined in Table 3.1 of this Core Strategy.

Policy H1: Housing Growth

The Council will meet and exceed its minimum strategic dwelling requirement, where
this can be achieved, in accordance with other Local Development Framework policies.

The borough’s current target is to provide an additional 3,650 dwellings, annualised as
365 dwellings per year, for the ten year period between 1 April 2007 and 31 March 2017.

Rolled forward, this target equates to the provision of 5,475 dwellings over the period of
the Core Strategy. Sites that will contribute to the achievement of this target will be
identified in the Site Allocations DPD.

6.12 The following documents are relevant to housing growth in Hillingdon and are examined
in this chapter:

The London Plan (2008) which sets Hillingdon's current annual monitoring target;
The Housing Trajectory and 5 year land supply; and
The Replacement London Plan (2009), which sets a proposed revised annual monitoring
target based on the GLA's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA).

6.13 The London Plan (2008) sets an annual monitoring target for Hillingdon to provide
365 new homes per annum. In accordance with government advice and until the adoption
of the Replacement London Plan (2009), this target has been rolled forward over the period
of the Core Strategy.

6.14 The Council's Housing Trajectory is contained in the Annual Monitoring Report and
at Appendix 3 of this document. Table 6.2 summarises the number of completions expected
to come forward in the next five year period. The infrastructure required to deliver the sites
in the housing trajectory is outlined in the Strategic Infrastructure Plan.

London Borough of Hillingdon

55Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 63



Table 6.2 : Hillingdon's Five Year Land Supply for Housing

Residential Completion (Units)Year

8202010/2011

9312011/2012

9042012/2013

8262013/2014

4862014/2015

3,967TOTAL UNITS

6.15 In addition to meeting its annual monitoring target of 365 units in the London Plan
(2008), consideration will be given to emerging targets in the Replacement London Plan
(2009) and housing needs in the borough. The Replacement London Plan (2009) target is
split as follows:

Table 6.3 : Proposed Annual Target for the Provision of Housing

Total (Adjusted)Non Self ContainedConventional Housing

620207415

Figures in Table 6.3 have not been agreed with the GLA, particularly with regard to non
self-contained provision and are likely to change as a result of the London Plan EIP.

6.16 The Council's Housing Trajectory shows that up to 2014, current and emerging GLA
targets will be significantly exceeded. Beyond this period the trajectory indicates a reduction
in the number of completions, to the extent that the proposed annual monitoring target would
not be met.

Indicative Distribution and Delivery of New Homes

6.17 Tables 6.4, 6.5 and Map 6.1 use the SHLAA data to provide an indication of when
and where new homes could come forward in the borough. The figures in the table should
be used with care and it is important to note that:

The distribution of dwellings shown in Table 6.3 and Map 6.1 only reflect units identified
for delivery from large sites (over 0.25 hectares)
Figures for small sites are based trend data and cannot be mapped in Map 6.1
Tables 6.4 and 6.5 exclude predicted completions for non self-contained units (207 units
per annum)
Tables 6.4 and 6.5 are based on the 10 year timeframe for the London Plan. The SHLAA
data cannot be used to show the distribution of new dwellings beyond 2021.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201056

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 64



The figures in Tables 6.4 and 6.5 have not been agreed with the GLA and will be tested
through the London Plan Examination in Public (EIP).
Figures for the Heathrow Opportunity Area are inclusive of identified completions in the
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor.

Table 6.4 : Proposed units to be delivered from large and small SHLAA sites

Number of Units
2016-2021

Number of Units
2011-2016

7672,758Units predicted from large sites (>0.25
ha)

350350Units predicted from small sites (<0.25
ha)

1,1173,108Subtotal

223622Total number of units to be delivered
per annum (Predicted)

Table 6.5 : Proposed delivery of units from large SHLAA sites, by area

Number of Units
2016-2021

Number of Units
2011-2016

Area

0745Heathrow Opportunity AreaSouth of
the A40

200283Hayes/West Drayton Corridor

222532Uxbridge North

025Uxbridge South

11812Hayes End/North of Uxbridge
Road

0524Other Areas south of the A40

227637North of the A40

7672,758Total

6.18 The figures in Table 6.4 reinforce the findings of the Council's housing trajectory (see
paragraph 6.15) that the number of new units completed in Hillingdon will reduce significantly
beyond the first 5-year period of the Core Strategy. The achievement of the proposed annual
monitoring target of 620 units will therefore be particularly challenging beyond 2016. This
issue will be addressed at the Replacement London Plan (2009) EIP and if necessary in the
Council's emerging Site Allocations Document. The Council will carry out an economic viability
study to further assess the deliverability of these figures.

London Borough of Hillingdon

57Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 65



Map 6.1 Distribution of units from large SHLAA sites (2011-2021)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201058

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 66



6.19 The specific locations for new housing contained in the Site Allocations DPD will be
subject to an assessment of impacts on flood risk, ecology and conservation, the ability to
deliver decentralised energy, sustainable transportation, access to green infrastructure and
social quality.

Design and Density

6.20 High quality design for new homes will continue to be a priority for the Council. The
density of residential development should take account of the need to achieve the maximum
intensity of use compatible with local context, while respecting the quality, character and
amenity of surrounding uses. The density and design of residential development will be
addressed through the provision of appropriate policies in the emerging Development
Management DPD.

Implementation of Policy H1: how we will achieve this

Promoting the design and density of new homes to reflect the specific and different
land use characteristics in the north and south of the borough;
Ensuring development makes the most efficient use of brownfield land;
Promoting high quality mixed use developments;
Managing development to resist the loss of housing;
Considering the potential for additional housing on sites in the Site Allocations DPD;
Implementing the Council’s Empty Property initiatives;
Encouraging the conversion of suitable properties;
The release of sites in non residential use, subject to other policies of the plan; and
Preparing site specific planning briefs for larger sites.

Flexibility

Figures for housing growth in Hillingdon take account of the London Plan (2008). Proposed
growth figures in the Replacement London Plan (2009) have not been agreed and may
change as a result of the London Plan EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

59Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 67



Monitoring of Policy H1: how we will measure success

H1: (Core) Indicator:Plan period and housing targets. 440 units per annum from
1997 to 31st March 2007 and 365 units per annum from 1st April 2007 to the end
of the plan period as set out in the London Plan.
H2: (Core) Indicator: Housing trajectory. 3,650 new net residential units for the
period 2007-2016 (365 units per annum as an annual monitoring target) – London
Plan Target.
Number of 'conventional new homes' delivered in the borough each year between
2011-2026;
Number of non self-contained units delivered in the borough between 2011-2026;
and
The achievement of a reduction in overall housing need in the borough.

Affordable Housing

6.21 Increasing the supply of affordable housing is a key priority for this Core Strategy and
the Council as a whole. Subject to other planning considerations, measures that increase
the supply of affordable housing will be supported. The Council's policy on affordable housing
is guided by evidence of housing needs in the borough and the provisions of the current
(2008) and Replacement London Plan (2009). The Council's Housing Needs Survey
recommends that 50% of net new housing provision (supply from all sources) should be
affordable housing and that 33% of the total net requirement is for intermediate housing.
These figures are being reviewed as part of the Council's emerging Housing Market
Assessment and will be updated as new information emerges.

6.22 The London Plan (2008)sets a target to provide 50% of all new housing provision as
affordable housing and indicates a tenure split of 70% social rented, 30% intermediate tenure.
The Replacement London Plan (2009) proposes to remove the 50% affordable target and
states that boroughs should agree their affordable housing targets with the GLA. The position
regarding the proposed tenure split in the current (2008) and Replacement London Plan
(2009) is as follows:

Table 6.6 London Plan Tenure Split

Replacement London Plan (2009)The London Plan (2008)

Social RentedIntermediateSocial RentedIntermediateTenure Type

60407030Percentage

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201060

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 68



Policy H2: Affordable Housing

Housing provision is expected to include a range of housing to meet the needs of all
types of households and the Council will seek to maximise the delivery of affordable
housing from all sites over the period of the Core Strategy. For sites with a capacity of
10 or more units the Council will seek to ensure that:

i.) subject to viability, 50% of all new units are delivered as affordable housing, with a
tenure mix of 70% housing for social rent and 30% intermediate housing; and

ii.) the affordable housing mix reflects the need for larger social rented family units.

6.23 The Council notes that in setting the proposed tenure split in the Replacement London
Plan (2009), the GLA has considered factors other than the conclusions of the London-wide
Strategic Housing Market Assessment. These include an acknowledgement of the role that
intermediate housing can play in helping to get Londoners on the first step of the housing
ladder and reducing the call on the social rented sector.

6.24 The Council is currently preparing a number of evidence base documents that will
inform the development of its its policy on affordable housing, including the Housing Market
and Economic Viability Assessments. Until these studies have been completed, the policy
will continue to reflect the requirements of the London Plan (2008).

6.25 The type and size of dwellings that are delivered will be as important as the overall
number of units. The emerging HMA indicates that 70% of net need for affordable housing
is for two and three bed accommodation, more than a fifth is for four bed accommodation
and almost 7% is for one bedroom accommodation. The need relative to supply is greatest
for larger accommodation. Current estimates indicate that less than 10% of the need for four
bedroom accommodation is expected to be met compared with almost three quarters of the
need for one bedroom accommodation.

Implementation of Policy H2: how we will achieve this

Direct provision of affordable housing by Registered Social Landlords (RSLs), who
will be responsible for managing affordable housing in conjunction with the Council’s
Housing Department;
Including sites in the Site Allocations DPD from which a percentage of affordable
housing will be delivered; including specific sites for affordable and special needs
housing; and
Setting out the mechanisms for providing affordable housing and for determining
applications in the Development Management DPD.

London Borough of Hillingdon

61Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 69



Flexibility

Hillingdon's affordable housing target will evolve as the following evidence base
documents emerge:

The Replacement London Plan (2009);
The borough-wide Housing Market Assessment;
The sub-regional Housing Market Assessment; and
Hillingdon's emerging Viability Assessment.

Monitoring of Policy H2: how we will measure success

H5 (Core) indicator: Gross affordable housing completions. National Indicator (NI)
155 target
Agreement of an appropriate affordable housing target with the GLA;
Delivery of the agreed affordable housing target;
Agreement and delivery of an appropriate tenure split; and
Achieving a reduction in overall housing needs in the borough.

Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision

6.26 Circular 1/2006 states that the Core Strategy should set out criteria for the location
of gypsy and traveller sites, which will be used to guide the allocation of sites in the relevant
Development Plan Document. Criteria based policies must be fair, reasonable, realistic and
effective in delivering sites.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201062

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 70



Policy H3: Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Provision

The Council will ensure that:

a). The existing Colne Park site will be protected for its current use; and

b). Proposals for sites to accommodate the specific needs of Travellers (Irish and
Scottish), Gypsies, Roma, Sinti and Travelling Show People should:

i) Meet a need for such accommodation which is not being met in the borough or
elsewhere in London, whilst avoiding an over-concentration of such facilities in Hillingdon
in comparison to other boroughs;

ii) Be located on a site and in an area that is environmentally acceptable for residential
occupation;

iii) Have no significant adverse effects on the amenity of occupiers of adjoining land;

iv) Have acceptable road and pedestrian access and be accessible to local services and
public transport; and

v) Be consistent with other relevant LDF policies.

6.27 The Replacement London Plan (2009) contains targets for additional pitch provision
in each borough between 2007-2017. These targets have also been consulted on as part of
the emerging London Housing Strategy and have been informed by London's Gypsy and
Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA). The GLA has recently consulted on a minor
alteration to the Replacement London Plan (2009), which proposes 7 additional pitches in
Hillingdon. The Council will take account of the work being undertaken by the West London
Housing Partnership on the needs of the travelling community in its response to these figures.

6.28 The Council will allocate land for additional pitch provision in the Site Allocations DPD
following the completion of theWest London Study and the Replacement London Plan (2009)
EIP.

Implementation of Policy H3: how we will achieve this

Retention of the existing site at Colne Park; and
Taking account of the West London Housing Partnership research on gypsy and
traveller pitch provision to guide the provisions of policy CP3.

Flexibility

Figures for gypsy and traveller pitch provision are likely to be refined through the
progression of the Replacement London Plan (2009).

London Borough of Hillingdon

63Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

6
C
ore

P
olicies

-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 71



Monitoring of policy H3: how we will measure success

H4 (Core) Indicator: Net additional pitches (Gypsy and Traveller). Target to be set
by the London Plan
Meeting the needs of the existing travelling community in the borough by protecting
and maintaining the site at Colne Park; and
The delivery of pitches in accordance with the outcome of the Replacement London
Plan (2009) EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201064

6
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
N
ew

H
om

es

Page 72



7 Core Policies - Historic and Built Environment

7.1 The Borough has a diverse and in some parts distinct character and the Council will
seek to protect and enhance its best features. Important buildings, townscape, open areas
and waterside environments will be protected and improvements sought to those areas where
the environment is poor. The Council will strive to ensure that all new development is of a
high design quality, that it is sustainable and contributes positively to the local environment,
creating attractive, safe and vibrant places to live and work.

Main Challenges

7.2 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies four main challenges relating to the historic and built
environment:

The need to maintain the character, identity, suburban qualities and historic fabric of the
Borough's places and buildings;
Pressure for high density developments;
Loss of local characteristics through unsympathetic design;
Balancing new sustainability requirements to combat climate change whilst protecting
the existing character of places, in particular in conservation areas; and
Demand for large scale commercial/ mixed use developments particularly in the southern
part of the Borough on the fringe of Green Belt and/ or Conservation Areas.

Heritage

7.3 Hillingdon has a wide variety of historic assets; these include archaeological sites,
traditional village centres, canals, historic buildings and landscapes. There are also extensive
areas of good quality “Metro-land” suburbs, which are an important feature of the Borough.

The Council has a rolling programme of historic asset designation. At present the Borough
contains:

30 Conservation Areas
14 Areas of Special Local Character (ASLC)
406 Statutory Listed Buildings
289 Locally Listed Buildings
5 Scheduled Ancient Monuments (SAMs)
9 Archaeological Priority Areas, totalling approximately 210 hectares and forming 1.8%
of the Borough
1 entry in the English Heritage Register of Historic Parks and Gardens (Church Gardens,
Harefield, Grade II)
2 Article 4 Directions (Daisy Cottages, West Drayton Green and Dairy Farm, Harefield).

7.4 A further 10 Archaeological Priority Areas (APAs) have been identified for designation
and in addition, 2 new Archaeological Priority Zones (APZs) will be designated. The latter
have been designed to allow wider areas of archaeological potential to be considered. The
new designations are shown on Map 7.1.

London Borough of Hillingdon

65Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

7
C
ore

P
olicies

-
H
istoric

and
B
uiltE

nvironm
ent

Page 73



Map 7.1 Hillingdon's Heritage

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201066

7
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
H
is
to
ric

an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t

Page 74



Strategic Objectives:

SO1: Preserve and enhance the Borough’s heritage by ensuring new development,
including changes to the public realm, is of high quality design, appropriate to the
age and architecture of the asset, and sensitive to the character of its wider setting.

Related Policy: BE1

Policy HE1: Heritage

The Council will:

1. Preserve and enhance Hillingdon's unique historic environment, including statutorily
Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas, Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Registered
Parks and Gardens, Locally Listed Buildings, Areas of Special Local Character, and
Archaeological Priority Zones and Areas.

2. Actively encourage the regeneration of historic buildings and assets, particularly
those which have been included in English Heritage's Register of Historic Buildings
and Conservation Areas at Risk.

3. Promote increased public awareness, understanding of and access to the Borough's
historic assets, through Section 106 agreements and via community engagement
and outreach activities.

London Borough of Hillingdon

67Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

7
C
ore

P
olicies

-
H
istoric

and
B
uiltE

nvironm
ent

Page 75



Implementation of Policy HE1- how we will achieve this

The Council will seek to:

1. Ensure appropriate specialist advice and guidance is available, by preparing
character appraisals, management plans and design guidance for its designated
areas and historic assets, in partnership with the local community, guided by the
Conservation Forum and where possible, aided by English Heritage.

2. Regularly review its Historic Environment Record (HER) and designations, and
update character appraisals andmanagement plans for conservation areas, ensuring
national and local interest groups, and residents are consulted.

3. Pro-actively manage heritage assets, including those considered “At Risk” by English
Heritage, working with heritage groups and partners where appropriate, to ensure
buildings and structures such as those at Eastcote House Gardens, RAF Uxbridge
and Breakspear House are repaired and reused.

4. Promote the Borough’s heritage by continuing to ensure that it is included in the
London Open House event; to improve the interpretation of historic assets, such as
Manor Farm, Ruislip; and to recognise local schemes of exceptional quality or
innovation by, for example, applying for Civic Trust, Green Apple and The Mayors
Great Spaces Awards.

5. Include more specific guidance relating to historic buildings and other conservation
matters, in the Development Management Policies and supporting guidance
contained within the forthcoming Heritage Strategy Supplementary Planning
Document, together with the relevant Area Action Plans.

Monitoring - how we will measure success of Policy HE1

The number of listed buildings removed from the English Heritage 'Buildings at Risk
Register' will be monitored under Local Indicator LO20 of the AMR.
The percentage of conservation areas with appraisals and management plans will
be monitored under Local Indicator LO19 of the AMR and BV219b.
The numbers of historic buildings open to the public on a regular basis.
The number of applications refused on listed building or conservation grounds and
upheld at appeal.

Built Environment

Design

7.5 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built environment is of critical importance
if the attractive character and identity of Hillingdon is to be retained. There is a need to
reinforce the importance of ensuring that development is designed having regard to, and
responding positively to its context, whilst contributing positively to the environment. This
ensures that elements of local character and distinctiveness are reinforced that the
environment is protected and enhanced and that design quality is a priority.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201068

7
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
H
is
to
ric

an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t

Page 76



7.6 Although Hillingdon is committed to increase housing provision, quantity will not be
provided at the expense of quality. The Council considers that any higher density development
in the Borough should not compromise the ability to achieve a sustainable layout, high quality
design and an attractive appearance. The Borough endorses the government's agenda for
mixed communities and seeks to provide spatial guidance for its delivery. The Council's
adopted 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) provides guidance
on design of new development to achieve integrated, sustainable developments of lifetime
home standards. The 'Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement' (HDAS) SPD promotes
good practice guidance on high quality design for all new developments in the Borough, as
well as shopfronts, transport interchanges and the public realm.

7.7 The LDF is required to monitor the design performance of development through
‘Building for Life’, the national standard for well designed homes and neighbourhoods. The
criteria have been designed so as to establish an objective set of principles by which the
judgement of applications and the built quality of housing can be undertaken consistently.
Each housing development scheme is awarded a score out of 20, based on the proportion
of Building for Life questions that are answered positively. Scores include the Gold Standard
(16 or more out of 20) and Silver Standard (14 or more out of 20). For residential schemes,
all new developments of 10 dwellings or over should achieve a Building for Life assessment
rating of silver standard as a minimum.

7.8 The Code for Sustainable Homes (Communities and Local Government) is a new
national standard for sustainable design and construction of new homes. It measures the
sustainability against design categories, rating the ‘whole home’ as a complete package. The
design categories included within the Code are energy/ carbon dioxide, surface water run-off,
health and well-being, water, waste management, materials, pollution and ecology. The
Council will encourage all new build residential development to meet Code level 4.

7.9 Large parts of the Borough are sensitive to the impact of taller buildings by virtue of
the high environmental quality that currently exists, with heritage and open space constraints
and their lower density character and development patterns in some parts of the boroughs.
In general, a tall building is defined by CABE and English Heritage as one that is substantially
taller than its neighbours or significantly changes the skyline. While tall buildings offer the
opportunity for intensive use, their siting, design, effect on views, impact on local micro-climate
and provision of communal and private amenity spaces should be carefully considered in
order to not detract from the nature of surrounding places and the quality of life for those
living and working around them.

7.10 Tall buildings may be acceptable in a limited number of suitable locations where the
Council considers that they will not seriously harm the surrounding area and its heritage
assets, and will also deliver wider benefits to the proposed Opportunity Area. Appropriate
locations for tall buildings are parts of the Uxbridge and Hayes . The height of buildings should
be appropriate to the surrounding townscape. All such proposals will require appropriate
accompanying urban design assessments and will be assessed using the criteria for evaluation
identified by CABE and English Heritage in ‘Guidance on Tall Buildings’ and local guidance.

London Borough of Hillingdon

69Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

7
C
ore

P
olicies

-
H
istoric

and
B
uiltE

nvironm
ent

Page 77



Accessibility

7.11 The Council will seek to provide robust neighbourhoods which are attractive and
capable of being used for many purposes, by different people and with the potential for
change and adaptation. The Borough recognises that 15% of the population have an
impairment, mobility or otherwise, and provision should be made to allow equal, easy and
dignified access to buildings, places and spaces. Furthermore, the Council recognises that
neighbourhoods should ensure adequate accessibility to housing, employment and public
amenities to permit equal opportunities for the whole community (see Policy T4).

7.12 Accessibility for disabled people is legislated under the Disability Discrimination Act
(DDA) 1995 (amendment) Regulations 2003, and is included within the London Plan. The
requirement is for new and existing buildings to be accessible. New housing should be
designed to ensure that it can easily be modified to meet the needs of people with disabilities.
It should also incorporate the principles of “Lifetime Homes” so that as people become less
mobile it continues to meet their needs. The percentage of local authority buildings suitable
for and accessible by disabled people is measured using BVPI 156. At present 15.2% of
buildings in the borough are accessible (London Development Database, 2008/9). A
comparison to Greater London (21.5%) and the national figure (36.5%) shows that Hillingdon,
although improving, can make improvements.

7.13 The Council will seek to encourage inclusive access at the neighbourhood level
ensuring that places of work and leisure, streets, neighbourhoods, parks and open spaces
are designed to meet the needs of the community at all stages of people’s lives in line with
the emerging replacement London Plan.

Crime and safety

7.14 The Council’s 'Place Survey 2008/9’ identified that the three top priority areas which
residents felt were important to making a good place to live were the level of crime (63%),
clean streets (47%) and health services (44%). 71% of residents felt very or fairly satisfied
with their local area as a place to live. In the Hillingdon Crime and Disorder Survey 2009,
70% of respondents felt safe in their local neighbourhood (compared with 75% in 2007) and
54% of respondents felt that crime/ anti-social behaviour did not restrict their lives.

7.15 Fear of crime and anti-social behaviour is an issue highlighted by Hillingdon residents
and making Hillingdon safer is one of the Council’s corporate priorities. The Safer Hillingdon
Partnership Plan for 2009/10 identifies five priorities:

1. Reducing violence
2. Reducing serious acquisitive crime
3. Tackling anti-social behaviour
4. Reduce harm caused by fire and road accidents
5. Community engagement & increasing public confidence

7.16 The challenge we face is to make the borough a safer place while ensuring it maintains
the vibrancy that makes it such a popular place to live, work in and visit. The LDF can
contribute to these priorities by helping to reduce the opportunity for and incidence of crime

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201070

7
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
H
is
to
ric

an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t

Page 78



and help to reduce the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour. Crime Prevention Design
Advisors can provide advice on safe and secure environments and Secured by Design
Standards.

7.17 In addition, the Borough is home to Heathrow Airport and with the on-going threat
from international terrorism there is a need for the Council and developers to give appropriate
weight to counter terrorism design measures in new development schemes which are likely
to attract large numbers of people. The Council's forthcoming 'Crowded Places Supplementary
Planning Document' will provide design principles and practical approaches on how to reduce
the vulnerability of crowded places to terrorist attacks.

Health

7.18 The Council recognises the role of design of housing, the wider built environment and
the public realm in promoting goodmental and physical health. Depression and anxiety pose
significant health problems in the UK and high quality and well thought out design can reduce
the incidence of these problems. Key factors associated with poor mental well-being include
a lack of ‘escape facilities’ such as green space and social infrastructure, a sense of
overcrowding, fear of crime and dissatisfaction with existing living conditions and the local
area (for example noise problems from neighbours, high rise buildings, poor quality housing
and a lack of privacy).

7.19 The quality, functionality and condition of the public realm have a direct bearing on
the image of Hillingdon, how well neighbourhoods function, and how people interact and
enjoy open spaces. The Council will seek to promote high-quality streets and public spaces
and introduce public art which taps into the diversity of local communities. The Council
welcomes partnerships with local businesses, groups and other stakeholders to improve the
streetscape and create an interesting, culturally diverse image of Hillingdon.

7.20 Correspondingly good physical health can be promoted by ensuring provision of
adequate space for sport and recreation, and by designing environments to facilitate physical
activity by walking and cycling (see Policy T4). This can reduce the incidence of obesity and
cardiovascular disease. Additionally, any reduction in the use of the private car for transport
would help to improve air quality in the borough thereby resulting in positive effects on the
incidence of respiratory ailments. The Council seeks to ensure that new developments and
regeneration schemes are designed to facilitate good mental health as well as good physical
health.

Biodiversity

7.21 Biodiversity should be promoted and increased in urban as well as rural locations, in
small scale as well as large-scale projects. Targeted green initiatives to enhance urban
streets and places with, for example, pocket parks, the planting of street trees or green roof
gardens, have a strong impact on the appearance of the area, and also contribute to a greener
and healthier environment by removing some pollutants and greenhouse gases from the
environment.

7.22 The Development Management DPD will address issues in relation to the detailed
application of Core Strategy policy on the quality of the built environment and public realm.

London Borough of Hillingdon

71Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

7
C
ore

P
olicies

-
H
istoric

and
B
uiltE

nvironm
ent

Page 79



Strategic Objectives:

SO1: Preserve and enhance the Borough’s heritage by ensuring new development,
including changes to the public realm, is of high quality design, appropriate to the
age and architecture of the asset, and sensitive to the character of its wider setting.
SO2: Create high quality sustainable design, distinctive, safe, functional and
accessible neighbourhoods that reinforce the identity and suburban qualities of the
borough's places and serve the long-term needs of all residents.
SO3: Improve the quality of and accessibility to, the borough’s open spaces, including
rivers and canals as areas for sports, recreation, visual interest and biodiversity. In
addition, address open space needs by providing new space identified in Hillingdon's
Open Space Study.
SO4: Ensure that development contributes to a reduction in crime and disorder, is
resilient to terrorism, and delivers safe and secure buildings, spaces and inclusive
communities.
SO6: Promote social inclusion through equality of opportunity and equality of access
to social, educational, health, employment, recreational, green space and cultural
facilities for all in the borough, particularly for residents living in areas of identified
need.
SO7: Address Hillingdon’s housing needs by providing affordable housing as
identified in Hillingdon's Housing Needs Study.
SO8: Protect and enhance biodiversity to support the necessary changes to adapt
to climate change. Where possible, encourage the development of wildlife corridors.
SO9: Promote healthier and more active lifestyles through the provision of access
to a range of sport, recreation, health and leisure facilities.
SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure
facilities, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of
the borough through well planned routes and integrated public transport.
SO11: Address the impacts of climate change, in particular, minimise carbon
emissions from new development and transport.

Related Policy: HE1

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201072

7
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
H
is
to
ric

an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t

Page 80



Policy BE1: Built Environment

The Council will require all new development to improve and maintain the quality of the
built environment in order to create successful and sustainable neighbourhoods, where
people enjoy living and working and that serve the long-term needs of all residents. New
developments should:

1. Achieve a high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations, extensions and the
public realm which enhances the local distinctiveness of the area, contributes to
community cohesion and a sense of place;

2. Be designed to be appropriate to the identity and context of Hillingdon's buildings,
townscapes, landscapes and views, and make a positive contribution to the local
area in terms of layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity
of surrounding land and buildings, particularly residential properties;

3. Be designed to include “Lifetime Homes” principles so that they can be readily
adapted to meet the needs of those with disabilities and the elderly and encouraging
places of work and leisure, streets, neighbourhoods, parks and open spaces to be
designed to meet the needs of the community at all stages of people’s lives;

4. For all new residential developments of 10 dwellings or over, achieve a Building for
Life assessment rating of 'silver' as a minimum;

5. Improve areas of poorer environmental quality, including within the areas of relative
disadvantage of Hayes, Yiewsley and West Drayton;

6. Incorporate a clear network of routes that are easy to understand, inclusive, safe,
secure and connect positively with interchanges, public transport, community facilities
and services;

7. Improve the quality of the public realm and provide for public and private spaces
that are attractive, safe, functional, diverse, sustainable, accessible to all, respect
the local character and landscape, integrate with the development, promote and
encourage biodiversity, encourage physical activity and where appropriate introduce
public art;

8. Create safe and secure environments that reduce crime and fear of crime, anti-social
behaviour and fire having regard to Secure by Design standards and address
resilience to terrorism in major development proposals.

9. Not result in the inappropriate development of gardens that erode the character and
biodiversity of suburban areas;

10. Maximise the opportunities for all new homes to contribute to tackling climate
change. All new residential development should achieve at least Code for
Sustainable Homes level 4. All new non-residential development should achieve
BREEAMVery Good standard. All refurbishment development should aim to achieve
the highest levels of new quality designs appropriate to the work being carried out.

London Borough of Hillingdon

73Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

7
C
ore

P
olicies

-
H
istoric

and
B
uiltE

nvironm
ent

Page 81



11. In the case of tall buildings, not adversely affect their surroundings or impact on
important local views. Appropriate locations for tall buildings are parts of the Uxbridge
and Hayes, the height of buildings should be appropriate to the surrounding
townscape.

Support will be given for proposals that are consistent with local strategies, guidelines,
supplementary planning documents and development management policies.

Implementation of Policy BE1- how we will achieve this

This policy will be operated through the Council’s and Hillingdon Partners development
programmes in relation to both buildings and the public realm. The Council will:

Identify in the Site Allocations DPD, LDF sites where redevelopment would provide
an opportunity to improve the local environment;
Adopt the Draft Public Realm SPD to ensure that all works within the public realm
contribute to maintaining and improving thequality of the local environment.

In relation to new development, developers will have to justify their design decisions
within a Design and Access Statement for each application. For residential schemes of
over 10 units, developers will need to demonstrate how the ‘Building for Life’ criteria are
met and how the proposal will meet at least a 'silver' standard. There will be more detailed
policies within the Development Management Development Plan document and
Supplementary Planning Documents on specific design and conservation issues.

This policy will be implemented, in conjunction with the other policies in the plan, through
the determination of planning applications and the preparation of the Development
Management and Site Allocations DPDs and Supplementary Planning Documents which
could include Design Briefs.

Monitoring - how we will measure success of policy BE1

1. Public satisfaction with visual character of the built environment (Local);
2. Amenity space standards (Local);
3. Public art provision (Local): and
4. The AMR (Core Indicator H6 on Housing Quality) will monitor the number and

proportion of total new build completions on housing sites reaching 'very good' (16
points or more/ Gold Standard) and ‘good' (14 -15 points/ Silver Standard), 'average'
(10-14 points) and 'poor' (10 points or less) ratings against the Building for Life
Criteria.

5. All new housing proposals are required to meet Lifetime Home Standards and 10%
of all housing units onmajor planning applications (10 units or more) are also required
to be wheel chair accessible and these will be monitored under BVPI 156.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201074

7
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
H
is
to
ric

an
d
B
ui
lt
E
nv
iro
nm

en
t

Page 82



8 Core Policies - Environmental Management

8.1 Managing Hillingdon’s natural environment is one of the main challenges for this Core
Strategy. Hillingdon has a considerable network of green spaces as well as rivers and canals.
These natural environments are essential to the diversity of the borough as well as promoting
a healthy way of life and helping to mitigate the effects of climate change.

8.2 Hillingdon’s population is expected to grow over the life of this Core Strategy, and there
will be increasing pressure on the natural environment to accommodate growth, and to
manage the increasing human impacts.

8.3 Hillingdon’s natural environment is highly important to the attractiveness and
performance of the Borough and its protection and enhancement is an essential element of
the Core Strategy. This chapter sets out the way that Hillingdon will protect and enhance the
environment over the period of the Core Strategy. The Environmental Management chapter
is organised into five parts: 1) climate change adaptation and mitigation; 2) open spaces,
rivers and canal corridors; 3) biodiversity and geological conservation; 4) water, air and noise;
and 5) minerals and waste management.

Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

Strategic Objectives

SO8: Protect and enhance biodiversity to support the necessary changes to adapt
to climate change. Where possible, encourage the development of wildlife corridors.
SO10: Improve air and water quality and safeguard quiet areas from noise pollution.
SO11: Address the impacts of climate change, in particular, minimise carbon
emissions from new development and transport.
SO12: Reduce the reliance on the use of the car by promoting safe and sustainable
forms of transport, such as improved walking and cycling routes and encouraging
travel plans.

Related policies: EM1, EM7, EM8, CP2, T1

8.4 Climate change is a global problem that requires local action as well as national. The
Climate Change supplement to PPS1 acknowledges that the UK is likely to see more extreme
weather events, including hotter and drier summers, flooding and rising sea-levels. The 2006
Stern Review assessed the impacts of climate change on the UK population and concluded
that there will be profound and rising costs for global and national prosperity as well as severe
effects on people’s health and the natural environment. Responding to this challenge, the
Government has set a legally binding target of reducing CO2 emissions by 80% by 2050
with the Mayor of London setting a regional target of 60% for London by 2025 (36).

8.5 However, reducing emissions is only part of the climate change challenge and we also
have to ensure that we can adapt to the changing climate. The more extreme changes in
weather pattern could lead to water shortages and conversely, an increased risk of flooding

36 Replacement London Plan (2009), Greater London Authority

London Borough of Hillingdon

75Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 83



and hotter summers will require greater consideration of urban heat islands and the need for
cooling in new development. In addition, the natural environment will come under threat
from the changing climate as well as from increasing development pressures.

Main Challenges

8.6 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies four main challenges relating to climate change
adaptation and mitigation:

Pressure to balance the demands of growth and the impacts of flood risk with minimal
harm on the environment
The need to mitigate noise and air quality impacts, especially around Heathrow and the
road network
National and EU requirements to meet Climate Change and Carbon Dioxide emission
targets
Threats to the biological and geological interests of the borough from development
pressures and climate change

8.7 The Borough is committed to ensuring that new development will address the climate
change challenge. However, this challenge should not be seen as a radical change in an
approach with new demands being placed on developers, instead it should be viewed as an
opportunity to help deliver against a number of Borough wide aspirations. Responding to
the challenge should result in a higher quality development for the Borough that as well as
mitigating and adapting to climate change has the added benefit of:

Reducing annual energy consumption and costs for existing and future generations.
Reducing the pressures on water resources.
Providing a greater interaction between built and natural environment and making more
space for wildlife.
Promoting a healthier way of life.
Helping to clean-up air quality.
Exploiting the opportunities from the ‘green economy’ and associated employment
prospects.
Helping development to be ready for future changes now, and not locking in the need
for future generations to alter buildings to address climate change.

8.8 The London Heat Mapping exercise revealed several areas within the Borough have
concentrated areas of high heat demand. These areas represent opportunities to deliver
district heating networks that can provide an efficient form of delivering the heating demands
of large areas. Heating networks are developed around a central location that produces
heat, either directly through gas fired heat and power, or from waste heat from large scale
power stations. These networks can provide a resource efficient method of supplying heat
to residential and commercial units. This saves energy, money and importantly helps to
reduce carbon emissions. The PPS1 Climate Change Supplement consultation includes
requirements for Councils to investigate potential for district heating networks. The Borough
intends to complete a heat mapping exercise similar to the London wide approach. Developers
will be required to follow the policies that emerge from the exercise and these will be laid out
in the development management document.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201076

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 84



8.9 Climate change is a very broad subject and cannot be tackled by an isolated policy
issue. For example, a policy on reducing the reliance on private car use is included within
the transport section (see policies T1, T2, T3 and T4), and matters for sustainable design
are included within the built environment section (see policy CP2). Climate change is not a
separate topic that needs addressing but is integrated within the Core Strategy framework.
Policy EM1 below includes criteria that need to be considered throughout the development
of the LDF. The subsequent Site Allocations DPD and Development Management DPD
along with any future SPD's must accord with the overarching principles of this policy.

London Borough of Hillingdon

77Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 85



Policy EM1: Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

The Council will ensure that climate change mitigation is addressed at every stage of
the development process by:

1. Prioritising higher density development in urban and town centres that are well
served by sustainable forms of transport.

2. Promoting a modal shift away from private car use and requiring new development
to include innovative initiatives to reduce car dependency.

3. Ensuring development meets the highest possible design standards whilst still
retaining competitiveness within the market.

4. Encouraging new development to provide energy efficiency initiatives that can benefit
the existing building stock.

5. Promoting the use of decentralised energy within large scale development.
6. Targeting areas of poor air quality for additional carbon emissions reductions.
7. Encouraging the bioremediation(37)of brownfield land where appropriate to avoid

unnecessary landfilling.

The Borough will ensure that climate change adaptation is addressed at every stage of
the development process by:

8. Locating and designing development to minimise the probability and impacts of
flooding.

9. Giving preference to development of previously developed land to avoid the loss of
further green areas.

10. Promoting the use of living walls and roofs, alongside sustainable forms of drainage
to manage surface water run-off and increase the amount of carbon sinks(38).

11. Promoting the inclusion of passive design(39) measures to reduce the impacts of
urban heat effects.

37 Bioremediation can be defined as any process that uses microorganisms or their
enzymes to return the environment altered by contaminants to its original condition.
Source: http://www.bionewsonline.com/w/what_is_bioremediation.htm

38 A carbon sink is a natural or manmade reservoir that accumulates and stores some
carbon-containing chemical compound for an indefinite period. The natural environment
works as a carbon sink absorbing Carbon Dioxide and generating oxygen. Source:
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Carbon_sink)

39 Passive design is about ensuring that the fabric of the building and the spaces within
it respond effectively to local climate and site conditions in order to maximise comfort
for the occupants. Source: http://www.level.org.nz/passive-design/)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201078

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 86



Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement policy EM1 through the topic policies in the Core Strategy.

The above criteria is essential to ensuring that this Core Strategy and future LDF plans
and programmes can help the Borough respond positively to climate change. The
implementation of the criteria is embedded within most of the Core Strategy policies.

In addition to the above, there will be a requirement to include the criteria in the
development of the Heathrow Opportunity Area Development Management Document.
This will ensure that this highly important growth area is fully considerate of the
environmental challenges alongside the social and economic matters.

All the above criteria will be fed into the preparation of the Development Management
Development Plan Document (DM DPD). This DPD will provide further details which
development proposals must follow.

A separate Heat Mapping Exercise will be undertaken by the Council in accordance with
the emerging Planning Policy Statement Climate Change Supplement. This will build on
the work in the London Heat Mapping exercise which has revealed possible opportunities
for district heat networking to provide a more efficient approach to community heating
needs. Policies in the DM DPD will require developers to investigate and link into
identified networks.

Flexibility

Figures for reducing CO2 emissions in Hillingdon take account of national targets and
regional targets in the London Plan (2009). Proposed figures in the Replacement London
Plan (2009) have not been agreed and may change as a result of the London Plan EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

79Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 87



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of the policy EM1 will be through the AMR with specific links to:

E1 (Core) Indicator:Number of planning permissions granted contrary to the advice
of the Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water quality. Target:
No planning permission will be granted contrary to the advice of the Environment
Agency on either flood defence grounds or water quality (or any other targets set
by Government).

E2 (Core) Indicator:Change in areas of biodiversity importance. Target: i) Preserve
the area of wildlife habitats; and ii) Minimise loss of designated areas to development
(or any other targets set by Government).

E3 (Core) Indicator: Renewable energy generation. Target: 10% of energy needs
from renewable sources for larger applications (or any other targets set by
Government).

LO16 (Local) Indicator: The average standard assessment procedure (SAP) rating
of local authority owned dwellings. Target: BV63 Increase energy efficiency of local
authority owned dwellings. Target for 2006/07 was 71.5. Targets for, 2007/08,
2008/09 and 2009/10 are 67.5, 68 and 68.5 respectively.

LO17 (Local) Indicator: Annual average concentrations of nitrogen dioxide (NO2)
in specific parts of the Borough. Target: 40 μg/.m³.

National Indicators 186: Per Capita CO2 emissions in the local area.

National Indicator 188: Planning to adapt to climate change.

National Indicator 197: Improved local biodiversity – active management of local sites.

Open Spaces, Rivers and Canal Corridors

Strategic Objectives

SO3: Improve the quality of and accessibility to, the borough’s open spaces, including
rivers and canals as areas for sports, recreation, visual interest and bio-diversity. In
addition, address open space needs by providing new space identified in Hillingdon's
Open Space Study.

SO9: Promote healthier and more active lifestyles through the provision of access to a
range of sport, recreation, health and leisure facilities.

Related policies: EM2, EM3, EM4, EM5

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201080

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 88



8.10 Open spaces, including its network of green spaces, woodlands, river and canal
corridors are among the borough’s most valuable assets and a fundamental part to the
borough’s character that is appreciated by residents and visitors alike.

8.11 The borough is characterised by an extensive network of open spaces, from the large
expanse of Green Belt land, countryside and woodlands in the north, Colne Valley Regional
Park stretching north to south along the western edge of the borough, and a network of
Metropolitan Open Land, Green Chains, smaller parks and open spaces, playing fields both
public and private, river and canal corridors in between.

8.12 Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains have an important role to
play as part of Hillingdon's multi-functional green infrastructure and are a strategic feature
of the borough.

8.13 The river and canal corridors and associated hinterlands (also known as the Blue
Ribbon Network) link across borough boundaries and also have a strategic function in west
London.

8.14 Other types of open spaces are also important in the context of a suburban and
densely built-up area, such as roof terraces, front and back gardens including trees, wildlife
gardens, allotments and amenity areas around housing estates.

8.15 Hillingdon’s open spaces, rivers and canals play an important role in helping to tackle
climate change. The natural environment works as a carbon sink absorbing Carbon Dioxide
and generating oxygen. Climate change is a major global challenge and loss of carbon sinks,
particularly on a large scale, is detrimental to tackling this problem. In addition, the green
and blue networks of open space, rivers and canals, are integral to the delivery of sustainable
development. They also promote a healthy way of life, encourage social cohesion, and
provide an attractive alternative environment to an urban setting.

8.16 For the purpose of the Core Strategy, the network of open space is organised into
three categories: 1) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains; 2) river and
canal corridors and 3) open spaces, sport and leisure.

Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

8.17 Green Belt: The Borough has 4,970 hectares of Green Belt (40). In physical and
perceptual terms the borough is the western edge and gateway to London. The Green Belt
extends westwards from the Colne Valley and covers much of the northern third of the
Borough with large tracts through Stockley Park and through Harmondsworth and Harlington
to the north of Heathrow Airport.

8.18 The most important attribute of green belts is their openness. The main purpose of
Hillingdon’s Green Belt is to keep land open and free from development, to maintain the
character and identity of individual settlements and to make a clear distinction between rural
and urban environments, in support of strategic objective SO3. The Core Strategy aims to

40 Strategic Environmental Assessment Environmental Report May 2005 (Amendments
made – 20 April 2006)

London Borough of Hillingdon

81Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 89



create sustainable communities by concentrating new development in urban areas and local
town centres. The Green Belt’s role is to help reinforce this strategy by strictly controlling
development in the open countryside.

8.19 Metropolitan Open Land (MOL): The borough contains 10 areas designated as
Metropolitan Open Land. This designation is given to areas of open land that have a
London-wide significance and that are considered to perform the following three functions:
providing a clear break in the urban fabric and contributing to the green character of London;
including open air facilities serving the leisure, recreational, sports, arts and cultural needs
of Londoners outside their local area; and containing a feature or landscape of historic,
recreational or biodiversity value of national or regional significance.

8.20 Green Chains:Hillingdon is fortunate to have a diversity of habitats, linked by natural
and man made corridors that enable flora and fauna to migrate into the centre of London.
The green links between sites, both for recreation and wildlife, include public footpaths,
bridleways, canals, rivers, streams and tree lined streets and road verges, all of which
contribute to the green network within the Borough.

8.21 Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains are included on Map 8.1.

8.22 The Green Belt Study (2006) is being reviewed and recommendations for minor
adjustments to address boundary anomalies to the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and
Green Chains will be contained in the emerging Study. Minor adjustments will be undertaken
in the Site Allocations DPD with more detailed policies in the Development Management
DPD.

Main Challenges

8.23 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies onemain challenge relating to Green Belt, Metropolitan
Open Land and Green Chains:

Pressure on the retention of Green Belt,Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains for
other uses

8.24 The largest Green Belt in the United Kingdom is around London (41). As Hillingdon is
the western wedge of London, and experiences significant development pressures, it is
committed to protect the character of these open areas from urban sprawl.

41 (Source: http://www.21stcenturychallenges.org/60-seconds/the-green-belt/)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201082

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 90



Map 8.1 Open Spaces

London Borough of Hillingdon

83Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 91



8.25 The main challenge is to protect the borough's Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land
and Green Chains, whilst supporting the balance of continued growth without spreading into
these open areas, keeping land permanently open and free from development. The
Replacement London Plan (2009) encourages farming and land based sectors in the green
belt to allow enough land for food production. A policy on food production will be addressed
in the Development Management DPD.

Policy EM2: Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

The Council will seek to maintain the current extent, hierarchy and strategic functions of
the Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains. Notwithstanding this, Green
chains will be reviewed for designation as Metropolitan Open Land in the Site Allocations
DPD and in accordance with the London Plan policies.

Minor adjustments to Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be undertaken in the
Site Allocations DPD.

Land at Brunel University, Harefield Hospital and Mount Vernon Hospital is identified as
Major Developed Sites in the Green Belt.

Any proposals for development in Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land will be
assessed against national and London Plan policies, including the exceptional
circumstances test.

Any proposals for development in Green Chains will be firmly resisted unless they
maintain the positive contribution of the Green Chain in providing a visual and physical
break in the built-up area; conserve and enhance the visual amenity and nature
conservation value of the landscape; encourage appropriate public access and
recreational facilities where they are compatible with the conservation value of the area,
and retain the openness of the green chain.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement Policy EM2:

Through the development management process, in accordance with national policy for
Green Belts and Metropolitan Open Land. Anomalies in local boundaries will be rectified
through Development Plan Documents in accordance with Planning Policy Guidance
Note 2.

Green Chains will be reviewed for designation asMetropolitan Open Land and designated
through Development Plan Documents as appropriate, in accordance with the London
Plan policies.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201084

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 92



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Number of planning applications refused on Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land
or Green Chains grounds
Number of appropriate developments approved on Green Belt and Metropolitan
Open Land
Net change in hectares of Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land or Green Chains
lost to development

River and Canal Corridors

8.26 The waterways of Hillingdon (referred to as the 'Blue Ribbon Network') and the
associated hinterlands form an important open space feature and flood mitigation zone within
the borough. Hillingdon has seven rivers and about 20 kms of the Grand Union Canal including
the Paddington and Slough spurs.

8.27 Rivers, streams, canals, lakes and their banks, provide habitat for a wide range of
flora and fauna. The waterways often provide the setting for views and vistas, provide a
sense of tranquillity, as well as the opportunity for transport and water based leisure and
recreation.

8.28 The aim of the Core Strategy is to promote the river and canal corridors as a key part
of Hillingdon's strategic open space network. The network will link and connect smaller, more
local open spaces with larger and more strategic ones, including the Colne Valley Regional
Park and key nationally and locally important habitats.

Main Challenges

8.29 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies two main challenges relating to rivers and canal
corridors:

The need to improve the quality of and access to open spaces, rivers and canals for all
groups of people in the community

Pressure to balance the demands of growth and the impacts of flood risk with minimal
harm on the blue ribbon environment

8.30 It is recognised that there are conflicts between the different roles and uses of the
Blue Ribbon Network. For example, there may be instances where the provision of greater
access and more activity would conflict with the aim to safeguard flood mitigation, ecological
value or water quality. Development proposals adjacent to these routes would need to take
account of these issues.

8.31 Consideration must also be given to the impact of development on flood risk both
within and downstream of the plan area (see policy EM6).

8.32 For the purpose of the Core Strategy, Hillingdon's waterways consist of six strategic
river and canal corridors. They can be given a hierarchy of importance as follows:

London Borough of Hillingdon

85Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 93



Regional importance - The Grand Union Canal Corridor crosses several local authority
boundaries and includes many multi-functional sites
Sub regional importance - The River Colne Corridor crosses more than 2 local authority
boundaries and includes a significant number of multi-functional sites
District importance - The River Pinn Corridor, Yeading Brook Corridor and the River
Crane Corridor. These three corridors are mostly contained within Hillingdon but have
potential connections with other local authority areas and contain a number of
multi-functional sites with the potential for further additions.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201086

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 94



Map 8.2 River and Canal Corridors

London Borough of Hillingdon

87Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 95



8.33 The multi-functional nature of strategic river and canal corridors means that a number
of development plan policies can support its implementation (e.g. landscape policy, flood
risk policy, open space policy, sport and leisure policy and sustainable transport policy). This
overarching policy EM3 will ensure these corridors are prioritised in planning decisions, and
features are identified on Map 8.2.

8.34 There are also opportunities to enhance the water quality and environmental
performance of the river and canal corridors. The Environment Agency have published the
Thames River Basin Management Plan which covers the pressures facing all water bodies
within London and the actions that will address them.

8.35 Waterfront development remains a popular interest for developers. The Council is
keen to ensure the river or canal benefits from any proposed development. The Council will
therefore set criteria within the subsequent Development Management DPD to require
developers to make a positive contribution to the river or canal.

Policy EM3: River and Canal Corridors

The Council will continue to promote and contribute to the positive enhancement of the
strategic river and canal corridors and the associated wildlife and habitats through the
Biodiversity Action Plan and the Thames River Basin Management Plan, and developer
contributions where appropriate.

The Council will continue to enhance the local character, visual amenity, leisure
opportunities and sustainable access to rivers and canals.

The Council will collaborate with adjacent local authorities to ensure that Hillingdon's
river and canal corridors complement and link with cross boundary corridors.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement policy EM3 by:

Working with the Environment Agency, British Waterways, Natural England and
other partners to develop a management plan for the Grand Union Canal and other
blue ribbon networks where they are not currently in place.
Working with partners to achieve environmental and habitat improvements in the
Colne Valley Regional Park.
Conserving and enhancing biodiversity, paying particular regard to priority species
and habitats identified in Hillingdon's Biodiversity Action Plan.
Improving access to and the quality of Hillingdon's river and canal corridors, thereby
providing a healthier lifestyle accessible to all.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201088

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 96



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of the above policy EM3 will be through the AMR with a specific link to:
E2 (Core) Change in areas of biodiversity importance - i) Preserve the area of
wildlife habitats; and ii) Minimise loss of designated areas to development (or
any other targets set by Government).

NI 189 - Flood risk management indicator.

Number of new and improved access points to the river and canal network.

Promote biodiversity benchmarking.

Open Spaces, Sport and Leisure

8.36 As Hillingdon is one of the least densely populated of all the London boroughs(42), it
contains large areas of public open space comprising of the following:

Green Belt land
Metropolitan Open Land (MOL)
Countryside Conservation Areas
trees and woodlands
nature conservation
amenity green spaces
outdoor sports facilities
natural and semi-natural areas
parks and gardens
green corridors
blue ribbon network
allotments

8.37 These all contribute towards an image of an outer London Borough that is relatively
well endowed with open spaces, green network and biodiversity.

8.38 Public open space: For the purpose of the Core Strategy, public open space is
defined as all open spaces of public value, including not just land, but also areas of water
such as rivers and canals which offer important opportunities for sport and recreation and
can also act as a visual amenity. The definition covers a broad range of types of open spaces
within the borough, whether in public or private ownership and whether public access is
unrestricted, limited or restricted.

8.39 Private open space: Private open space such as front and back gardens and trees,
green roofs and living walls add value in terms of visual amenity and can play a significant
role in reducing surface water run off rates thereby reducing the risk and effects of flooding
as well as supporting biodiversity.

42 http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/London_Borough_of_Hillingdon

London Borough of Hillingdon

89Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 97



8.40 Trees and woodlands: Hillingdon’s trees and woodlands are one of the borough’s
key assets. They support local ecosystems and help to tackle climate change by reducing
carbon dioxide levels and providing shade in the hotter summers. They are a key component
to the character of Hillingdon’s neighbourhoods and are a significant contributor to helping
to define a sense of place for many communities. It is for these reasons that Hillingdon has
over 600 Tree Preservation Orders and has nationally protected woodlands.

8.41 The Council is preparing a Tree and Landscape Strategy to identify such areas for
future protection and enhancement and ensure sustainablemanagement of tree and landscape
features for the benefit of the community as a whole. All the street trees in the borough have
been mapped and are part of a regular maintenance programme including replacement
planting where necessary.

8.42 Informal recreation: Open space more generally, whether part of a strategic open
space network or not, can serve as a vital focal point for community activities, bringing together
members of communities and providing opportunities for informal recreation and social
interaction, thereby contributing to the quality of life and and wellbeing of the community. It
plays a vital role in promoting healthy living and in the social development of children through
play, sporting activities and interaction with others.

8.43 Public Rights ofWay Network: The borough contains a Public Rights ofWay Network
that is approximately 112km long and encompasses both urban and rural routes. Urban paths
are mainly used for convenient short cuts to schools, shops, public transport and other local
amenities. Other public footpaths follow and cut through farmland, parks and open spaces,
woodland, nature reserves, golf courses, river banks and canal towpaths.

Main Challenges

8.44 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies three main challenges relating to open spaces:

The need to improve the quality of and access to open spaces, rivers and canals for all
groups of people in the community

Pressure to balance the demands of growth and the impacts of flood risk with minimal
harm on the blue ribbon environment

The need to mitigate noise and air quality impacts, especially around Heathrow and the
road network

8.45 Open spaces for active recreation - Developing the potential for open spaces to
provide and accommodate an expanding range of outdoor pursuits that will increase the
appeal and draw of using green spaces. This will enable green spaces to have a wider draw
by recognising changing and developing trends in demand for alternative opportunities in
active recreation. There is opportunity for Hillingdon's green spaces to provide a unique offer
in West London for both developing formal and informal opportunities to be physically active
to increase use while also recognising potential conflict with the need to adequately protect
the local environment.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201090

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 98



Visual amenity: The ways in which parks, open spaces, trees and woodlands contribute to
the visual amenity of Hillingdon are influenced by the amount of open space in the area and
the contribution it makes to the street scene and the wider landscape. Hillingdon has over
200 open spaces that contribute towards creating a visually attractive area and providing a
break in the built up townscape.

Countryside Conservation Areas: The traditional agricultural landscape is made up of
small fields, hedges, copses, woods and farm ponds, all of which contribute to the visual
amenity of the borough. As agricultural practises change, the elements that make up the
character of such a landscape often comes under threat. There are three Countryside
Conservation Areas in the borough (see map 8.1). The Core Strategy will need to ensure
protection of the borough's open spaces and landscape.

8.46 Quiet areas: The Borough is situated within close proximity of two motorways and
one major international airport. These pressures can have a detrimental impact on the
tranquillity of open space and reduce the enjoyment of those using it. The Environmental
Noise (England) Regulations 2006 (43)requires quiet or 'tranquil' areas to be identified and
protected from increases in environment noise. The Council will work with the Department
of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) to address this.

8.47 Population growth: The population is expected to increase by 5.3% over the period
of the Core Strategy (44), which will present more pressure on open space provision. In reality,
these pressures will affect some areas more than others as provision levels vary across the
Borough, with the south being far more built up than the north.

8.48 According to Hillingdon's Green Space Survey (2010), 60 - 78% of Hillingdon residents
are very or fairly satisfied with the borough's parks and green spaces. This is 9% higher than
the London average(45). The Core Strategy will need to ensure public satisfaction of the
borough's parks and green spaces improves over the plan period.

8.49 Public Rights of Way Network: The Council has prepared a Rights of Way and
Permissive Routes Improvement Plan (2009-2019), which proposes improvements to public
access routes, including connecting open spaces in the borough. The improvements will be
secured through policy T1 of the transport chapter (chapter 9),the Local Implementation Plan
proposals or through other funding opportunities. The Local Implementation Plan is addressed
in paragraph 9.1 of chapter 9.

8.50 Areas of Environmental Opportunity: The former Greater London Development
Plan identified four strategic linear features of the borough as areas for environmental
opportunity:

the Colne Valley
the M4/Brent Wedge Corridor (the “A4/M4 Linear Park”)
the area around Heathrow, and
the Western Avenue, A40

43 Source: http://www.opsi.gov.uk/si/si2006/20062238.htm
44 Source: Hillingdon Profile 2008
45 Source: CABE Space Urban Green Nation -

http://www.cabe.org.uk/files/urban-green-nation-summary.pdf

London Borough of Hillingdon

91Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 99



8.51 These are identified on Map 8.1.

8.52 A large part of the authority lies within the Colne Valley, a regional park located to
the immediate west of Greater London. The Park, which was established in 1967, includes
parts of Surrey, Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Hertfordshire and the London Borough of
Hillingdon. Former gravel workings are a specific characteristic of the area and this has
provided a reason for the creation of recreational lakes. It also has other areas of landscape
and nature conservation value, and provides countryside recreation for adjacent urban
populations. An association of local authorities known as the Colne Valley Partnership
co-ordinates the overall management of the Park. This is achieved primarily through a Vision
and Action Plan(46)agreed by the partnership.The implementation of the Plan is undertaken
by a wide range of partners, with Groundwork Thames Valley playing a major role.

8.53 The Council considers that strong development pressures on Areas of Environmental
Opportunity and the risk that land may be allowed to deteriorate in the hope of securing
development could undermine these important strategic concepts. The protection and
enhancement of these areas will be secured through policy EM4 with a more detailed policy
in the Development Management DPD.

8.54 The Core Strategy will bring about improvements in this figure by setting out a
requirement for open spaces, both old and new, to be of high quality, attractive to users,
accessible, well maintained and managed as part of the wider open space network.

Open space provision

8.55 The borough's Open Space Study is currently being revised and is due for publication
in spring 2010. It will provide a qualitative and quantitative audit of each site and an
assessment of current and future needs of the borough.

8.56 The Study sets quantity standards to provide a guideline as to howmuch open space,
sport and recreation provision per 1,000 people is needed to strategically serve the borough
over the plan period. Standards for each type of provision are created in relation to demand,
access and future population growth.

8.57 A quality standard is provided based on the audit and assessment of sites and provides
a minimum level of quality (percentage score), which sites should achieve.

8.58 An accessibility standard is also provided based on catchment areas and how far
people should be expected to travel to visit each type of provision. The recommendations
will be adopted in the Core Strategy with more detailed policies in the Development
Management DPD.

8.59 Hillingdon has fourteen Green Flag sites. The Council reviews the status of the
borough's parks annually and aspires to achieve Green flag status on all of the boroughs
parks over the plan period. In response to the need to improve the quality of open space,
the areas shown in Table 8.1 will be enhanced and improved to achieve Green Flag status
for 2010.

46 Colne Valley Regional Park Action Plan 2009-2012 -
http://www.colnevalleypark.org.uk/upload/documents/document55.pdf

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201092

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 100



Table 8.1 : Parks for Green Flag Status in 2010

Eastcote House

Pinkwell Park

Hayes End Community Park

Willow Tree

Yiewsley Recreation Ground

Hillingdon Court Park

Connaught

Colney Green

8.60 The Replacement London Plan (2009) sets a hierarchy of public open spaces which
have been applied to the Open Space Study. The areas that currently have little or no access
to local parks or open spaces within 400m (or 5 minutes walking time) will be identified as
priority areas for the creation of new public open space.

8.61 The creation of new open space is to be encouraged wherever practical, although it
is recognised that creation of new open spaces may be limited due to densely populated
areas and financial constraints.

Policy EM4: Open Space and Informal Recreation

The Council will safeguard, enhance and extend the network of open spaces, informal
recreational and environmental opportunities that meet local community needs and
facilitate active lifestyles by providing spaces within walking distance of homes. Provision
should be made as close as possible to the community it will serve. There will be a
presumption against any net loss of open space in the Borough.

The Council will require development proposals to address local deficiencies in quality,
quantity and accessibility of open spaces.

The Council will seek to protect existing tree and landscape features and enhance open
spaces with new areas of vegetation cover (including the linking of existing fragmented
areas) including front and back gardens for the benefit of wildlife and a healthier lifestyle,
mitigating climate change.

The Council will work with DEFRA to identify and protect open spaces that provide quiet
areas and relative tranquillity.

The Council will work with other local authorities and agencies to pursue the key aims
of the Colne Valley Park.

London Borough of Hillingdon

93Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 101



Implementation - how we will achieve this:

The Council will implement Policy EM4 by:

Improving the quality of accessible open space and provision of new open space
through developer contributions.

Protecting informal recreational spaces including allotments and promoting
participation in food growing opportunities.

Protecting and improving habitats and ecosystems throughout the Borough and to
areas beyond, by maintaining existing trees and native vegetation (adaptable to
climate change) and open spaces and creating new areas of tree and woodland
cover (including the linking of existing fragmented areas) for the benefit of wildlife
and in accordance with the local Biodiversity Action Plan.

Managing development to resist the loss of open spaces, trees and woodlands.

Implementing policy T4.

Improving the Public Rights of Way network secured through the Public Rights of
Way Improvement Plan and Local Implementation Plan proposals or through other
funding opportunities.

Developing a policy for Areas of Environmental Opportunity in the Development
Management DPD.

Joint working with other local authorities and agencies in the implementation of the
Colne Valley Vision and Action Plan 2009-2012.

Environmental improvement schemes undertaken or funded by the Council

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201094

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 102



Monitoring - how we will measure success:

Monitoring of the policy EM4 will be through the AMR with a specific link to:

LO18 Indicator: Amount of open spaces with Green Flag Awards. Target:
Increase the number of parks gaining Green Flag Status

Improve public satisfaction with the quality, accessibility and number of open spaces
in the borough

Review the quality of information in the Open Space Assessment submitted with
planning applications

Increase the area of land of new open space, including informal recreation space,
in areas identified as deficient in the Open Space Study

Number of applications refused on open space grounds

Increase the length of the Public Rights of Way network

BV178 - Hillingdon's Public Rights of Way performance indicator

Implementation of the Colne Valley Vision and Action Plan.

Amount of inappropriate development permitted in the Colne Valley Park.

Sport and Leisure

Strategic Objective

SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure facilities,
especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of the borough
through well planned routes and integrated public transport.

Related policy: EM5

Main Challenges

8.62 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies three main challenges relating to sport and leisure:

Pressure on the retention of green belt land for other uses
The need to improve the quality of and access to open spaces, rivers and canals for all
groups of people in the community
Need to ensure Hillingdon remains an attractive place to live

London Borough of Hillingdon

95Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 103



8.63 Sport and physical activity give people opportunities to learn skills, to express their
identities, and to share experiences. It gives them a sense of community and a stake in the
places where they live, contributing to a feeling of civic pride.

8.64 The borough's Open Space Study is currently being revised and is due for publication
in spring 2010. It will provide data on outdoor sports facilities, which includes grass and
synthetic playing pitches, tennis courts, multi-use game areas (MUGAs) and bowling greens.
The recommendations will be adopted in the Core Strategy with more detailed policies in the
Development Management DPD.

8.65 As part of the assessment of playing pitch provision, this should include both grass
pitches and artificial surfaces that can cater for year round participation of outdoor facilities.
In addition, there is an aspiration to undertake a similar appraisal of indoor facilities, identifying
opportunities to improve access through schools and other facilities including specialist
facilities for specific sports that will support higher level participation to excellence standard.

8.66 Through local forums such as the Community Sport & Physical Activity Network
(CSPAN), local Sports Partnership and Cricket Alliance, sports clubs have expressed the
need to develop certain facilities that are particular to the development of their sport as current
provision is either at capacity or not at the standard needed to fulfil local needs. This presently
includes velodrome facilities to sustain talent development in cycling, indoor tennis courts
and cricket facilities to complement outdoor facilities and ensure year round provision is
available.

8.67 Developing the sporting and the health benefits of an active lifestyle is a priority for
the Council. Sport and leisure is a high profile service area to ensure that “Hillingdon is a
more active, healthy, successful sporting Borough”. The Council with its very clear commitment
to sport and physical activity has matched its aspiration to provide high quality sports facilities
with increasing programmes of community based sports development, as well as supporting
athletes to achieve their full potential as elite performers.

8.68 The Mayor of London has recently published ‘A Sporting Future for London’ (47) that
is about increasing participation in sport and physical activity to encourage more people to
play sport in London in the run up to the 2012 Olympic Games. The plan, which aligns with
Sport England’s strategy to create sporting opportunities in every community, is designed to
capitalise on the once in a lifetime opportunity for the host city to create a lasting sporting
legacy.

8.69 The Council is committed to proving excellent opportunities for sport and leisure. Its
facilities include the new Hillingdon Sport and Leisure Complex with the first new 50m pool
in London for 40 years and the Sports and Leisure Centre at Botwell Green.

8.70 Attendance at leisure facilities in the borough has shown an upward trend over the
last 10 years with 802,595 in 2008/09. With the construction of Botwell Green Leisure Centre
in Hayes to replace other ageing facilities in the area and new additional facilities at Hillingdon
Sports & Leisure Complex, this figure is expected to continue to increase during the next few

47 Source: A Sporting Future for London, Greater London Authority, April 2009

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201096

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 104



years. The Mori residents satisfaction survey in 2009/10 shows a significant increase with
sports/leisure facilities. At 59%, around six in ten surveyed were satisfied which is a 14%
increase on the previous survey.

8.71 The National Active People 3 Survey results (October 2008 - October 2009) show
that 18.9% of the adult population took part in regular sport and active recreation which
although statistically insignificant is slightly down on the previous year (20.7%). The average
for London in 2008/9 was 21.2%. However, the number of people that took part in organised
sport has increased from 34.6% in 2007/8 to 39.5% which is slightly above the London
average of 38%.

8.72 This Core Strategy will meet future demand by improving access to sport and leisure
facilities, encouraging more people to take part in sport and active recreation and providing
new facilities to address local deficiencies.

Policy EM5: Sport and Leisure

The Council will:

safeguard, enhance and extend the network of sport and leisure spaces that meet
local community needs and facilitate active lifestyles by providing active sport and
leisure spaces within walking distance of home.
ensure that the overall Borough-wide target, identified in the Open Space Study, of
active sport and leisure facilities with unrestricted access is maintained. There will
be a presumption against any net loss of active sport and leisure facilities in the
Borough
ensure that future development includes features that designs activity into areas,
providing opportunities for improved cycle ways, formal and/or informal local sports
facilities, to encourage participation in a more active lifestyle
adopt a flexible approach to the provision of facilities that recognises changing
demographics in the population and trends in sports participation
promote Hillingdon's sport and leisure facilities to achieve more integrated public
accessibility and active lifestyles

London Borough of Hillingdon

97Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 105



Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement Policy EM5 by:

Identifying areas deficient of sport, recreation and leisure space, where new
developments will be expected to make contributions towards new or improved
facilities, or to secure public access to private facilities within the locality of the
development.
Protecting playing fields and recreational spaces and promoting opportunities for
participation in outdoor sport and leisure.
Protecting and improving habitats and ecosystems throughout the Borough and to
areas beyond, by maintaining existing trees and native vegetation (adaptable to
climate change) and open spaces and providing new areas of tree and woodland
cover (including the linking of existing fragmented areas) for the benefit of wildlife
in accordance with the local Biodiversity Action Plan.
Managing development to resist the loss of sport and leisure facilities

Monitoring - how we will measure success

Increase in the area of land open for sport and leisure
Increase in the area of new sport and leisure space, in areas identified in the Open
Space Study as deficient
Review quality and accessibility of sport and leisure facilities borough-wide
Review the quality of sport and leisure information in the Open Space Assessment
submitted with planning applications
Number of applications refused on play, sport or leisure grounds
Active People KPI 1 (NI8) - At least 3 days a week x 30 minutes moderate
participation (all adults)
Active People KPI 2 - At least 1 hour a week volunteering to support sport (all adults)
NI6 Participation in regular volunteering
NI57 Participation in School PE & Sport and the take up and range of opportunities
developed that contribute to the 5 hour offer.

Flood Risk Management

8.73 There are approximately 7000 properties (6%) at risk of flooding within Hillingdon (48).
However, this is just a broad statistic; what this does not describe is the cost of flood defences,
the possible impacts on businesses due to flooding, or the required responses on emergency
services.

48 Source: Environment Agency Hillingdon Borough: Environment summary:
http://www.ea-transactions.net/static/documents/Research/HILLINGDON_factsheet.pdf

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 201098

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 106



Map 8.3 Flood Risk Assessment

London Borough of Hillingdon

99Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 107



8.74 Due to the extensive network of waterways in Hillingdon, flooding is a significant
consideration in local planning matters. The Council has produced a Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment (SFRA)(2008)(49) incorporating the floodplain maps produced by the Environment
Agency.

8.75 Map 8.3 illustrates Hillingdon’s flood zone areas. These are separated into:

Flood Zone 1 – Low risk of flooding
Flood Zone 2 – Medium risk of flooding
Flood Zone 3a and 3b – High risk of flooding

8.76 The Local Development Framework has a role to play in reducing future levels of
flood risk. Detailed policies to address the location of new development, design and layout
will be developed through the Development Management DPD.

Main Challenges

8.77 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies twomain challenges relating to flood risk management:

The need to improve the quality of and access to open spaces, rivers and canals for all
groups of people in the community

Pressure to balance the demands of growth and the impacts of flood risk with minimal
harm on the blue ribbon environment

8.78 The key challenge is to balance the demands on growth with the impacts of flood
risk. These impacts will become greater in a changing climate with more extreme weather
events. In particular rainfall intensity is expected to increase resulting in a greater likelihood
of flooding.

8.79 The Core Strategy will need to have regard to the approach of the London Plan to
flooding. It will be necessary to ensure that new development takes into account the increased
risks of flooding as a result of changes to the climate and how this affects Hillingdon and to
protect vulnerable areas from river flooding. When assessing development sites and
allocations, flood risk should also be considered alongside other spatial planning issues such
as transport, economic growth, natural resources, regeneration, biodiversity and the historic
environment.

8.80 The Council will aim to avoid development in areas of flood risk in the first instance
and only seek to manage the risk once it can be demonstrated that there is no alternative
option.

8.81 Development proposed in flood zones 2 or 3 (medium and high risk) will need to
provide evidence of the Sequential Test outlined in Planning Policy Statement 25 (PPS25):
Development and Flood Risk. The Sequential Test will need to be applied to the subsequent
Site Allocations DPD. Development that is proposed in accordance with the Site Allocations
DPD and the Sequential Test will not be required to submit further evidence justifying why it

49 Source: http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=16232

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010100

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 108



is proposed in flood zone 2 or 3. Where development is not in line with the Site Allocations
DPD, it will need to submit clear evidence and justification that there are no other reasonably
available sites in a lower risk flood zone.

8.82 All development proposals in flood zones 2, 3a and 3b (medium and high risk) should
be accompanied by a Flood Risk assessment (FRA) in accordance with PPS25. Development
of over 1 hectare or identified as being within a problem surface water area should also be
accompanied by a FRA.

8.83 The probability of flooding can be reduced through the management of land, river
systems and flood defences, and the impact reduced through influencing the type of
development in flood risk areas, flood warning and emergency responses. New development
should be designed and located with flood risk in mind and more space provided for water
through better management of land for water storage and flood protection.

Policy EM6: Flood Risk Management

The Council will require new development to be directed away from away from flood
zones 2 and 3 in accordance with the principles of Planning Policy Statement 25.

The subsequent Site Allocations DPD will be subjected to the Sequential Test in
accordance with PPS25. Sites will only be allocated within flood zones 2 or 3 where
there are overriding issues that outweigh flood risk. In these instances, policy criteria
will be set requiring future applicants of these sites to demonstrate that flood risk can be
suitably mitigated.

The Council will encourage the use of sustainable urban drainage systems (SUDS)
across the borough in all developments. The Council may require developer contributions
to guarantee the long term maintenance and performance of SUDS is to an appropriate
standard.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement policy EM6 by:

Working with the Environment Agency, British Waterways, Natural England and
other partners to develop a management plan for the Grand Union Canal and other
blue ribbon networks where they are not currently in place.
Developing flood risk policies including SUDs in the Development Management
DPD

London Borough of Hillingdon

101Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 109



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of policy EM6 will be through the AMR with a specific link to:
E1 (Core) Indicator: Number of planning permissions granted contrary to the
advice of the Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water
quality. Target: No planning permission will be granted contrary to the advice
of the Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water quality.

NI 189 - Flood risk management indicator.
Number of planning permissions granted contrary to the advice of the Environment
Agency.
Number of new homes built in medium and high flood risk areas.

Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

Strategic Objectives

SO5: Safeguard and promote areas of geological importance and make a proportionate
contribution to West London’s target to extract 0.5 million tonnes of minerals.

SO8: Protect and enhance biodiversity to support the necessary changes to adapt to
climate change. Where possible, encourage the development of wildlife corridors.

Related policies: EM1, EM7

8.84 Biodiversity: Hillingdon is one of the most biodiverse boroughs in London. It has a
rich mixture of habitats including trees and woodlands, scrubs, grasslands, wetlands, rivers,
gardens and parklands, which are home to a vast range of species, both common and
protected.

8.85 Hillingdon has a number of designated nature conservation sites to aid the protection
of the most important areas. These are as follows:

6 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) – National designation
1 is a Site of National Nature Reserve (NNR) (Ruislip Woods, the largest block of ancient,
semi-natural woodland in Greater London)
4 Sites of Local Nature Reserve - Local designation
12 Sites of other Nature Reserves - Local designation
12 Sites of Metropolitan Grade Importance – London wide designation
15 Sites of Borough Grade 1 Importance – Hillingdon borough designation
25 Sites of Borough Grade II Importance – Hillingdon borough designation
7 Sites of Local Importance - Local designation
3 Sites of Countryside Conservation Area - Local designation

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010102

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 110



8.86 Geodiversity: Although there are no natural outcrops of rocks in Hillingdon, there
are exposures from human activity and one site has been recognised as a Regionally Important
Geological and Geomorphological Site (RIGS) - the Gravel Pits, Harefield. RIGS are selected
on a regional basis using four nationally agreed criteria and are considered the most important
places for geology and geomorphology outside statutorily protected land such as Sites of
Special Scientific Interest.

Main Challenges

8.87 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to biodiversity and
geological conservation:

Threat to biological and geological interests of the borough from development pressures
and climate change

8.88 Hillingdon’s biodiversity and geological interest is under threat from extensive economic
and social activity. The biggest threat comes from the direct competition for land between
wildlife habitats and the need to provide new development to deliver economic and social
growth. Even if spatial policies could protect areas of wildlife importance from development
pressures, there would be a residual threat from human interaction, air quality impacts and
pollution. A key challenge for this Strategy is to maintain and strengthen our networks of
natural habitats and green and open spaces.

8.89 Policies in the London Plan go some way to ensure that biodiversity and geological
conservation are taken into account in decision making and provide a commitment to protect
important habitat, species and sites of geological interest. The Borough's NNR and SSSI’s
are the most important areas of nature conservation, and the Gravel Pits, the only RIGS in
the borough, are generally in good condition. However, two of the SSSI’s, the Fray’s Farm
Meadows and Harefield Pit are considered to be declining (see map 8.4) (50).

8.90 However, the areas with least important or no designations are not eligible to receive
the level of protection to ensure they remain vital to the borough. Furthermore, there is no
requirement to reduce the indirect effects of development, such as increased access. As a
result, active management is required within nature conservation areas to maintain appropriate
standards.

8.91 The Core Strategy will encourage greater access to some of these biodiversity and
geological conservation areas, where greater pressures on them can be accommodated.
The challenge is to balance continued growth, with a need to protect and more importantly
enhance the conservation and geological interests of the borough.

8.92 The Core Strategy will also ensure that biodiversity measures will be integrated into
either the boundary of a development or the fabric of a building. Living roofs and walls can
provide valuable natural habitat in an urban environment and can also help with the
improvement of air quality. They will also act as natural carbon sinks that will help to tackle
climate change.

50 Source: Environment Agency Hillingdon Borough: Environment Summary:
http://www.ea-transactions.net/static/documents/Research/HILLINGDON_factsheet.pdf

London Borough of Hillingdon

103Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 111



Map 8.4 Sites of Importance for Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010104

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 112



Policy EM7: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

The Council will seek to designate further Borough Sites of Important Nature Conservation
with grade 1, 2 and local designations in the Site Allocations Document. These
designations will be based on previous recommendations from the Greater London
Authority.

In order to protect and enhance Hillingdon's biodiversity and geological conservation
interests, priority will be given to:

1. Fray’s Farm Meadows and Harefield Pit for increased nature conservation and
enhancement and the Gravel Pits (RIGS).

2. Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation as appropriate to the site's classification.
These will be kept under review in partnership with Greenspace Information for
Greater London (GIGL).

3. The provision of biodiversity improvements from all development, where feasible.
4. The protection of priority species and habitats identified within the London Biodiversity

Action Plan and the Hillingdon Biodiversity Action Plan.
5. The provision of green roofs and living walls which contribute to biodiversity and

help tackle climate change.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement policy EM7 by:

Raising the profile of the biodiversity and geological interests both locally, regionally
and nationally
Supporting, improving and managing biodiversity interests and local geological sites
through the planning process
Protecting and where feasible extend habitat and improve ecosystems throughout
the Borough and to areas beyond, by maintaining existing trees, native vegetation
(adaptable to climate change) and open space and provide new areas of such
vegetation (including the linking of existing fragmented areas) for the benefit of
wildlife in accordance with the local Biodiversity Action Plan.
Seeking and pooling contributions in accordance with the Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document towards the implementation of actions contained
within Hillingdon's Biodiversity Action Plan.
Working with partners, private landowners and other utility providers to achieve
multi-functional use of land use that promotes and enhances biodiversity, adds to
the green grid or achieves other open space outcomes, including improved
accessibility.

London Borough of Hillingdon

105Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 113



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of policy EM7 will be through the AMR with a specific link to:
E2 (Core) Indicator: Change in areas of biodiversity importance including;
change in areas designated for their intrinsic environmental value including
sites of international, national, regional, sub-regional or local significance. Target:
i) Preserve the area of wildlife habitats ii) Minimise loss of designated areas to
development (or any other target set by Government).

Number of biodiversity and geological conservation sites lost to development
Number of applications refused on biodiversity or geological interest grounds
Number of local sites actively managed
Number of additional nature conservation sites designated.
Implementation of Hillingdon's Biodiversity Action Plan.

Water, Air and Noise Management

Strategic Objectives

SO9: Improve air and water quality and safeguard quiet areas from noise pollution

SO10: Address the impacts of climate change, in particular, minimise carbon emissions
from new development and transport

Related policies: EM1, EM8

8.93 Water quality: Water quality does not directly impact on human health in the same
way as air quality. Nonetheless, water quality is integral to a healthy environment. Good
quality water in rivers and streams feed the wider surroundings and plays a part in ensuring
there is a diverse variety of wildlife within the borough.

8.94 Industrial processes and human interference have a negative impact on the quality
of water. Illegal dumping, the proliferation of poor quality discharges and urban diffuse pollution
all undermine the quality of water, and in turn have impacts on wildlife and the natural setting.
Diffuse water pollution can arise from many sources, which may be small individually, but
their collective impact can be damaging. Diffuse pollution can be caused by current and past
land use in agricultural and urban environments.(51)

8.95 The Grand Union Canal has good overall ecological (biological and chemical) potential
in the Thames River Basin Management Plan. The River Colne, River Pinn and Yeading
Brook (West and East arm) have all been classified as having moderate overall ecological
(biological and chemical) potential. The River Crane has been classified as having poor

51 http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/business/topics/pollution/32220.aspx

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010106

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 114



overall ecological (biological and chemical) potential(52). All these water-bodies currently at
moderate or poor should reach good overall ecological (biological and chemical) potential
by 2027 under the Water Framework Directive. These are indicated on Map 8.5.

8.96 Air Quality: The northern part of the borough is largely rural, with an abundance of
green areas and open space. There are fewer major road routes, and industrial activity is
relatively light. Overall, this has a positive impact on air quality where people can reap the
benefits of good clean air.

8.97 The situation is considerably different in the south of the borough, with more industry,
commercial activity and the main gateways into and out of London impacting adversely on
air quality. In addition, the presence of Heathrow, the world's busiest airport, has seen air
quality rise in some parts to levels exceeding European standards.

8.98 The southern two-thirds of the borough was designated an Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA) in September 2003 (53). The boundary of the AQMA is shown in Map 8.4. It is
clear that the road network in the AQMA carries a very high volume of traffic and congestion.
Emissions from road traffic are recognised to be a major contributor to poor air quality in the
area.

8.99 Heathrow airport is also a major source of emissions. The result of these activities is
that the area is subjected to levels of air pollution worse than many other UK towns and cities.

8.100 Poor air quality leads to adverse impacts on health and can undermine incentives
to increase sustainable modes of travel, such as walking and cycling. Schools closest to
Heathrow are particularly vulnerable with outside play compromised by worsening air quality.

8.101 The London Plan (2008) requires Hillingdon to work with key partners to prepare
and implement a spatial planning framework for the Heathrow Opportunity Area. This will
take the form of a Development Plan Document (DPD). This DPDwill include a Low Emissions
Strategy for the area to help tackle the current air quality problems. Specific policies to mitigate
negative effects of airport operations such as air pollution has been addressed in policy E3
and will be delivered through the Heathrow Opportunity Area DPD.

8.102 Noise: For the purpose of the Core Strategy, noise (including associated vibrations)
means:

"environmental noise" which includes noise from transportation sources;
"neighbour noise" which includes noise from inside and outside peoples homes; and
"neighbourhood noise" which includes noise arising from within the community such as
industrial and entertainment premises, trade and business premises, construction sites
and noise in the street.

52 http://wfdconsultation.environment-agency.gov.uk/wfdcms/en/thames/Intro.aspx
53 Source: London borough of Hillingdon Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83 (1)

London borough of Hillingdon Air Quality Management Area Order 2003

London Borough of Hillingdon

107Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 115



Map 8.5 Water, Air and Noise

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010108

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 116



8.103 Noise can have a significant effect on the environment and on the quality of life
enjoyed by individuals and communities. In Hillingdon, environmental noise arises from a
variety of different sources, in particular aircraft (Heathrow Airport & RAF Northolt), major
roads (M4, A4 and A40) and railways (London Underground, the Paddington, Marylebone
and Heathrow Express lines).

8.104 Operators of civil airports are required to produce their own Action Plans under the
terms of the Environmental Noise (England) Regulations 2006. A draft Noise Action Plan
was prepared in 2009 for Heathrow. In Heathrow, policy for issues such as noise levels and
flight paths are set by the Department for Transport.

8.105 The GLA forecasts Hillingdon to be the largest outer London growth borough (54)

and estimates that a large proportion of new jobs will be accommodated within the Heathrow
Opportunity Area. These uses play a vital role in promoting a successful and vibrant economy
in the borough, creating jobs and attracting business, though it is also important to note that
such uses can create neighbourhood noise impacts.

8.106 As such, noise remains a main challenge in the borough. The impact of existing
noise and the possible impact of future noise remains a challenge to be considered as part
of the Core Strategy.

Main Challenges

8.107 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies two main challenges relating to water, air and noise
management:

National and European Union (EU) requirements to meet climate change and carbon
dioxide emission targets
The need to mitigate noise and air quality impacts, especially around Heathrow and the
road network

8.108 Water quality: New development near to watercourses is likely to have an adverse
impact on water quality unless proper measures are put in place to mitigate this. The rivers
outlined above that are not meeting good ecological potential under the Water Framework
Directive (55)are particularly vulnerable from uncontrolled new development. New development
near these rivers will need to be delivered so as not to harm these important water features,
and should actively contribute to their revival.

8.109 Air quality: Maintaining, promoting, and distributing growth is a primary goal of the
Core Strategy. A growing population and the need to deliver more jobs puts pressure on
areas already badly affected by poor air quality.

8.110 Heathrow Airport remains an economic hub and cannot be ignored in the continued
growth of the borough. The Heathrow Opportunity Area is a strategic growth point within the
borough. It is also home to the main road corridors where air quality impacts generate from.
These corridors are used by those entering London from the west of England, and some of
the emissions will derive from vehicles that will not even stop within the borough.

54 Souce: London Office Policy Review 2009 Greater London Authority, November 2009
55 Source: Environment Agency River Basin Management Plan, Thames River Basin District

Annex A Current state of waters December 2009

London Borough of Hillingdon

109Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 117



8.111 Increasing development and commercial activity around Heathrow is required to
sustain the economic competitiveness of the borough; however, this will invariably lead to
greater impacts on air quality. This poses a significant challenge for the borough. The borough
has limited control over vehicles using the strategic road network to travel throughout the
borough. The Council can set higher standards for buildings, but cannot control the type and
number of vehicles that utilise them. The airport has its own emission targets, but there is
no easy solution to redressing the existing air quality problems, nor is there a solution to
delivering growth without adding to the impacts.

8.112 Airports are a major source of carbon dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions which
adversely impact on air quality. Travelling to and from Heathrow impacts on the borough
regardless of the destination. Heathrow attracts a number of new businesses and commercial
enterprises which also increases the impacts on air quality. All development exploiting the
benefits of Heathrow contribute to the poor air quality in the area. Further growth will
exacerbate the problem. All new development associated with Heathrow should be challenged
to minimise its impacts on air quality as far as possible.

8.113 Air quality issues in the borough are clearly linked to transportation, including
Heathrow Airport, so an integrated approach is proposed to mitigate these issues. Air quality
issues caused by transportation are also dealt with in the Transport chapter through policy
T3. The planning process presents an opportunity to reduce air quality impacts through
section 106 agreements and/or Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) funding. These
opportunities will be specifically investigated within the Heathrow Opportunity Area DPD.

8.114 The use of certain renewable technologies also poses a threat to local air quality.
In particular biomass units that operate by burning fuel may be considered to be a more
sustainable form of energy generation, but the emissions can have an adverse impact on
local air quality. The use of biomass cannot easily be constrained by planning policy as new
technology and fuel types may result in improved systems that do not have the same level
of air quality impacts. Accordingly, the Council will continue to promote the use of all
renewable energy technologies providing it can be demonstrated they can show a neutral
impact on air quality. The subsequent Development Management DPD will include policies
on the use of biomass, particularly in areas designated as an air quality management area.

8.115 Climate Change:Water and air quality in Hillingdon is likely to decline with climate
change as a result of increased temperatures and extreme weather events including flooding
as predicted in the borough's Climate Change Strategy. The Core Strategy will need to include
measures to protect and improve the quality of the borough's water and air.

8.116 Noise: Guidance has already been set out at the national level by Planning Policy
Guidance 24: Planning and Noise. This guidance sets out a clear rationale as to where
sensitive development should be located in relation to existing noise/pollution sources, and
also provides guidance on where potentially polluting (including noise) development should
be located.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010110

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 118



8.117 The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs formally adopted
Noise Action Plans for 23 agglomerations (large urban areas), major roads, andmajor railways
in England on 15 March 2010 (56). The Plans identify Hillingdon as one of several target areas
including 'First Priority Areas' through a series of noise maps for noise reduction measures.
Hillingdon will investigate these areas to see what further noise mitigation can be carried out.
The 'First Priority Areas' for road and rail noise are shown on Map 8.4.

8.118 The Replacement London Plan (2009) also requires borough's to identify and protect
Quiet Areas. The process of establishing Quiet Areas will begin in July 2010.

8.119 The Council will prepare a strategy for the Heathrow Opportunity Area that will
mitigate negative effects of airport operations such as air and noise pollution (see policy E3
and transport policy T4).

Policy EM8: Water, Air and Noise

Water quality

The Council will seek to safeguard and improve the water quality of the:

River Colne
Grand Union Canal
River Pinn
Yeading Brook
Porter Land Brook
River Crane

Air Quality

All new development within the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) should actively
contribute to the promotion of sustainable transport measures, deliver increased planting,
where appropriate.

Noise

The Council will investigate Hillingdon's target areas identified in the Defra Noise Action
Plans, promote the maximum possible reduction in noise levels and will minimise the
number of people potentially affected.

The Council will seek to identify and protect Quiet Areas in accordance with Government
Policy on sustainable development and other Local Development Framework policies.

56 Source: Noise Action Plan London Agglomeration Environmental Noise (England)
Regulations 2006, as amended March 2010

London Borough of Hillingdon

111Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 119



Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement Policy EM8 by:

Setting high standards for reducing water, air and noise pollution and resisting
amenity and environmental impacts that affect how we enjoy the environment in
which we live and work. This includes making sure developments are designed to
cope with climate conditions as they change during the development’s lifetime.
Preparing a Development Plan Document for the Heathrow area set out in policy
E3 and paragraph 5.25 of Chapter 5.
Requiring developments to minimise water use and use local sources of water where
possible.
Revising the existing Air Quality SPG into an updated Air Quality SPD.
Using planning conditions and Section 106 agreements to improve air quality and
where appropriate, apply a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on new
developments.
Implementing the Climate Change Strategy to secure reductions in local air pollutants
and mitigate climate change.
Implementing the borough Transport Strategy to ensure reductions in emissions
from transport within the borough.

Flexibility

Figures for reducing CO2 emissions in Hillingdon take account of national targets and
regional targets in the London Plan (2009). Proposed figures in the Replacement London
Plan (2009) have not been agreed and may change as a result of the London Plan EIP.

Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of policy EM8 will be through AMR with a specific link to:
E1 (Core) Indicator: Number of planning permissions granted contrary to the
advice of the Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water
quality. Target: No planning permission will be granted contrary to the advice
of the Environment Agency on either flood defence grounds or water quality
(or any other target set by Government).

Number of planning applications granted contrary to Environment Agency advice
on water quality grounds
Number of planning applications refused on noise grounds
Number of Section 106 agreements for improvements to air quality
Number of electric vehicle charging points established in the borough
On-going air quality monitoring throughout the borough to identify trends in the air
quality concentrations
On-going traffic count monitoring to identify trends in flow volumes and vehicle types
Number of new developments with sustainable forms of transport

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010112

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 120



Minerals and Waste

Minerals

Strategic Objective

SO5: Safeguard and promote areas of geological importance and make a proportionate
contribution to West London’s target to extract 0.5 million tonnes of minerals.

Related policies: EM9, EM10

Main Challenges

8.120 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to minerals:

The need to meet the London Plan mineral apportionment figures

8.121 The Core Strategy sets in place a framework to contribute to the apportionment
figure for west London of 0.5 million tonnes of aggregates per year, whilst ensuring that any
mineral extraction in Hillingdon does not have an unacceptable impact on the environment
or human health.

8.122 It is important that there is an adequate supply of raw materials to provide the
infrastructure, buildings and goods that society, industry and the economy needs and,
therefore, it is a key component in sustaining economic prosperity. Aggregates come from
a variety of sources, including recycling of construction waste. However, an important source
of supply will remain from mineral deposits.

Safeguarding mineral resources

8.123 It is clear that Hillingdon could not make a significant contribution to meeting future
aggregates demand without using sites in the Green Belt and sites in relative close proximity
to housing. Extraction in such locations has already taken place in the Borough in the past,
and continues to do so.

8.124 Government advice in PPG2 is that mineral extraction need not be inappropriate in
the Green Belt provided that high environmental standards are maintained and the site is
well restored. Judgements about the acceptability of extraction in the vicinity of houses have
to be taken case-by-case, based on the likely specific impacts of individual schemes.

8.125 The Minerals Technical Background Report (2008) (57) concludes there are three
sites able to provide the defined aggregates requirement for the borough over the Plan period:

Land west of the present Harmondsworth Quarry
Land north of the village of Harmondsworth, and
Land at Sipson Lane, east of the M4 spur.

57 Source: http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=15283

London Borough of Hillingdon

113Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 121



Map 8.6 Mineral Areas for Safeguarding

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010114

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 122



8.126 The above three sites are defined as 'Preferred Mineral Safeguarding Area', indicated
on Map 8.6.

8.127 To safeguard the mineral resource in its entirety, and to account for the inexact
nature of mapped geological boundaries, it may be necessary to extend the Preferred Mineral
Safeguarding Area beyond the resource boundary. This approach is intended to safeguard
the resource from the impact of 'proximal development'.

Policy EM9: Safeguarding Mineral Resources

The Council will safeguard mineral resources in Hillingdon from other forms of
development that would prejudice future mineral extraction. The Council will define the
'Preferred Mineral Safeguarding Area' in the Site Allocations DPD to include land west
of the present Harmondsworth Quarry, land north of the village of Harmondsworth, and
land at Sipson Lane, east of the M4 spur.

The Council will also safeguard areas within 250m of the Preferred Mineral Safeguarding
Area as a buffer for the future extraction of the sand and gravel reserve, to safeguard
the resource from the impact of 'proximal development'.

Mineral extraction

8.128 Over the years the main concentrations of sand and gravel working have been in
the area between the A40 and the northern boundary of Heathrow, and in the Colne Valley
west of Harefield. Currently the main area of activity is between the M4 and the A4 north of
Heathrow.

8.129 Hillingdon is required to meet the Borough’s apportionment figure of 0.50 million
tonnes per year of sand and gravel extraction. To meet these requirements a comparative
assessment of all potential sand and gravel-bearing sites in the Borough has been undertaken
in order to identify those where mineral extraction is likely to have the least adverse impact.

London Borough of Hillingdon

115Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 123



Policy EM10: Mineral Extraction

TheCouncil will make an appropriate contribution towards theWest London apportionment
figure in the London Plan of 0.5 million tonnes per annum.

The Council will seek to safeguard areas for mineral extraction outside of the Preferred
Mineral Safeguarding Area where:

it is demonstrated that the proposal is sustainable, essential to maintain the West
London land bank in accordance with national policy, and necessary to maintain
apportioned provision for West London as set out in the London Plan
suitable measures and controls can be put in place to ensure there is not an
unacceptable adverse impact on the environment or human health
the mineral workings can be restored to the highest standards using progressive
restoration techniques, and secure a beneficial and acceptable after use in line with
Green Belt objectives.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement policies EM9 and EM10 by:

Reviewing the Site Specific Allocations DPD.
Determining individual planning applications. This will include the use of conditions
and Section 106 legal agreements as appropriate.
Monitoring the west London land bank of at least 7 years in the Annual Monitoring
Report (AMR) and, if necessary maintaining it.
Promoting the restoration of the site to the highest standards.

Flexibility

Figures for mineral apportionment in Hillingdon take account of targets set in the London
Plan (2008). Proposed figures in the Replacement London Plan (2009) have not been
agreed and may change as a result of the London Plan EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010116

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 124



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of policies EM9 and EM10 will be through AMR with specific links to:
M1 (Core) Indicator: Production of primary land won aggregates by mineral
planning authority. Target: To contribute to West London’s apportionment to
produce 500,000 tonnes of land-won aggregates per year until 2016 (or any
other target set by Government).
M2 (Core) Indicator: Production of secondary/recycle aggregates by mineral
planning authority. Target: To contribute to West London’s apportionment to
produce 500,000 tonnes of land-won aggregates per year until 2016 (or any
other target set by Government).

The number of preferred sites for mineral working being brought forward
The volume of sand and gravel being worked
The number of planning applications approved for mineral workings

Waste Management

Strategic Objective

SO13: Support the objectives of sustainable waste management.

Related policy: EM11

Main Challenges

8.130 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies one main challenge relating to waste management:

The need to minimise waste.

8.131 The Council supports the objectives of sustainable waste management set out in
Planning Policy Statement 10 (PPS10), the London Plan and through the implementation of
the 'Waste Hierarchy'. The London Plan sets out targets for recycling and composting for
waste from households, businesses and industry. The London Plan requires that the majority
of waste generated in London is managed in London to enable the capital to move towards
self-sufficiency. Overall, the target states that 85% of London's waste must be managed
within London by 2020.

8.132 In response to the need to address the future management of waste arisings, the
West LondonWaste Plan (WLWP) is being prepared jointly by the six west London borough's
of Harrow, Brent, Ealing, Hillingdon, Hounslow and Richmond upon Thames. The WLWP is
being prepared in accordance with the national planning policy in PPS10, and will take account
of the London Plan waste apportionment figures and targets for self-sufficiency and recycling
up to 2026. This will identify locations suitable for waste management facilities to meet the
London Plan apportionment and land use policies to support these.

London Borough of Hillingdon

117Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 125



8.133 With regard to the location of sites, the Council will be guided by the locational criteria
provided in PPS10 and the broad locations of Strategic Employment Locations, Local
Employment Areas provided within the London Plan and existing waste management sites.
To support this, the Council will safeguard existing waste sites unless compensatory provision
is made and it will support the redevelopment of existing sites to maximise their throughput.

Policy EM11: Sustainable Waste Management

The Council will aim to reduce the amount of waste produced in the Borough and work
in conjunction with its partners in West London, to identify and allocate suitable new sites
for waste management facilities within the Joint West London Waste Plan to provide
sufficient capacity to meet the apportionment requirements of the London Plan.

The Council will require all new development to address waste management at all stages
of a development's life from design and construction through to the end use and activity
on site, ensuring that all waste is managed towards the upper end of the waste hierarchy.

The Council will promote waste as a resource and encourage increased re-use of
materials and recycling and seek to maximise the use of existing waste management
sites through intensification or co-location of facilities.

Implementation - how we will achieve this

The Council will implement Policy EM11 by:

Coordinating with the other Borough members of the West London Waste Authority
and the Council's Waste Minimisation Strategy.
Working with west London Boroughs to produce the Joint Waste DPD, and this will
reflect the provisions of The London Plan (2008) and Mayor's Municipal Waste
Management Strategy.
Developing detailed development control policies in the Development Management
DPD to ensure that new development makes sufficient provision for waste
management facilities on sites that promote increased recycling.

Flexibility

Figures for waste apportionment in Hillingdon take account of targets set in the London
Plan (2008) and the Mayor's Municipal Waste Management Strategy. Proposed figures
in the Replacement London Plan (2009) have not been agreed and may change as a
result of the London Plan EIP.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010118

8
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
lM

an
ag
em

en
t

Page 126



Monitoring - how we will measure success

Monitoring of policy EM11 will be through the AMR with specific links to:

W1 (Core) Indicator:Capacity of newwastemanagement facilities by waste planning
authority. Target: Specific monitoring details will be included in the Joint West
London Waste Plan that will cover the monitoring of changes in the stock of waste
management facilities, waste arisings, and the amount of waste recycled, recovered
and going for disposal. It is premature at this stage to include these in the Hillingdon's
Core Strategy, however, the timing for preparing both documents will allow for this
at a later stage.
W2 (Core) Indicator: Amount of municipal waste arising, and managed by
management type by waste planning authority. Target: BV82a & BV82b.

London Borough of Hillingdon

119Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

8
C
ore

P
olicies

-
E
nvironm

entalM
anagem

ent

Page 127



9 Core Policies - Transport and Infrastructure

9.1 The transport policies set out in this chapter promote sustainable forms of transport
with an overall aim of improving quality of life and reducing private car dependency. This
chapter considers where links and connections can be improved, how public transport can
support growth and regeneration, what transport measures are needed for Heathrow Airport,
and how the Council can improve accessibility to services and encourage active travel.

9.2 The delivery of a sufficient amount of physical, social and green infrastructure to
underpin planned growth in Hillingdon is also a key priority for this Core Strategy. The provision
of community infrastructure is central to the delivery of key objectives in the Sustainable
Community Strategy, such as ‘improving health and wellbeing’ and ‘strong and active
communities’. This chapter will outline the findings of Hillingdon's infrastructure planning
process and identify the key infrastructure proposals that will enable delivery of growth.

Main challenges

9.3 The principal challenge is to enable access to 9,000 new jobs and an average of 620
new homes per annum within the Heathrow Opportunity Area during the plan period. Access
will have to be provided within the context of a congested road network and crowded public
transport system. In order to accommodate this growth, high trip generating uses will only
be located where they have good access to public transport. Uses that have to rely on the
road network, for example distribution, will be located only at sites with good existing road
access. New developments will be steered towards locations with minimal impact on the
transport system and all developments will have good cycling and pedestrian provision.

9.4 The current public transport provision in Hillingdon has an east-west orientation while
the borough has a distinct north-south shape, as shown on the key diagram (Map 4.1). It is
vital that this Core Strategy addresses the challenge of poor north-south links in Hillingdon.

9.5 Hillingdon's carbon emissions from transportation are much higher than the London
average(58). The number of people travelling into and out of Hillingdon is major contributing
factor. It has also led to impacts on air quality, particularly around Heathrow where hotels
and office accommodation have been developed.

9.6 Uxbridge is a Metropolitan town centre, shown on the key diagram (Map 4.1), but is
deficient in good public transport links despite being the terminus of the Metropolitan and
Piccadilly Underground Lines and numerous bus routes. Uxbridge lacks direct and fast
connections with its neighbouring Metropolitan town centres and does not compare favourably
with other equivalent urban centres in terms of journey time to central London by public
transport(59).

9.7 The aim of the transport policies in this section is to provide a sustainable transport
system that addresses whole length journeys, reduces car dependency, supports the economy,
encourages active travel and improves quality of life. These aims reflect the six goals set

58 National Indicator 186 Local and Regional CO2 Emissions Estimates for 2005-2007
(Department of Energy and Climate Change, November 2009)

59 Comparisons from journey planners at www.tfl.gov.uk and www.nationalrail.co.uk

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010120

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 128



out in the draft Mayor's Transport Strategy (MTS)(60). The Core Strategy supports sustainable
travel by locating new growth including housing, retail, commercial, leisure and community
facilities near public transport interchanges.

9.8 The cycling and walking networks form part of a comprehensive transport network.
Journeys by foot have reduced in recent years, while there has been only a slight increase
in cycle journeys. These modes of transportation have an important role in helping to create
healthier lifestyles and reduce the level of harmful emissions from vehicles.

9.9 The quantity, quality and accessibility of social and community infrastructure, such as
schools, culture and leisure facilities, make a direct contribution to the quality of life in
Hillingdon. Further social infrastructure provision will be required to meet the needs of
Hillingdon's growing population and also to accommodate additional housing and employment
growth.

Accessible Local Destinations

Strategic Objectives

SO3: Improve the quality of and accessibility to, the borough’s open spaces, including
rivers and canals as areas for sports, recreation, visual interest and bio-diversity.
In addition, address open space needs by providing new space identified in
Hillingdon's Open Space Study.
SO6: Promote social inclusion through equality of opportunity and equality of access
to social, educational, health, employment, recreational, green space and cultural
facilities for all in the borough, particularly for residents living in areas of identified
need.
SO12: Reduce the reliance on the use of the car by promoting safe and sustainable
forms of transport, such as improved walking and cycling routes and encouraging
travel plans.
SO17: Link deprived areas with employment benefits arising from the development
of major sites and existing key locations.
SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure
facilities, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of
the borough through well planned routes and integrated public transport.

Related Policy: T1

9.10 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies three main challenges relating to accessible local
destinations:

60 Mayor’s Transport Strategy: Public Draft (Greater London Authority, October 2009).
The goals are: Support economic development and population growth; Enhance the
quality of life for all Londoners; Improve the safety and security of all Londoners; Improve
transport opportunities for all Londoners; Reduce transport’s contribution to climate
change and improve its resilience; Support delivery of the London 2012 Olympic and
Paralympic Games and its legacy.

London Borough of Hillingdon

121Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 129



Congestion causing traffic delays, particularly in the 30 identified congestion hotspots
Poor and unsustainable access to and from local destinations, including shopping centres,
employment and leisure concentrations/areas
High dependency on private vehicles and low proportion of trips made by cycling, walking
and public transport

9.11 Ensuring that local destinations are accessible by good quality, safe and convenient
transport is essential to achieving sustainable development. ‘Local destinations’ are locations
which provide services and amenities including health, education, employment and training,
local shopping, community, culture, sport and leisure facilities. It is vital for people to be able
to access these types of destinations through well planned routes and integrated public
transport, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of the borough.

9.12 A central aim of national, regional and local transport plans, programmes and strategies
is to meet an increasing proportion of travel demand by walking and cycling, both for short
journeys and as part of longer journeys by public transport. If more people switch from cars
to cycling and walking this would make a major contribution to meeting targets for reducing
climate change emissions. This Core Strategy plans for sustainable and active travel which
means services and amenities will bemore accessible by walking, cycling and public transport.
Many services are located in existing town and neighbourhood centres which are shown on
Map 9.1. The river and canal network in Hillingdon provide opportunities for sustainable
transport, including walking and cycling, and water based leisure and recreation (see policy
EM3 and Map 9.1). The Council is working with schools to introduce sustainable means of
transport to and from school through engineering works, education and encouragement of
walking and cycling. Schools are encouraged to prepare and implement Travel Plans to
reduce congestion and improve safety. Further details of community infrastructure can be
found at Appendix 2 and Policy CI1.

9.13 The Council will encourage walking and cycling through initiatives such as improved
street signage showing distances and likely journey times between major destinations.
Provision for cyclists include the integration of facilities at either end of the journey in both
new developments and through retrofitting, for example at interchanges and business parks.
New development can contribute to these much needed provisions through developer
contributions or other initiatives. The Council will also require developers to think about more
forms of sustainable transportation methods beyond cycling, walking and public transport.
The installation of electric vehicle charging points can help those who are car-dependant to
reduce their emissions and in turn their contribution to climate change. Other initiatives as
prioritising car parking for low emissions vehicles and car clubs are simple measures that
can also contribute to the reduction of harmful emissions. Developers will be expected to
demonstrate the integration of some or all of these sustainable transport measures through
the submission of travel plans.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010122

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 130



Map 9.1 Transport infrastructure

London Borough of Hillingdon

123Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 131



9.14 The Core Strategy growth areas of Uxbridge and the Heathrow Opportunity Area,
including the Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, are important destinations for employment and
services. A number of these are located in proximity to existing congestion hotspots on
Hillingdon’s road network(61) which are shown on Map 9.1. The options for addressing
congestion on the road network do not include new road construction and the extent of new
growth will depend on the implementation of other measures, such as highway improvements
and more efficient public transport services.

Policy T1: Accessible Local Destinations

The Council will steer development to the most appropriate locations in order to reduce
their impact on the transport network. All development should encourage access by
sustainable modes and include good cycling and walking provision

The Council will ensure access to local destinations which provide services and amenities.

The Council will promote active travel through improvements to Hillingdon’s public rights
of way.

Implementation of Policy T1: how we will achieve this

Policy T1 will be delivered through the Local Implementation Plan which includes targets
for cycling, provides the basis for considering all highway, maintenance and cycling
schemes, as well as the allocation of resources.

Providing demand-responsive transport to link deprived areas with employment benefits
arising from the development of major sites and existing key locations.

Through the Rights of Way and Permissive Routes Improvement Plan (2009-2019).

Travel planning, implementing policies T2 and T3.

Working with TfL, Highways Agency, transport providers and other partners.

Developer contributions, TfL funding.

Encouraging freight road transport to use the highest order roads wherever possible.

61 Congestion hotspots are identified in Hillingdon's Local Implementation Plan
2006/6-2010/11 (London Borough of Hillingdon, March 2006): Appendix 9

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010124

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 132



Monitoring of Policy T1: how we will measure success

Policy T1 will be monitored through regular travel and congestion surveys of road users,
public transport users, pedestrians and cyclists.

BV178 - Hillingdon's Public Rights of Way performance indicator

Public Transport Network

Strategic Objectives

SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure
facilities, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of
the borough through well planned routes and integrated public transport.
SO20: Improve facilities at bus and underground/rail interchanges to promote
sustainable growth in Uxbridge, Heathrow, the Hayes/West Drayton corridor and
accessibility to other town centres.
SO21: Improve public transport services between the north and the south of the
borough to ensure easier access between residential areas such as Northwood and
South Ruislip, Hillingdon Hospital, Brunel University, Stockley Park and Heathrow
Airport.
SO22: Promote efficient use of public transport and particular, the enhancement of
Underground services to Uxbridge and faster services to central London.

Related Policies: T2, T3

9.15 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies four main challenges relating to public transport:

Poor north/south public transport links
Slow and deficient public transport access between Uxbridge and central London and
other key centres.
Delivery of planned public transport improvements at Heathrow, Hayes, West Drayton
Uxbridge and West Ruislip.
High dependency on private vehicles and low proportion of trips made by cycling, walking
and public transport.

Public Transport Interchanges

9.16 The development of an efficient, integrated public transport network is a key factor in
ensuring sustainable growth in Hillingdon over the period of the Core Strategy. Should
proposed housing and employment growth take place without such improvements, the
resulting levels of private car use would place considerable pressure on Hillingdon’s road
network, particularly around congestion hotspots.

London Borough of Hillingdon

125Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 133



9.17 There are opportunities to enhance public transport interchanges at five key locations
in the borough; Uxbridge, Heathrow, Hayes, West Drayton and West Ruislip. Heathrow is
well connected to the rest of the country, with five rail stations and the UK's second busiest
coach station. There is substantial potential for improved transport interchanges, both
between Airtrack and Crossrail, and between the UK's busiest bus and coach station and
the rest of the borough in general, and Uxbridge in particular.

Uxbridge

9.18 Uxbridge is home to a regionally important Underground / bus interchange that cannot
accommodate current or forecast future demand without significant improvements. The bus
station has inadequate capacity for the number of vehicles which currently use it. The
surrounding area is in need of upgrading to improve accessibility for people with restricted
mobility.

9.19 Uxbridge town centre has, despite its attractive geographic position, deficient rail
connections with its neighbouring Metropolitan and out of London town centres, central
London, counties to the west and even Heathrow Airport. Public transport and cycle access
to its catchment area is very deficient in general and to the villages located to the west and
north-west of the M25 in particular.

9.20 This Core Strategy identifies Uxbridge Metropolitan town centre for employment and
retail growth, along with new housing at RAF Uxbridge, which will create significant new
users of public transport in Uxbridge (see Policy E4). The redevelopment of the
bus/Underground station is an important infrastructure improvement which will help to exploit
the town's Metropolitan status and create a gateway to Uxbridge and the borough as a whole.
There is scope to improve both the frequency and travel times of Underground services
between Uxbridge and London, and establish public transport links to the north and south of
the borough.

9.21 The Core Strategy provides opportunities to encourage more active forms of
transportation, particularly for shorter journeys. New development will be required to promote
cycling and walking, and the Council will seek developer contributions where appropriate.
There is limited cycle parking at Uxbridge underground station and addressing this issue
could help facilitate an increase in cycling.

Hayes and West Drayton

9.22 Crossrail will provide a direct link from Maidenhead via Heathrow Airport to the City,
east London, Essex and Kent, travelling through the southern part of Hillingdon on the route
of the existing Paddington line. Two existing stations (Hayes and West Drayton) will be
upgraded as part of the Crossrail works. It is envisaged that these works will take place during
the period 2015/ 2016. The improved Crossrail stations will provide the catalyst for the
regeneration of Hayes and West Drayton (see Table 5.3).

9.23 Proposed public transport improvements, such as improved interchanges, are located
in close proximity to growth areas (see Map 5.1). The location of public transport interchanges
and Crossrail stations are shown in Map 9.1.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010126

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 134



West Ruislip

9.24 West Ruislip station offers good access to central London from the north of the Borough
(via the Underground Central Line and Chiltern Railway to Marylebone). This station serves
a substantial and expanding residential catchment and also acts as a railhead/park and ride
facility to cyclists and car users. West Ruislip station needs to be enhanced to maximise its
potential, particularly to facilitate more feeder trips by public transport, walking and cycling.
The option of a new station close to the current location will be investigated to offer direct
access to the Central, Metropolitan and Piccadilly Underground lines and the Chiltern Railway.

Policy T2: Public Transport Interchanges

The Council will facilitate improved public transport interchanges at Uxbridge, Hayes,
West Drayton, Heathrow Airport, West Ruislip and other locations as appropriate in the
future. These interchanges will accommodate measures to encourage subsequent
shorter journeys to be completed on foot or by cycle.

Implementation of Policy T2: how we will achieve this

Policy T2 will be delivered through the Local Implementation Plan (LIP) and partnership
working with TfL, transport providers and other partners. Land will be safeguarded
through the Site Allocations DPD. Developer contributions will be required where
appropriate.

Monitoring of Policy T2: how we will measure success

Policy T2 will be monitored through regular travel and congestion surveys of road users,
public transport users, pedestrians and cyclists, and through analysis of third party
reports.

North-south sustainable transport links

9.25 Whilst there are strong east-west public transport links to and from the borough,
north-south journeys are usually slow and often indirect. Road traffic pressures across the
A40 create a major barrier severing the north from the south. There is a need for better
orbital bus and rail routes to supplement the radial corridors and to create a more effective
total network across the whole Borough. There is insufficient bus capacity in parts of the
Borough, with passengers having to stand up on buses or not able to board at all, especially
at peak times. Equally important is the need to achieve reliable and reasonably frequent
services as the norm. Greater integration of transport modes through improved interchanges
at key locations in the borough would also benefit the network.

London Borough of Hillingdon

127Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 135



9.26 Poor accessibility impacts heavily on the capacity of the borough to deliver jobs(62).
Better north-south links will help connect local people with jobs in the borough, for example
connecting Stockley Park to Hayes and West Drayton will make it a more accessible and
sustainable office location. Routes for improved north-south public transport links are shown
on the key diagram (Map 4.1).

9.27 The Government’s paper on High Speed Rail (see chapter 3) sets out the draft
proposed London-Birmingham route which would run through Ruislip, with connections to
Heathrow via a Crossrail interchange at Old Oak Common station. The draft proposed scheme
is outside the time frame of this Core Strategy, although clearly there will be implications for
Hillingdon in the future.

Policy T3: North-South Sustainable Transport Links

The Council will improve north-south public transport links in the borough and link
residential areas directly with employment areas and transport interchanges.

Implementation of Policy T3: how we will achieve this

Policy T3 will be delivered through the Local Implementation Plan and partnership working
with TfL, transport providers and other partners, making effective use of the most up to
date intelligent transport systems to promote increasingly sustainable travel, and
implementation of Policies T1, and T4.

Monitoring of Policy T3: how we will measure success

Policy T3 will be monitored through regular travel and congestion surveys of road users,
public transport users, pedestrians and cyclists.

62 GLA Economy Working Paper 39: Borough employment projections to 2031 (Greater
London Authority, November 2009)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010128

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 136



Heathrow Airport

Strategic Objectives

SO18: Improve access to local services and facilities, including health, education,
employment and training, local shopping, community, cultural, sport and leisure
facilities, especially for those without a car and for those in more remote parts of
the borough through well planned routes and integrated public transport.
SO21: Improve public transport services between the north and the south of the
borough to ensure easier access between residential areas such as Northwood and
South Ruislip, Hillingdon Hospital, Brunel University, Stockley Park and Heathrow
Airport.
SO24: Optimise the potential employment and educational benefits of Heathrow
airport for local residents.

Related Policy: T4

9.28 Table 3.1 in Chapter 3 identifies four main challenges relating to Heathrow:

Delivery of planned public transport improvements at Heathrow, Hayes, West Drayton
Uxbridge and West Ruislip.
Pressures on the road and public transport network from the high volume of vehicles
associated with Heathrow Airport
Poor and unsustainable access to and from local destinations, including shopping centres,
employment and leisure concentrations/areas
High dependency on private vehicles and low proportion of trips made by cycling, walking
and public transport.

9.29 Heathrow is the largest and busiest airport in the United Kingdom and has a significant
impact on the London Borough of Hillingdon, particularly as the largest single generator of
traffic in the UK(63). There are currently over 76,500 people directly employed at the airport
and just under 9,000 of these are Hillingdon residents(64). The airport also has a significant
impact on travel patterns in the borough. A high proportion of Heathrow employees travel to
the airport by car (61.4% lone, 6.9% car share), including nearly 50% of Hillingdon
residents(65). Parking at the airport has been regulated and bus services have been extensively
improved in recent years. A network of cycle routes has been created on the airport and
there is an ongoing effort to raise awareness of travel options. Single occupancy car use
has reduced by 10 percentage points since 2004(66). However, this still means a very high

63 The Heathrow Airtrack Order, Heathrow Airtrack Environmental Statement, Volume 6:
Transport Assessment (Heathrow Airport Ltd and Temple Group Ltd, June 2009

64 Heathrow Employment Survey 2008/09: summary report (Heathrow Airport Limited,
March 2010)

65 Heathrow Employment Survey 2008/09: summary report (Heathrow Airport Limited,
March 2010)

66 Heathrow Employment Survey 2008/09: summary report (Heathrow Airport Limited,
March 2010)

London Borough of Hillingdon

129Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 137



number of trips being taken by car which impact on air quality and the capacity of road
networks, particularly in the Air Quality Management Area (see Map 8.4 and Policy EM8).
Activities related to the operation of Heathrow, and associated businesses such as logistics
and distribution, also impact on the capacity of road networks.

9.30 Heathrow is a major public transport interchange, and includes air, rail, underground,
coach, bus, cycle and road links to London and the UK. The airport and transport interchange
will play an essential part in delivering the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games as both an
international gateway to London and by enabling participants and spectators to continue their
journey to the Games. This Core Strategy will increase the number of journeys to the airport
by public transport, for both employees and passengers.

9.31 Heathrow Airport makes an important contribution to the economy in Hillingdon (see
Chapter 5 and Policy E3). The Heathrow Opportunity Area (see Key Diagram and Map 5.1)
is one of the key areas for employment growth in this Core Strategy and the Council will
support access to 9,000 new jobs and 620 new homes per annum in the HeathrowOpportunity
Area during the plan period. The infrastructure required to support this level of growth is
identified in the schedule contained in Appendix 2 of this document.

Policy T4: Heathrow Airport

This Core Strategy will support the function of Heathrow and growth in the Heathrow
Opportunity Area by facilitating improvements to public transport and cycle links,
enhancing the public transport interchange and providing transport infrastructure to
accommodate economic and housing growth.

Implementation of Policy T4: how we will achieve this

Policy T4 will be delivered through the Local Implementation Plan, partnership working
with TfL, transport providers and other partners, including the Heathrow Transport Forum.
The Council will continue to work with BAA who have identified a significant on-going
capital programme to ensure the operational capacity of the airport.

The Council will require developers within the Heathrow Opportunity Area to develop a
sustainable transport solution that includes public transportation, walking, cycling and
as well the use of electric vehicles, low emission vehicles and car clubs.

Monitoring of Policy T4: how we will measure success

Policy T4 will be monitored through regular travel and congestion surveys of road users,
public transport users, pedestrians and cyclists.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010130

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 138



Community Infrastructure

Strategic Objectives

SO6: Promote social inclusion through equality of opportunity and equality of access to
social, educational, health, employment, recreational, green space and cultural facilities
for all in the borough, particularly for residents living in areas of identified need.

SO8: Promote healthier and more active lifestyles through the provision of access to a
range of sport, recreation, health and leisure facilities.

Related policies: CI1, CI2 and CI3.

Hillingdon's Strategic Infrastructure Plan

9.32 Hillingdon's infrastructure planning process has been undertaken through the
production of a Strategic Infrastructure Plan (SIP). This document is currently being prepared
in support of the Core Strategy to identify:

Existing provision of physical, social and green infrastructure in the borough;
Current shortfalls in infrastructure provision based on current standards of provision;
and
Additional infrastructure required to accommodate future population growth and deliver
the policies and proposals contained in the Core Strategy.

9.33 The following aspects of infrastructure provision will be addressed in the SIP: :

Transport and Connectivity: Roads, public transport provision, walking, air
Energy, Utilities and Waste: Electricity, gas, water, waste
Health: Primary and acute care
Education and Learning: Primary, secondary, further, higher
Recreation: Provision of green spaces
Other Community Infrastructure: such as emergency services and affordable housing
provision

9.34 The SIP has been produced to meet the requirements of PPS 12 and is in accordance
with the guidance prepared by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS). As far as possible, the
document identifies the needs, costs and timescales for delivery; funding sources and
responsibilities for infrastructure development. It also identifies the extent to which
infrastructure plans are realistic and where possible identifies a contingency where proposals
are uncertain.

9.35 The production of the SIP has highlighted the high level of uncertainty associated
with the infrastructure planning process. Infrastructure providers work to different timescales
and many have not identified considered long term plans up to 2026. Many providers have
not identified the cost of provision or an appropriate contingency should proposals not go
ahead.

London Borough of Hillingdon

131Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 139



9.36 The SIP recognises the above challenges and will be refined over the period of the
Core Strategy as more information on the infrastructure planning process becomes available.

Social and Community Infrastructure Provision

9.37 The quantity, quality and accessibility of social infrastructure such as libraries, health
facilities, community and faith centres, cultural facilities, emergency services and educational
services, make a direct contribution to the quality of life in Hillingdon.

Policy CI1: Community Infrastructure Provision

The Council will ensure that community and social infrastructure is provided in Hillingdon
to cater for the needs of the existing community and future populations by:

1) Resisting of the loss of community facilities, and where the loss of these facilities is
justified it will seek to ensure that resulting development compensates these uses to
ensure no net loss;

2) Supporting the retention and enhancement of existing community facilities;

3) Supporting extensions to existing schools and the development of new schools;

4) Encouraging the development of multi-purpose facilities that can provide a range of
services and facilities to the community at one accessible location;

5) Promoting innovation in service provision and recognising that there are a range of
modes appropriate for providing for all sections of the community;

6) Requiring development to contribute towards the provision of community facilities to
meet the needs of new communities and mitigate impacts on existing communities;

7) Locating libraries, health facilities, leisure facilities and community centres in town
centres or other accessible locations tomaximise community access, sustainable transport
and build a sense of local community identity;

8) Ensuring new facilities demonstrate how they will tackle climate change, in line with
Policy EM1; and

9) Providing facilities and services that are accessible and inclusive to all potential users
regardless of age, ability, gender or socio-economic status.

9.38 Social infrastructure is essential in providing people with better life opportunities and
creating a sustainable community. Hillingdon has benefited from significant capital spend on
social infrastructure provision. New library, sport and leisure facilities are currently being
delivered and further improvements are expected to come on stream over the period of the
Core Strategy.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010132

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 140



9.39 Chapter 3 of this Core Strategy notes the contrasts that exist in Hillingdon. Improved
access to social infrastructure will form a key part of the Council’s Strategy to address
deprivation, particularly in and around areas of identified need. Further work will be undertaken
to clearly identify the extent deficiencies and the measures to address this issue.

9.40 Further social infrastructure provision will be required to meet the needs of Hillingdon's
growing population and also to accommodate additional housing growth. The Council’s SIP
highlights that recent above average birth rates have put particular pressure on school
provision. Ensuring that sufficient primary places are available will be a key strategy for the
Council going forward to 2026.

9.41 Wherever possible, the capacity of social infrastructure should be increased to reflect
the inevitable increase in demand as new people move into the borough. In the case of
expansion of existing facilities required to meet the needs of additional housing, this will be
negotiated through planning obligations, where appropriate.

9.42 It will be important to safeguard sites for future education, health and community
service needs and also to protect existing sites and premises. Furthermore, community
facilities and services should be located so they have maximum accessibility for potential
users. Somemay be best located in a town centre or key local centre. The Council recognises
key services will have an important role to play in protecting the vitality and viability of town
and local centres over the period of the Core Strategy.

9.43 Birth rates in Hillingdon have risen for several consecutive years with record highs in
2006, 2007 and 2008. Births in 2008 were exceptionally high at 4,126 children and
demographic projections indicate a prolonged period of births at or around this level. This
Core Strategy supports proposals to address the needs arising from an increase in the school
age population, the most pressing of which is to provide an estimated 18 new forms of entry
in Hillingdon's primary schools.

9.44 Secondary school provision in Hillingdon has been reviewed through the Council's
Building Schools for the 21st Century (BSF21) capital programme. BSF21 is part of the
National Building Schools for the Future programme, the single biggest national programme
for improving school buildings for more than 50 years. BSF21 funding will initially be focused
on secondary schools in the south of the borough where needs are greatest. The Core
Strategy supports proposals that come forward through this programme.

Implementation of Policy CI1: how we will achieve this

Provide school places to accommodate an additional 400 children by 2012, through the
expansion of existing schools and the development of new schools.

The development of integrated health centres in areas to be agreed in areas to be agreed
with the Primary Care Trust.

Delivery of appropriate social infrastructure through the consideration of planning
applications for new housing development.

London Borough of Hillingdon

133Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 141



Monitoring of Policy CI1: how we will measure success

Addressing the issues in identified in Hillingdon's Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
Implementation of Hillingdon's Building Schools for the 21st Century programme
Completion of the refurbishment of libraries

Leisure, Recreation and Culture

9.45 The focus on delivering a sporting and cultural legacy is significant. In order to deliver
real legacy for residents in Hillingdon, the focus is on expanding much of the creative and
dynamic work that is already beginning to happen within local communities around sports,
arts and culture as well as maximising opportunities to create new and innovative events,
activities and projects.

9.46 Sport and cultural activities can also make a real and lasting contribution towards
developing civic pride within local communities and a sense of being part of and proud of
their local environment. The importance of these issues is reflected in priority two of the
Council's Sustainable Community Strategy: A borough where communities are strong and
cohesive, and local people have a real opportunity to take an active part in local life, leisure
and culture.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010134

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 142



Policy CI2: Leisure and Recreation

The Council will, in partnership with other bodies, seek to secure good quality, well
maintained leisure and recreation facilities to address identified deficiencies and meet
the needs of local communities, particularly deprived groups, by:

Safeguarding the existing viable leisure and recreational facilities and supporting
proposals for new and improved facilities;
Seeking to improve the geographical spread of leisure and recreational facilities
across the borough by:

Promoting 'community sport hubs'
Improving and upgrading facilities to both modernise andmaximise their capacity
to meet current leisure trends and demands including refurbishment of Highgrove
Pool, extension of facilities at Minet cycle track and Hillingdon Sports & Leisure
Complex.
Increased and improved facilities for specialist sports facilities to accommodate
year round provision and standard of competition where local need can be
identified. Such potential opportunities currently include indoor tennis courts,
velodrome facilities and indoor bowls.
Encouraging cultural and sporting facilities for schools and other institutions
which can be shared with the community through new facilities provided from
the Building Schools for the 21st Century programme, existing providers (at
Brunel University and Uxbridge College) and sports club facilities (such as
Eastcote Hockey Club).
Opening up formal pay and play community access to school facilities.

Increasing the provision of indoor facilities to address the needs of older people;
Ensuring that development proposals will not result in the loss of existing leisure
and recreational facilities unless satisfactory alternative provision is made or it can
be demonstrated that the asset is no longer needed;
Encouraging shared use of private leisure and recreational facilities;
Capitalising on opportunities to supply new sporting and associated facilities in the
Borough to support the legacy of the 2012 Olympics; and
Seeking developer contributions towards improvements to the quality and quantity
of leisure and recreational facilities.

9.47 Sport and physical activity are a means to achieve outcomes across a number of
crosscutting themes, both in terms of promoting healthy, active lifestyles, promoting community
participation and improving general health and well-being. This work can also contribute to
providing sustainable communities, reducing levels of obesity and providing positive activities
for young people that can in turn aid community safety work by providing diversionary activities.

9.48 Sport and physical activity gives people opportunities to learn skills, to express their
identities, and to share experiences. It gives them a sense of community and a stake in the
places where they live, contributing to a feeling of Civic Pride.

9.49 ‘Active Hillingdon’- A Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, 2007-2012 (revised July
2009) reinforces the Council’s commitment to becoming a more active, healthy successful
sporting borough. This includes enhancing the borough’s cultural offer (including sport and

London Borough of Hillingdon

135Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 143



leisure) as well as making further improvements to sports provision, increasing the participation
of residents in active recreation and using the 2012 Olympics as a springboard to encourage
the uptake of healthy lifestyles.

Securing the legacy of 2012

9.50 Although the regeneration legacy of the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games
will focus on east London, the benefit of the Games themselves should be felt throughout
the capital.

9.51 Hillingdon intends to use the Games to inspire young people, residents and businesses,
using this as a vehicle to encourage volunteering and community engagement. A part of this
will be to ensure the borough continues to have good access to sports and recreational
facilities. The Games also offers the opportunity to raise the profile of Hillingdon as a place
to stay within London and to stimulate local tourism.

Assets

9.52 The Borough has a wide range of leisure and recreational facilities and hosts a variety
of different events across the Borough each year. These include 6 swimming pools (including
the open air-pool at Hillingdon Sports & Leisure complex), 3 sports centres, an athletics
stadium and a separate stand alone fitness centre. The new flagship leisure centres in
Uxbridge and Hayes. Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex in Uxbridge includes not only
the refurbished lido but also the first new 50m, 8 lane pool in London for over 40 years.
Botwell Green Sports & Leisure Centre provides new and extended facilities including a
dedicated gymnastics facility to replace ageing and inefficient buildings in the Hayes area.

Implementation of Policy CI2: How we will achieve this

Through the criteria contained in policy CR2
Development of new sport and leisure facilities outlined in the SIP
The promotion of ‘community sport hubs’ across the borough.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010136

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 144



Monitoring of Policy CI2: how we will measure success

Provision and protection of leisure and recreational facilities will be considered in
determining planning applications. Individual allocations of land relating to leisure and
recreation will be set out in the Site Allocations document.

The performancemeasure by which the Council will be judged is through the newNational
Indicator 8. This measures the percentage of adults (16+) taking part in 30 minutes of
moderate sport and physical activity on at least 3 occasions per week. Data will come
from the Active People survey that Sport England will continue to co-ordinate. Local
Authorities will be expected to co-ordinate efforts to meet a 1% annual increase in
participation. Active People will also measure volunteering and satisfaction with local
sports and leisure provision.

In addition, national indicator 157 measures the increase in participation in sport of all
young people (5-19 year olds).
Reporting on progress in implementing the ‘Active Hillingdon’ Strategy will provide
information which will be included in the Annual Monitoring Report, when available.

Culture

9.53 Hillingdon is relatively well served by cultural facilities such as libraries. Some existing
facilities need to be upgraded to provide shared facilities to reflect the varying cultural interests
of different communities. Where there is a recognised need for new facilities, these will be
encouraged.

Policy CI3: Culture

To ensure that cultural uses help improve the quality of life of residents and visitors, a
strong and well-developed cultural provision will be established by:

Safeguarding the existing viable cultural facilities and supporting proposals for new
and improved cultural facilities;
Identifying the need for new culture and arts facilities in the north of the borough
and in the identified Opportunity Areas of Yiewsley/ West Drayton;
Promoting Uxbridge Town Centre, Compass Theatre (Ickenham), Manor Farm
(Ruislip) and Beck Theatre (Hayes) as key cultural centres for the arts serving
Hillingdon and the wider sub-region;
Ensuring smaller facilities are accessible by walking and cycling;
In locations where new development needs access to cultural facilities, developer
contributions will be sought to provide for new and expanded services.

9.54 All libraries are being upgraded as part of the 'Libraries Refurbishment Plan'. Libraries
at Ickenham, Yiewsley, Charville, Northwood, Manor Farm, Harefield andWest Drayton have
been completely refurbished and a brand new library at Ruislip Manor has been built. Policy
CI 1 notes that further refurbishment projects will come forward over the period of the Core
Strategy. The aim is to transform the borough’s local libraries as local ‘community hubs’ that

London Borough of Hillingdon

137Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

9
C
ore

P
olicies

-
Transportand

Infrastructure

Page 145



are accessible to all members of the community offering a range of facilities from reading
materials, free access to electronic information and increasing opportunities for informal
learning that can lead to qualifications and employment.

9.55 Data from the 'Culture Map London' indicates that the highest numbers of visitors to
arts facilities live in the north-east of the borough which is not well served by cultural facilities.
In addition, new cultural facilities will need to be provided in the proposed Heathrow
Opportunity Area particularly Yiewsley/ West Drayton. Uxbridge Town Centre has been
identified as a night-time economy cluster of sub-regional importance in the London Plan
(2008). The development of a 'cultural quarter' within the RAF Uxbridge site would mean
that Uxbridge has the potential to become a cultural ‘hub’ with national quality facilities.

9.56 Limited access to cultural opportunities is one of the key barriers to broadening cultural
experience and enhancing people’s quality of life. Understanding the needs of Hillingdon’s
existing and future communities will assist in removing some of these barriers and increase
participation levels.

9.57 Protection and enhancement of existing facilities will remain a key aspect of future
strategy. More emphasis will be placed upon their improved and more flexible use to meet
the needs of local communities, particularly the needs of young and older people. Opportunities
will be created through new development, particularly in towns, to improve the range of
facilities on offer.

Implementation of Policy CI3: How we will achieve this

The Council will support the implementation of Council's strategies which help to identify
current and future needs for culture and arts facilities in the Borough, including:

Culture Strategy (to be implemented in 2010);
Library Improvement Plan (2002-06).

As this work progresses, the outcomes will continue to be fed into the Local Development
Framework, via the Development Management Document and Supplementary Planning
Documents.

Monitoring of Policy CI3: how we will measure success

Provision and protection of leisure and recreational facilities will be considered in
determining planning applications. Individual allocations of land relating to leisure and
recreation will be set out in the Site Allocations document.

The Annual Monitoring Report will review progress on the implementation of the Culture
Strategy and Policy CI3 and an increase in the engagement in the arts.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010138

9
C
or
e
P
ol
ic
ie
s
-
Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Page 146



Appendix 1 Evidence Base

Studies

A requirement of the LDF process is that the policies are based on a robust evidence base.
As the LDF is required to last a minimum of 15 years, the evidence base is subject to a
continual revision process with regular updates.

Sustainability Appraisal

All development plan documents must contribute to the delivery of sustainable development.
Sustainability Appraisals are required to assess each policy in the Local Development
Framework on the environment and on social and economic considerations. The SA considers
the full range of policy strategies that have been considered as realistic alternatives and their
likely effects, and sets out the reasoned justification for the preferred option in favour of the
rejected alternatives. The Sustainability Appraisal Report for this document is available
separately and can be viewed on the Council's website.

Appropriate Assessment

The Appropriate Assessment report is an assessment of the potential effects of the plan on
European Sites (Special Areas of Conservation). Only plans which will not adversely affect
the integrity of such sites can be approved. The Appropriate Assessment Report is available
as a background document to the LDF evidence base and can be viewed on the Council's
website.

Other Information Sources

Among the key information studies used in the production of the Hilllingdon LDF is the Census
carried out by the Office of National Statistics every 10 years with regular projection updates,
the Annual Business Inquiry, also carried out by the ONS, and the Valuation Office Agency
reports. The GLA produce a range of reports and information on such topics as Retail
Expenditure/Needs, Employment Land Floorspace, and tourism, whilst the LDA consider
among other considerations business and employment trends. The Council also use the
London Development Database record of planning permissions and the National Land Use
Database.

Annual Monitoring Report

Local Planning Authorities are required to produce an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR)
containing information on the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and the
extent to which the policies contained in the Development Plan Documents are being
implemented. The AMR contains key indicators which are used to assess the progress of
the plan’s objectives.

Surveys

Surveys are a key part of assessing the implementation of local policies and to provide a
picture of how the Borough is changing. As part of the Annual Town Centre Health Checks,
all the retail and employment uses are surveyed. Similarly all designated employment areas
are recorded, as are hotel developments and housing development. These surveys are

London Borough of Hillingdon

139Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

1
E
vidence

B
ase

Page 147



normally carried out during the summer. There are also other studies undertaken by other
Council departments and Local Strategic Partners which further help to add clarity to the
Hillingdon picture, such a the Joint Area Need Assessment carried out jointly by the Council
and Hillingdon Primary Care Trust and Air Quality and Noise Data collected by the Council’s
Environment Protection Unit.

Additional evidence base

In developing Hillingdon's Core Strategy, the following sources of evidence have been used.
These include work undertaken by the Council, studies undertaken by consultants on behalf
of the Council, GLA research published as part of the London Plan evidence base and
demographic data and Government/ Census information.

Evidence Base

London Borough of Hillingdon LDF Background Technical Reports:

Annual Town Centre Health Checks
Development Plan Annual Monitoring Report 2008/2009 (December 2009)
Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Appraisal (2007)
Eastcote Park Estate Conservation Area Management Plan (2008)
Employment Land Study (July 2009)
Evidence Base for Joint West London Waste Plan (Mouchel, September 2008);
The Glen, Northwood Conservation Appraisal (2008)
The Glen, Northwood Conservation Area Management Plan (2008)
Green Belt Land Review (LBH, 2006)
Habitats Regulation Assessment of the Core Planning Strategy (LBH with Scott Wilson
2007)
Harmonsworth Conservation Appraisal (2007)
Housing Needs Survey (2005)
Local Parades (September 2006)
Longford Conservation Appraisal (2007)
Minerals Background Paper (Jacobs Babtie 2008)
Open Space Assessment (LBH, Community First Partnership 2010)
PPS25 Sequential Test based on joint Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (LBH, November
2008)
Ruislip Village Conservation Appraisal (2010)
SA Report on ‘Joint West London Waste Plan: Issues and Options’ (LB Hillingdon in
partnership with LB Brent, LB Ealing, LB Harrow, LB Hounslow, LB Richmond upon
Thames)
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Level 1 (LBH/Scott Wilson 2008)
Tourism Study (January 2007)
Town Centres and Retail Study 2006 (January 2007)
West London Waste Plan DPD

London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Policy and Guidance

Affordable Housing SPD (adopted May 2006)
Air Quality SPG (adopted May 2002)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010140

A
pp
en
di
x
1
E
vi
de
nc
e
B
as
e

Page 148



Biodiversity Action Plan (due to be published 2010)
Botwell Green Planning Brief (adopted adopted April 2002)
Community Safety By Design (adopted July 2004)
Former NATS site, Porters Way, West Drayton SPD (September 2009)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon (2009)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Public Realm Draft (April 2006)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions (adopted 2006,
updated December 2008)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts (adopted 2006, to
be updated 2010)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Shopfronts (adopted 2006)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Transport Interchanges (adopted 2006)
Hillingdon House Farm Planning Brief (adopted May 2003)
Houses in Multiple Occupation and Other Non-self Contained Housing SPG (adopted
August 2004)
Live/ Work SPD (adopted May 2006)
Local Development Framework Core Strategy 'Preferred Options' DPD 2005
Local Development Framework Core Strategy Revised core strategy preferred options
(March 2007)
Noise SPD (adopted May 2006)
Planning Obligations SPD (adopted July 2008, to be updated 2010)
Porters Way Planning Brief SPD (adopted December 2005)
RAF Uxbridge Supplementary Planning Document (January 2009)
Unitary Development (adopted 1998) Saved Policies (27th September 2007)

London Borough of Hillingdon Strategies

A Prosperous Borough: Hillingdon’s strategy for a sustainable economy 2005-2015 (June
2005)
Active Hillingdon - A Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, 2007-2012 (revised July 2009)
Air Quality Action Plan 2004-2010
Children’s and Families Trust Plan 2008-11
Climate Change Strategy 2008 –2011
Community Cohesion Framework 2007-2010
Culture Strategy (to be implemented in 2010)
Green Spaces Strategy 2002
Hillingdon’s Children and Families Trust – Needs Assessment (Emerging 2010)
Hillingdon’s Disabled People’s Plan 2009 – 2012
Housing Market Assessment 2009 (Emerging)
Joint Allotments Strategy 2003-8
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2005-2020
Joint Draft Strategic Needs Assessment 2008-2013
LB Hillingdon Housing Strategy 2007-2010
Library Improvement Plan (2002-06)
Local Implementation Plan 2006-2011 (March 2006)
Plan for Older People 2008-2011
Safer Hillingdon Partnership Plan 2008-11 (2009/10 edition)

London Borough of Hillingdon

141Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

1
E
vidence

B
ase

Page 149



Strategic Infrastructure Plan (Emerging)
Strategy for Sports and Physical Activity 2007-2012
Supporting People Priorities 2008-2010
Supporting People Strategy 2005-2010
Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-2018 (Hillingdon Partners, 2008)
The Council Plan ‘Fast Forward to 2010

Regional

2009 London Town Centre Health Check Analysis Report (Greater London Authority,
December 2009)
Consumer Expenditure and Comparison Goods Retail Floorspace Need in London
(Greater London Authority, March 2009)
Cultural Metropolis: The Mayor's Priorities for Culture 2009-12 (Greater London Authority,
November 2008)
Economic Development Strategy: Sustaining Success: Developing London’s Economy
(London Development Agency, 2005)
Draft Mayor's Transport Strategy (Greater London Authority, October 2009)
Draft Regional Flood Risk Appraisal (Greater London Authority, 2007);
Evidence Base: Climate Change in the FALP (Greater London Authority, 2007)
GLA Economics Working Paper 38: Employment projections for London by sector and
trend-based projections by borough (Greater London Authority, November 2009)
GLA Economics Working Paper 39: Borough employment projections to 2031 (Greater
London Authority , November 2009)
Industrial Capacity: London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2004)
Supplementary Planning Guidance (Greater London Authority, March 2008
Local Area Tourism Impact Model: Hillingdon borough report (London Development
Agency, July 2009)
London Carbon Scenarios to 2026 (Greater London Authority, 2006)
London Office Policy Review 2009 (Greater London Authority, November 2009)
The London Plan Consolidated with Alterations since 2004 (Greater London Authority,
February 2008)
The London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (Greater London
Authority, April 2009)
The London Plan Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London Consultation draft
replacement plan (Greater London Authority, October 2009)
The London Plan Sub-Regional Development FrameworkWest London (Greater London
Authority, May 2006)
The London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Housing (Greater London Authority,
November 2005)
London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Providing for Children and Young
People’s Play and Informal Recreation (2007)
London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance: Sustainable Design and Construction;
Greater London Authority(May 2006)
The London Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment and Housing Capacity
Study (SHLAA/HCS) (2009)
London Waste Apportionment Study (Greater London Authority, 2006);
Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy Cleaning London’s Air’ (Greater London Authority, 2002);

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010142

A
pp
en
di
x
1
E
vi
de
nc
e
B
as
e

Page 150



Mayor’s Ambient Noise Strategy (Greater London Authority, March 2007);
Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy: Connecting with London’s Nature (Greater London
Authority, 2002);
Mayor’s Climate Change Action Plan (February 2007);
Mayor’s Draft Municipal Waste Management Strategy London’s Wasted Resource
(Greater London Authority, January 2010);
Mayor’s Energy Strategy: Green Light to Clean Power (Greater London Authority, 2004);
Mayor's Transport Strategy (Greater London Authority, 2001)
Rising to the challenge: TheMayor’s Economic Development Strategy for Greater London
Public Consultation Draft (Greater London Authority, October 2009)
Tomorrow’s Suburbs: Tools for Making London’s Suburbs More Sustainable (June 2006)
(URBED, 2006)
West London: Developing a Sub-regional Transport Plan: Interim report on challenges
and opportunities (Greater London Authority, February 2010)

National

Air Quality Strategy for England: Working Together for Clean Air (DEFRA, 2007)
Biodiversity: UK Action Plan (DEFRA 1994)
Building a Greener Future: Towards Zero Carbon Development (CLG, 2006)
By Design: Urban Design in the Planning System - Towards Better Practice - (May 2000)
Climate Change Bill (2008)
Code for Sustainable Homes: Setting the Standard in Sustainability for New Homes
(CLG, Feb 2008)
Draft Planning Policy Statement: Planning for a Natural and Healthy Environment
(Department for Communities and Local Government, March 2010)
EnergyWhite Paper 2003: Our Energy Future: creating a low carbon economy (DEFRA,
2003)
Environmental Noise (England) Regulations 2006
Environmental Quality in Spatial Planning: An Environmental Vision (jointly prepared by
Countryside Agency, English Heritage, English Nature and the EA, 2005)
The Future of Air Transport: Cm 6046 (Department of Transport, December 2003)
Good Practice Guide on Planning for Tourism (Department for Communities and Local
Government, May 2006)
Homes for the future: more affordable, more sustainable. Green Paper Cm 7191 (TSO,
July 2007)
Household Waste Recycling Act 2003
Indicative Flood Plain Map (Environment Agency, 2009)
Landfill (England and Wales) Regulations 2002
Looking after our town centres (Department for Communities and Local Government,
April 2009)
Minerals Policy Statement 1: Planning and Minerals (2006)
Minerals Policy Statement 2: Controlling and mitigating the environmental effects of
mineral extraction in England (2006)
National Waste Strategy 2007
The Planning Act 2008 Chapter 29 (OPSI, November 2008)
The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act Chapter 5 (OPSI, May 2004)

London Borough of Hillingdon

143Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

1
E
vidence

B
ase

Page 151



Planning for a Sustainable Future. White Paper Cm 7120 (TSO, May 2007)
Planning for Town Centres: Guidance on Design and Implementation tools (ODPM,
March 2005)
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development (ODPM,January
2005)
Planning Policy Statement 1: Planning and Climate Change – Supplement to Planning
Policy Statement 1 (Department for Communities and Local Government,December
2007)
Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts (DOE, January 1995, amended March 2001)
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing ((Department for Communities and Local
Government,November 2006)
Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth (Department
for Communities and Local Government, December 2009)
Planning for Town Centres: Practice guidance on need, impact and the sequential
approach (Department for Communities and Local Government, December 2009)
PPS4 Impact Assessment (Department for Communities and Local Government,
December 2009)
Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment (Department for
Communities and Local Government, March 2010)
PPS5: Planning for the Historic Environment: Historic Environment Planning Practice
Guide (Department for Communities and Local Government, March 2010)
Planning Policy Statement 7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas (ODPM, August
2004)
Planning Policy Guidance 8: Telecommunications (ODPM, August 2001)
Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity and Geological Conservation (ODPM, August
2005)
Planning for Biodiversity and Geological Conservation: A Guide to Good Practice (2006);
Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management (ODPM,
July 2005)
Planning for Sustainable Waste Management: A Companion Guide to Planning Policy
Statement 10 (2006)
Planning Policy Statement 12: Local Spatial Planning (Department for Communities and
Local Government,June 2008)
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport (ODPM, March 2001)
Planning Policy Guidance 17: Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation (ODPM,
July 2002)
Planning Policy Statement 22: Renewable Energy (ODPM, August 2004)
Planning for Renewable Energy: A Companion Guide to PPS22 (2004);
Planning Policy Statement 23: Planning and Pollution Control (ODPM, November 2004)
Planning Policy Guidance 24: Planning and Noise (DoE, September 1994)
Planning Policy Statement 25: Development and Flood Risk (Department for Communities
and Local Government,March 2010)
Safer Places: The Planning System and Crime Prevention (ODPM, 2004)
Securing the Future: UK Sustainable Development Strategy (DEFRA, 2005)
Sustainable Communities Plan: Building for the Future (ODPM, 2003)
Thames Catchment Flood Management Plan: Thames Region (Environment Agency,
July 2008)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010144

A
pp
en
di
x
1
E
vi
de
nc
e
B
as
e

Page 152



Thames Water Draft Business Plan (August 2008)
Thames Water: Draft Water Resources Management Plan ‘Water - Planning for the
future’ (2008)
The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004
(Statutory Instrument 2204)
The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 (Statutory Instrument 1371)
The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) (Amendment)
Regulations 2009 (Statutory Instrument 401)
UK Climate Change Programme (DEFRA)
Waste and Emissions and Trading Act 2003
The Waste Management (England and Wales) Regulations 2006
White Paper: Planning for a Sustainable Future (DEFRA, 2007)
White Paper: A Future for Transport: A network for 2030 (July 2004)

International

Directive on Ambient Air Quality and Management (1996/62/EC)
Directive on the Assessment and Management of Environmental Noise (2002/49/EC)
Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats of Wild Fauna and Flora (92/43/EEC)
Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds (79/409/EEC)
Directive on Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment (2002/95/EC)
Directive on Packaging and Packaging Waste (1994/62/EC)
Directive on the Management of Waste from Extractive Industries (2006/21/EC)
Directive onWaste Electrical and Electronic equipment or ‘WEEEDirective’ (2002/96/EC)
European Directive 2001/42/EC on Strategic Environmental Assessment or ‘SEA
Directive'
European Spatial Development Perspective (1999)
European Sustainable Development Strategy (2001)
Johannesburg Declaration on Sustainable Development (United Nations 2002)
Kyoto Agreement 1997
Landfill Directive 1999/31/EC
Waste Framework Directive (2006/12/EC)
Water Framework Directive (2000/60/EC)

London Borough of Hillingdon

145Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

1
E
vidence

B
ase

Page 153



Appendix 2 Infrastructure Schedule

Page left intentionally blank

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010146

A
pp
en
di
x
2
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

S
ch
ed
ul
e

Page 154



Page left intentionally blank

London Borough of Hillingdon

147Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

2
Infrastructure

S
chedule

Page 155



L
O
N
D
O
N
B
O
R
O
U
G
H
O
F
H
IL
L
IN
G
D
O
N
D
R
A
F
T
IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E
S
C
H
E
D
U
L
E

M
ay
20
10

T
he

pr
oj
ec
ts
,p
ro
gr
am

m
es

an
d
sc
he
m
es

in
th
is
sc
he
du
le
ha
ve

be
en

id
en
tif
ie
d
th
ro
ug
h
di
sc
us
si
on

w
ith

an
d
th
e
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n
of
ke
y

do
cu
m
en
ts
fr
om

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

pr
ov
id
er
s.
M
an
y
of
th
e
pr
oj
ec
ts
,p
ro
gr
am

m
es

or
sc
he
m
es

w
ill
re
qu
ire

fu
rt
he
r
ap
pr
ov
al
,e
ith
er

fr
om

th
e

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

or
ot
he
rs
ta
tu
to
ry
bo
di
es
.I
nc
lu
si
on

of
a
pr
oj
ec
t,
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
or
sc
he
m
e
in
th
is
sc
he
du
le
do
es

no
tc
on
st
itu
te

an
in
di
ca
tio
n
th
at
su
ch

ap
pr
ov
al
w
ill
be

gr
an
te
d,
ei
th
er

in
pr
in
ci
pa
lo
r
ot
he
rw
is
e.

S
O
C
IA
L
A
N
D
C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r

o
th
er

O
rg
an
is
at
io
n
s

C
o
n
ti
n
g
en
cy

P
la
n
n
in
g

R
eq
u
ir
ed

F
u
n
d
in
g
A
rr
an
g
em
en
ts

In
d
ic
at
iv
e
D
el
iv
er
y/
P
h
as
in
g

A
p
p
ro
xi
m
at
e

C
o
st

R
eq
u
ir
em
en
ts
o
f
S
ch
em
e

N
ee
d
fo
r
S
ch
em
e

S
ch
em
e

L
ea
d
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t

A
g
en
cy

H
ea
th

H
ill
in
gd
on

H
os
pi
ta
l

Tr
us
t

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e

si
te
s.
F
ur
th
er

di
sc
us
si
on
s

w
ith

LB
H
.

H
ill
in
gd
on

P
C
T

H
ill
in
gd
on

P
rim

ar
y
C
ar
e
Tr
us
t
/L
on
do
n

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on
/P
riv
at
e

£6
m
ill
io
n

Id
en
tif
y
si
te
of
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y

2,
50
0
sq
m
flo
or

sp
ac
e
&

pa
rk
in
g.

R
en
ew

an
d
im
pr
ov
e
ex
is
tin
g
P
C
T
fa
ci
lit
ie
s

N
ew

ce
nt
ra
lis
ed

P
C
T

fa
ci
lit
y
in
Y
ie
w
sl
ey

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n
P
C
T

S
ec
to
r

H
ill
in
gd
on

H
os
pi
ta
l

Tr
us
t

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e

si
te
s.
F
ur
th
er

di
sc
us
si
on
s

w
ith

LB
H

H
ill
in
gd
on

P
C
T

H
ill
in
gd
on

P
rim

ar
y
C
ar
e
Tr
us
t

/L
on
do
n
B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on
/P
riv
at
e

£9
m
ill
io
n

N
ew

bu
ild
in
g
of

ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y
3,
00
0
sq
m

To
de
ve
lo
p
ou
to
fh
os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s
an
d
im
pr
ov
ed

ac
ce
ss

N
ew

ce
nt
ra
lis
ed

P
C
T

fa
ci
lit
y
in
H
ay
es

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n
P
C
T

S
ec
to
r

P
C
T.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

H
ill
in
gd
on

H
os
pi
ta
lT
ru
st

C
ap
ita
lP

ro
gr
am

m
e.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed
.P

la
nn
in
g

ap
pl
ic
at
io
n
re
ce
iv
ed

to
ex
te
nd

th
e
tim

es
ca
le
of
th
e
ou
tli
ne

co
ns
en
t.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

O
ut
lin
e
co
ns
en
to
bt
ai
ne
d
fo
r

de
m
ol
iti
on

w
or
ks

at
H
ill
in
gd
on

H
os
pi
ta
la
nd

th
e

ph
as
ed

re
de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
ft
he

si
te
.

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
to
ac
ut
e
he
al
th
ca
re

pr
ov
is
io
n
in

th
e
bo
ro
ug
h

R
ed
ev
el
op
m
en
to
f

H
ill
in
gd
on

H
os
pi
ta
l.

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n
H
o
sp
ita
lT
ru
st

E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n
,L
ea
rn
in
g
an
d
Yo
u
th
P
ro
vi
si
o
n

P
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e

si
tin
g
op
tio
ns
/

ex
pa
ns
io
n
of

ex
is
tin
g

fa
ci
lit
ie
s

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

/S
ec
tio
n
10
6
/

D
C
S
F
ce
nt
ra
lg
ov
't

N
ew

fa
ci
lit
ie
s
ne
ed

to
be

in
pl
ac
e
by

20
12

£7
0
m
ill
io
n

R
eq
ui
re
m
en
tf
or
an

ad
di
tio
na
l

18
pr
im
ar
y
fo
rm

s
of
en
tr
y

ac
ro
ss

th
e
bo
ro
ug
h.

To
ac
co
m
m
od
at
e
re
ce
nt
8%

in
cr
ea
se

in
bi
rt
h

ra
te
s
an
d
as
so
ci
at
ed

in
cr
ea
se

in
sc
ho
ol
ag
e

po
pu
la
tio
n

E
xp
an
si
on

of
pr
im
ar
y

sc
ho
ol
es
ta
te

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n
–
E
d
u
ca
ti
o
n

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010148

A
pp
en
di
x
2
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

S
ch
ed
ul
e

Page 156



O
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s
fo
r

jo
in
tu
se

of
fa
ci
lit
ie
s

N
on
e

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

/S
ec
tio
n
10
6

/D
C
S
F
ce
nt
ra
l

go
ve
rn
m
en
t

20
09
-2
01
8

A
pp
ro
x
£1
50
m

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
ta
nd
/o
r

re
bu
ild
in
g
of
se
co
nd
ar
y
an
d

sp
ec
ia
ls
ch
oo
ls
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h

To
m
od
er
ni
se

se
co
nd
ar
y
sc
ho
ol
es
ta
te

B
ui
ld
in
gs

S
ch
oo
ls
fo
r

th
e
21
st
C
en
tu
ry

(B
S
21
),
pa
rt
of
th
e

w
id
er

B
ui
ld
in
g
S
ch
oo
ls

fo
r
th
e
F
ut
ur
e.

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

W
or
ki
ng

in
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p
w
ith

th
e

C
ou
nc
il

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

S
el
ff
un
de
d

U
p
to
20
13

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

P
la
nn
in
g
ap
pl
ic
at
io
n
re
ce
iv
ed

fo
r
th
e
de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
fn
ew

sp
or
ts
fa
ci
lit
ie
s,
im
pr
ov
ed

To
ac
co
m
m
od
at
e
16
.8
%

in
cr
ea
se

in
st
ud
en
t

nu
m
be
rs
at
th
e
U
xb
rid
ge

ca
m
pu
s
an
d
6.
4%

in
cr
ea
se

at
th
e
H
ay
es

si
te
be
tw
ee
n
20
07
-2
01
3

E
xp
an
si
on

of
U
xb
rid
ge

C
ol
le
ge

U
xb
rid
ge

C
am

pu
s

U
xb
ri
d
g
e
C
o
lle
g
e

ac
ce
ss

ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
,

eq
ui
va
le
nt
on
-s
ite

pa
rk
in
g

an
d
la
nd
sc
ap
in
g

en
ha
nc
em

en
ts
.

P
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

to
be

de
te
rm

in
ed
.

F
ut
ur
e

m
as
te
rp
la
ns

w
ill
in
vo
lv
e
an

S
el
ff
un
de
d

C
ur
re
nt
m
as
te
rp
la
nn
in
g
pe
rio
d

co
m
es

to
an

en
d
in
20
14
.

P
ro
du
ct
io
n
of
ne
w

m
as
te
rp
la
n

is
cu
rr
en
tly

be
in
g
co
ns
id
er
ed
.

E
xp
ec
te
d
an
nu
al

sp
en
d
of
£1
3

m
ill
io
n
du
rin
g
th
e

ne
xt

m
as
te
rp
la
nn
in
g

pe
rio
d

K
ey

ou
ts
ta
nd
in
g
pr
oj
ec
tf
ro
m

th
e
ex
is
tin
g
m
as
te
rp
la
n
is
th
e

E
as
te
rn

G
at
ew

ay
B
us
in
es
s

S
ch
oo
l,
w
hi
ch

is
du
e
fo
r

co
m
pl
et
io
n
in
20
12
.

To
ad
dr
es
s
th
e
ne
ed
s
of
ex
is
tin
g
st
ud
en
ts
an
d

pr
ov
id
e
up
da
te
d
fa
ci
lit
ie
s

C
om

pl
et
io
n
of

U
ni
ve
rs
ity

M
as
te
rp
la
n

B
ru
n
el
U
n
iv
er
si
ty

ap
pr
ai
sa
lo
f

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t

op
tio
ns
.

F
ur
th
er

A
nu
m
be
r
of
fu
tu
re

pr
oj
ec
ts

ar
e
be
in
g
co
ns
id
er
ed

fo
r
th
e

ne
xt
m
as
te
rp
la
nn
in
g
pe
rio
d

(2
01
4-
20
21
)

di
sc
us
si
on
s

w
ith

LB
H
ar
e

re
qu
ire
d.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

D
ev
el
op
m
en
to
ft
hr
ee

ne
w

yo
ut
h
ce
nt
re
s
at
S
ou
th

R
ui
sl
ip
,N

or
th
w
oo
d
an
d

H
ay
es
.

C
on
tin
ue

to
su
pp
or
ta
cc
es
s
to
yo
ut
h
fa
ci
lit
ie
s

E
nh
an
ce

th
e
ov
er
al
ly
ou
th
of
fe
r
C
on
tin
ue

to
de
ve
lo
p
se
rv
ic
es

fo
r
yo
un
g
pe
op
le

Im
pr
ov
ed

Yo
ut
h

C
en
tr
es

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

O
th
er
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
In
fr
as
tr
u
ct
u
re

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

A
s
de
fin
ed

in
th
e
A
ss
et

M
an
ag
em

en
tP
la
n,
ad
di
tio
na
l

ne
ig
hb
ou
rh
oo
d
ba
se
s
an
d

To
pr
ov
id
e
m
or
e
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
po
lic
in
g
an
d
to
co
m
pl
y

w
ith

A
ss
et
M
an
ag
em

en
tS

tr
at
eg
y

N
ee
d
to
re
vi
ew

po
lic
e

fa
ci
lit
ie
s
in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h

as
pa
rt
of
th
e
as
se
t

m
an
ag
em

en
tp
ro
ce
ss
.

M
et
ro
p
o
lit
an
P
o
lic
e

pa
tr
ol
ba
se
s
to
se
rv
e
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm

en
tN

ee
d
fo
r

ad
di
tio
na
lc
us
to
dy

an
d
pa
tr
ol

ba
se

fa
ci
lit
ie
s.

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

R
ed
ev
el
op
m
en
to
ft
w
o

st
at
io
ns

in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h

M
ai
nt
ai
n
th
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
fir
e
se
rv
ic
es

in
H
ill
in
gd
on

P
la
ns

to
re
de
ve
lo
p
tw
o

si
te
s
in
th
e
B
or
ou
gh

L
o
n
d
o
n
F
ir
e
S
er
vi
ce

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

A
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
lo
ca
tio
ns

to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
an
d
de
ve
lo
pe
d
in

ac
co
rd
an
ce

w
ith

LD
F
po
lic
y.

D
ev
el
op
m
en
to
fa
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
lo
ca
tio
ns

fo
rp
la
ce
s

of
w
or
sh
ip
in
re
sp
on
se

to
po
pu
la
tio
n
gr
ow

th
,

P
la
ce
s
of
W
or
sh
ip

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

H
ill
in
gd
on

H
om

es
,

R
S
Ls

an
d
ce
nt
ra
l

go
ve
rn
m
en
t

ag
en
ci
es
.

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e

si
te
s

D
ire
ct
R
S
L
fu
nd
in
g,

ce
nt
ra
lg
ov
er
nm

en
ta
nd

S
10
6
co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

D
ev
el
op
m
en
to
fa
ffo
rd
ab
le

ho
us
in
g
on

a
nu
m
be
r
of
ke
y

si
te
s
an
d
its

de
liv
er
y
th
ro
ug
h

S
10
6
co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

To
ad
dr
es
s
ho
us
in
g
ne
ed
s
in
H
ill
in
gd
on

A
ffo
rd
ab
le
H
ou
si
ng

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n
an
d
P
ar
tn
er

O
rg
an
is
at
io
n
s

London Borough of Hillingdon

149Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

2
Infrastructure

S
chedule

Page 157



P
H
Y
S
IC
A
L
IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E

O
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s
fo
r
ot
he
r

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

C
on
tin
ge
nc
y
P
la
nn
in
g

R
eq
ui
re
d

F
un
di
ng

A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts

In
di
ca
tiv
e

D
el
iv
er
y/
P
ha
si
ng

A
pp
ro
xi
m
at
e
C
os
t

R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
of
S
ch
em

e
N
ee
d
fo
r
S
ch
em

e
S
ch
em

e
Le
ad

D
el
iv
er
y
A
ge
nc
y

E
ne
rg
y,
U
til
iti
es

an
d
W
as
te

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

Id
en
tif
ie
d
to
ta
ke

pl
ac
e
in

th
e
ne
xt
7
ye
ar
s

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

E
xa
ct
na
tu
re

an
d

sp
ec
ifi
ca
tio
n
of
th
e
w
or
k

ha
s
ye
tt
o
be

de
fin
ed

To
ac
co
m
m
od
at
e

an
tic
ip
at
ed

de
m
an
d,
as

id
en
tif
ie
d
in
N
at
io
na
lG

rid
’s

S
ev
en

Ye
ar

S
ta
te
m
en
t.

U
pg
ra
de
s
to
N
or
th
H
yd
e

an
d
Iv
er

el
ec
tr
ic
ity

su
b-
st
at
io
ns

N
at
io
na
lG

rid

M
os
tn
ew

co
nn
ec
tio
ns

w
or
k
is
‘c
on
te
st
ab
le
’a
nd

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

N
or
m
al
ly
fu
nd
ed

by
de
ve
lo
pe
r

O
ne

ye
ar

or
le
ss

fo
r
lo
w

vo
lta
ge

an
d
m
os
t1
1k
V

C
os
to
fP
rim

ar
y
su
bs
ta
tio
n

=
£4

m
ill
io
n

C
os
to
fD

is
tr
ib
ut
io
n

su
bs
ta
tio
n
=
£5
0,
00
0

A
s
re
qu
ire
d
by

th
e
si
te

F
ac
ili
ta
te
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm

en
ta
nd

pr
ov
id
e

ne
w
or
in
cr
ea
se
d
su
pp
lie
s

D
iv
er
si
on

or
al
te
ra
tio
n
of

el
ec
tr
ic
ity

di
st
rib
ut
io
n

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

fo
r
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t.

N
ew

an
d
/o
r
re
in
fo
rc
ed

el
ec
tr
ic
ity

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
.

S
co
tti
sh

an
d
S
ou
th
er
n

E
le
ct
ric
ity

ca
n
be

co
m
pl
et
ed

by
ot
he
rs
.

w
or
k.

Ty
pi
ca
lly

tw
o
ye
ar
s

fo
r
33
kV

w
or
k.

U
p
to
fiv
e

ye
ar
s
fo
r6
6k
V
an
d
13
2k
V

w
or
k.

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

T
ha
m
es

W
at
er

B
y
20
12

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

S
ite

lo
ca
te
d
in
Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ou
ns
lo
w

To
im
pr
ov
e
w
at
er

qu
al
ity
.

S
ch
em

e
m
ay

be
re
qu
ire
d

M
og
de
n
S
T
W

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

T
ha
m
es

W
at
er

to
co
nt
in
ue

to
su
pp
or
t

po
pu
la
tio
n
gr
ow

th
.

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
ar
e
lik
e
to

be
re
qu
ire
d

F
un
de
d
th
ro
ug
h
de
ve
lo
pe
r

co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

an
d
T
ha
m
es

W
at
er
C
ap
ita
lP
ro
gr
am

m
e

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
w
ill
be

un
de
rt
ak
en

as
re
qu
ire
d

D
ep
en
da
nt
on

na
tu
re

of
w
or
ks

D
ep
en
da
nt
on

le
ve
lo
f

gr
ow

th
A
dd
iti
on
al
ca
pa
ci
ty
m
ay

be
re
qu
ire
d
to
ad
dr
es
s
gr
ow

th
in
th
e
so
ut
h
of
bo
ro
ug
h,

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
to
th
e

C
ol
ne

Va
lle
y
Tr
un
k,
C
ra
ne

Va
lle
y
Tr
un
k
an
d
B
at
h

R
oa
d
Tr
un
k

T
ha
m
es

W
at
er

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
in
th
e
B
at
h

R
oa
d
em

pl
oy
m
en
ta
re
a.

A
ra
ng
e
of
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

in
cl
ud
in
g
O
F
W
AT

an
d

LB
H
.

A
ra
ng
e
of
m
ea
su
re
s
ar
e

be
in
g
co
ns
id
er
ed

to
pr
ot
ec
ts
up
pl
ie
s.

P
ro
je
ct
s
ad
m
in
is
te
re
d

th
ro
ug
h
T
V
W
’s
ca
pi
ta
l

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.

U
p
to
20
31

£1
8
m
ill
io
n
to
be

in
ve
st
ed

in
le
ak
ag
e
pr
ev
en
tio
n.

A
ra
ng
e
of
de
m
an
d
an
d

su
pp
ly
m
ea
su
re
s
in
si
de

an
d
ou
ts
id
e
H
ill
in
gd
on
.

To
pr
ot
ec
td
rin
ki
ng

w
at
er

su
pp
lie
s
ov
er
th
e
pe
rio
d
of

th
e
C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y,
ba
se
d

Va
rio
us

pr
oj
ec
ts

T
hr
ee

Va
lle
ys

W
at
er

P
ro
po
sa
ls
in
cl
ud
e
th
e

on
T
V
W
’s
ca
pi
ta
l

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.

de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
fU

pp
er

T
ha
m
es

R
es
er
vo
ir
an
d
a

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
of
in
ve
st
m
en
t

to
m
in
im
is
e
le
ak
ag
e.

O
th
er

W
es
tL
on
do
n

pa
rt
ne
rs
.

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
ap
pr
op
ria
te

si
te
s
fo
r
w
as
te

m
an
ag
em

en
tf
ac
ili
tie
s.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

U
p
to
20
26

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

th
ro
ug
h

th
e
de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
ft
he

W
es
tL
on
do
n
W
as
te
P
la
n.

To
en
su
re

th
e
su
st
ai
na
bl
e

m
an
ag
em

en
to
fw

as
te
in

H
ill
in
gd
on

ov
er

th
e
pe
rio
d

D
ev
el
op
m
en
to
fa
n

ap
pr
op
ria
te
nu
m
be
r
of

w
as
te
m
an
ag
em

en
t

W
es
tL
on
do
n
W
as
te

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip

of
th
e
C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
an
d

fa
ci
lit
ie
s
in
H
ill
in
gd
on

an
d

th
e
w
es
tL
on
do
n
re
gi
on
.

m
ee
tw

as
te
ap
po
rti
on
m
en
t

ta
rg
et
s.

Tr
an
sp
or
ta
nd

C
on
ne
ct
iv
ity

LB
H
is
cu
rr
en
tly

be
in
g

co
ns
ul
te
d
on

C
ro
ss
ra
il

w
or
ks
.

N
ee
d
to
co
ns
id
er

gr
ow

th
op
tio
ns

fo
r
H
ay
es
/W

es
t

D
ra
yt
on

C
or
rid
or

w
ith
ou
t

C
ro
ss
ra
il.

D
F
T
/C
ro
ss
ra
il/
M
ay
or

of
Lo
nd
on
/T
fL
/s
10
6

20
15
-2
01
7

A
pp
ro
xi
m
at
e
ov
er
al
lc
os
t

of
£1
2
bi
lli
on
C
os
ti
n
LB

H
to
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

N
ew

st
at
io
n
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
at

W
es
tD

ra
yt
on

an
d

Y
ie
w
sl
ey
B
rid
ge
s
an
d

vi
ad
uc
ts
.T
ra
ck

w
or
ks

an
d

To
im
pr
ov
e
pu
bl
ic

tr
an
sp
or
ta
cc
es
s
ac
ro
ss

Lo
nd
on
.S

ch
em

e
is
lik
el
y

to
be
ne
fit
ec
on
om

ic
gr
ow

th

C
ro
ss
ra
il

D
F
T
/C

ro
ss
ra
il

el
ec
tri
fic
at
io
n
w
ill
al
so

ta
ke

pl
ac
e.

in
th
e
so
ut
h
of
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h.

C
ro
ss
ra
il,
N
et
w
or
k
R
ai
l,

F
irs
tG

re
at
W
es
te
rn

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e
st
at
io
n
la
yo
ut

to
ac
co
m
m
od
at
e
C
ro
ss
ra
il

S
ec
tio
n
10
6
fu
nd
in
g

B
ef
or
e
20
15

S
af
eg
ua
rd
ed

S
10
6
fu
nd
in
g

+
C
ro
ss
ra
il
fu
nd
in
g

R
el
oc
at
io
n
of
st
at
io
n
tic
ke
t

of
fic
e

To
im
pr
ov
e
st
at
io
n
se
tti
ng

an
d
ap
pe
ar
an
ce
.

U
pg
ra
de

w
or
ks

to
H
ay
es

S
ta
tio
n

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010150

A
pp
en
di
x
2
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

S
ch
ed
ul
e

Page 158



To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e
im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

m
ay

ne
ed

to
be

co
ns
id
er
ed

S
ch
em

es
fu
nd
ed

by
th
e

C
ou
nc
il

20
10
-2
01
1.
F
ur
th
er

m
ai
nt
en
an
ce

pr
og
ra
m
m
es

w
ill
co
m
e
fo
rw
ar
d
on

an

B
ud
ge
tt
o
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

P
ro
gr
am

m
e
of
pr
io
rit
is
ed

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
fo
rb
or
ou
gh

w
id
e
hi
gh
w
ay

ne
tw
or
k.

To
m
ai
nt
ai
n
th
e
ex
is
tin
g

hi
gh
w
ay

ne
tw
or
k.
W
or
ks

w
ill
be

re
qu
ire
d
to
ad
dr
es
s

co
ng
es
tio
n
ho
ts
po
ts
.

M
ai
nt
en
an
ce

of
ex
is
tin
g

hi
gh
w
ay

ne
tw
or
k

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

an
nu
al
ba
si
s
ov
er

th
e

pe
rio
d
of
th
e
C
or
e

S
tr
at
eg
y.

P
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

w
ill

be
de
pe
nd

on
th
e
na
tu
re

of
in
di
vi
du
al
pr
oj
ec
ts
.

F
un
di
ng

fo
r
LI
P
pr
oj
ec
ts

ha
s
al
re
ad
y
be
en

id
en
tif
ie
d.

T
fL

20
10
-2
01
1.
F
ur
th
er

pr
oj
ec
ts
w
ill
co
m
e
fo
rw
ar
d

fr
om

su
bs
eq
ue
nt
LI
P
S

£4
m
ill
io
n
to
be

sp
lit

be
tw
ee
n
ap
pr
ox
im
at
el
y
40

pr
oj
ec
ts

R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
an
d
na
tu
re

of
LI
P
sc
he
m
es

w
ill
va
ry
.

LB
H
LI
P
ha
s
be
en

de
ve
lo
pe
d
to
re
sp
on
d
to

th
e
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts
of
th
e

‘A
re
a
B
as
ed
’s
ch
em

es
to

be
im
pl
em

en
te
d
th
ro
ug
h

th
e
LI
P
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

ov
er
th
e
pe
rio
d
of
th
e
C
or
e

S
tr
at
eg
y.

M
ay
or
’s
Tr
an
sp
or
t

S
tr
at
eg
y.
P
ro
je
ct
s
re
fle
ct

di
ffe
re
nt
lo
ca
ln
ee
ds
.

W
or
ks

to
m
in
im
is
e
im
pa
ct

of
co
ng
es
tio
n
ho
ts
po
ts
.

T
fL

F
un
di
ng

is
se
cu
re

so
no

co
nt
in
ge
nc
y
re
qu
ire
d.

T
fL

3
ye
ar

pr
og
ra
m
m
e

£2
.4
m
ill
io
n

C
om

pr
eh
en
si
ve

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
of

N
ee
d
to
ad
dr
es
s
va
rio
us

tr
an
sp
or
ti
ss
ue
s
in

Tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio
n

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
in

Y
ie
w
sl
ey
/W

es
tD

ra
yt
on

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
to
ad
dr
es
s

Y
ie
w
sl
ey
/W

es
tD

ra
yt
on

fo
ot
w
ay
,c
yc
le
ro
ut
es
,

H
ig
h
S
tr
ee
t.
S
ch
em

es
w
ill

pa
rk
in
g
is
su
es
,t
ra
ns
po
rt

be
ne
fit
gr
ow

th
of
th
es
e

di
st
ric
tc
en
tr
es
.

co
ng
es
tio
n,
bu
s
flo
w
an
d

ot
he
r
as
pe
ct
s
of
tr
an
sp
or
t

pr
ov
is
io
n.

T
fL
,G

LA
an
d
ot
he
r
lo
ca
l

gr
ou
ps

F
ur
th
er

w
or
k
re
qu
ire
d
to

de
te
rm
in
e
ex
te
nt
of
gr
ow

th
F
un
di
ng

so
ur
ce
s
to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
w
ith

T
fL

20
11
-2
02
6

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

E
xa
ct
na
tu
re

of
th
e

sc
he
m
e
is
st
ill
to
be

To
en
co
ur
ag
e
pu
bl
ic

tr
an
sp
or
tu
sa
ge

an
d

T
he

C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
K
ey

D
ia
gr
am

pr
op
os
es

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

th
at
co
ul
d
ta
ke

pl
ac
e

w
ith
ou
ti
m
pr
ov
em

en
ts
.

de
te
rm

in
ed

bu
ti
s
lik
el
y
to

in
cl
ud
e
a
re
vi
se
d
bu
s

in
te
rc
ha
ng
e
in
U
xb
rid
ge
.

ac
ce
ss
ib
ili
ty
an
d
su
pp
or
t

gr
ow

th
in
to
w
n
ce
nt
re
s.

Im
pr
ov
ed

in
te
rc
ha
ng
es

w
ill

im
pr
ov
ed

tr
an
sp
or
t

in
te
rc
ha
ng
es

at
H
ay
es
,

W
es
tD

ra
yt
on
,U

xb
rid
ge

an
d
W
es
tR

ui
sl
ip
.

su
pp
or
tg
ro
w
th
in
U
xb
rid
ge

to
w
n
ce
nt
re
.

T
fL
,G

LA
an
d
ot
he
rp
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

A
lte
rn
at
iv
es

m
ay

be
re
qu
ire
d
if
pr
op
os
ed

ro
ut
es

do
no
tr
ec
ei
ve

fu
nd
in
g.

F
un
di
ng

so
ur
ce
s
to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
w
ith

T
fL
.

20
11
-2
02
6

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

In
di
ca
tiv
e
ro
ut
es

fo
r

‘F
as
tb
us
’i
de
nt
ifi
ed

on
C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
K
ey

Im
pr
ov
ed

ac
ce
ss
ib
ili
ty

fr
om

th
e
no
rt
h
of
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h
to
em

pl
oy
m
en
t

ar
ea
s
in
th
e
so
ut
h.

C
or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y
pr
op
os
es

im
pr
ov
ed

no
rt
h/
so
ut
h

pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
tl
in
ks

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

D
ia
gr
am

.D
et
ai
le
d

de
ve
lo
pm

en
tr
eq
ui
re
d.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

A
lte
rn
at
iv
e
so
lu
tio
ns

m
ay

ne
ed

to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
if

D
ep
ar
tm
en
to
f

Tr
an
sp
or
t/H

ig
hw

ay
s

A
ge
nc
y

B
y
20
15

£6
bi
lli
on

fo
r
en
tir
e
w
or
k

pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
LB

H
co
st
no
t

de
te
rm

in
ed
.

H
ar
d
sh
ou
ld
er

ru
nn
in
g

be
tw
ee
n
ju
nc
tio
ns

3-
12

on
th
e
M
4

To
ad
dr
es
s
co
ng
es
tio
n
on

th
e
M
4

M
an
ag
ed

M
ot
or
w
ay
s

H
ig
hw

ay
s
A
ge
nc
y

pr
op
os
al
do
es

no
tc
om

e
fo
rw
ar
d

D
ev
el
op
er

fu
nd
in
g

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
w
ou
ld
be

in
vo
lv
ed

in
th
e
sc
he
m
e.

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

To
be

fu
nd
ed

th
ro
ug
h

de
ve
lo
pe
r-
le
d

co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

C
om

in
g
fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar

£2
5,
00
0

M
in
or
w
or
ks

to
B
at
h
R
oa
d

C
ar

P
ar
k

M
ai
nt
en
an
ce

of
T
fL

ne
tw
or
k

T
fL
sc
he
m
es

to
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

th
ro
ug
h

de
ve
lo
pe
r-
le
d

co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

Tr
an
sp
or
tf
or

Lo
nd
on

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

T
fL

T
hr
ee

ye
ar

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
of

w
or
ks

A
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y
£4
.5
m
ill
io
n

P
ro
gr
am

m
e
of
w
or
ks

to
m
ai
nt
ai
n
th
e
T
LR

N
,

To
m
ai
nt
ai
n
T
fL
's
ro
ad

ne
tw
or
k

T
fL
R
oa
d
R
en
ew

al
P
ro
gr
am

m
e

Tr
an
sp
or
tf
or

Lo
nd
on

in
cl
ud
in
g
re
su
rf
ac
in
g
an
d

fo
ot
w
ay

w
or
ks
.

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

W
or
k
to
be

fu
nd
ed

by
a

nu
m
be
r
of
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns
,

F
in
an
ci
al
ye
ar

20
09
/1
0

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

P
ro
gr
am

m
e
of

si
gn
al
is
at
io
n
w
or
ks
.

To
en
su
re

th
e
sm

oo
th

ru
nn
in
g
of
T
LR

N
S
ig
na
ls
w
or
ks

Tr
an
sp
or
tf
or

Lo
nd
on

in
cl
ud
in
g
de
ve
lo
pe
rs
,L
B
H

an
d
H
ig
hw

ay
s
A
ge
nc
y

London Borough of Hillingdon

151Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

2
Infrastructure

S
chedule

Page 159



To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

N
on
e

F
un
di
ng

so
ur
ce
s
to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
th
ro
ug
h

di
sc
us
si
on

w
ith

T
fL

20
11
-2
02
6

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

Im
pr
ov
ed

M
et
ro
po
lit
an

Li
ne

se
rv
ic
es
.P

ro
po
sa
ls

ar
e
st
ill
at
pr
e-
co
nc
ep
tio
n

st
ag
e.

To
re
du
ce

jo
ur
ne
y
tim

e
to

an
d
fr
om

ce
nt
ra
lL
on
do
n

Im
pr
ov
ed

Lo
nd
on

U
nd
er
gr
ou
nd

lin
ks

to
ce
nt
ra
lL
on
do
n

Tr
an
sp
or
tf
or

Lo
nd
on
/L
on
do
n
B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

Lo
ca
lp
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
to
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

D
et
ai
le
d
ro
ut
es

to
be

co
ns
id
er
ed

T
fL

20
15

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

‘C
yc
le
S
up
er
hi
gh
w
ay
s’
ar
e

pr
op
os
ed

in
th
e

To
im
pr
ov
e
cy
cl
e

co
nn
ec
tio
ns

in
Lo
nd
on

C
yc
le
S
up
er
-H
ig
hw

ay
G
LA

/T
ra
ns
po
rt
fo
rL
on
do
n

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tL
on
do
n
P
la
n

(2
00
9)

an
d
w
ill
pr
ov
id
e

di
re
ct
ro
ut
es

in
to
ce
nt
ra
l

Lo
nd
on

fr
om

ou
te
r

Lo
nd
on
.T

he
fir
st
tw
o

ro
ut
es

op
en

in
S
um

m
er

20
10

w
ith

te
n
m
or
e
be
in
g

in
tr
od
uc
ed

by
20
15
.

P
H
Y
S
IC
A
L
IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E
:
B
A
A

O
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s
fo
r
ot
he
r

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

C
on
tin
ge
nc
y
P
la
nn
in
g

R
eq
ui
re
d

F
un
di
ng

A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts

In
di
ca
tiv
e

D
el
iv
er
y/
P
ha
si
ng

A
pp
ro
xi
m
at
e
C
os
t

R
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
of
S
ch
em

e
N
ee
d
fo
r
S
ch
em

e
S
ch
em

e
Le
ad

D
el
iv
er
y
A
ge
nc
y

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
09
-2
01
3

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

Im
pr
ov
ed

ai
rc
ra
ft
st
an
ds

Im
pr
ov
ed

ai
rf
ie
ld

op
er
at
io
ns

E
as
te
rn

A
pr
on

re
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
11

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

P
ow

er
,h
ea
tin
g
an
d
co
oi
ng

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Im
pr
ov
ed

en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

E
as
te
rn

C
am

pu
s
en
er
gy

an
d
in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
14

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

W
or
ks

to
ac
ce
ss

ro
ad
s

an
d
fo
re
co
ur
ta
re
a

N
ee
d
to
im
pr
ov
e

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

ad
ja
ce
nt
to

Te
rm

in
al
2.

M
S
C
P
E
as
ta
nd

F
or
ec
ou
rt

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
13

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n
of
ne
w

sa
te
lli
te
pi
er

Im
pr
ov
ed

op
er
at
io
na
l

ef
fic
ie
nc
y

C
on
st
ru
ct
io
n
of
ne
w

sa
te
lli
te
pi
er

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
13

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

P
ro
vi
si
on

of
re
pl
ac
em

en
t

te
rm

in
al
bu
ild
in
g,
an
d

as
so
ci
at
ed

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

O
pe
ra
tio
na
le
ffi
ci
en
cy

Te
rm

in
al
2A

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
13

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
ta
nd

ex
te
ns
io
n
of
ch
ec
k-
in

Im
pr
ov
ed

ch
ec
k-
in
tim

es
Te
rm

in
al
4
ch
ec
k
in

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
12

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

Li
nk
s
be
tw
ee
n
T
5-
T
3-
T
1

ba
gg
ag
e
sy
st
em

R
ed
uc
e
nu
m
be
r
of
lo
st

ba
gs

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts
to
Te
rm

in
al

5
ba
gg
ag
e
sy
st
em

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
09

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
to
f

ba
gg
ag
e
co
nn
ec
tio
n

be
tw
ee
n
T
1
–T

4

E
xi
st
in
g
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
re
qu
ire

up
gr
ad
e

T
1-
T
4
tu
nn
el

re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
t

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
10

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

M
ai
nt
ai
n
sa
fe
ca
rg
o
lin
k

C
ar
go

tu
nn
el

re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
t

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
13

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
ed

ca
rg
o
je
tti
es

M
in
im
is
e
co
nn
ec
tio
n
tim

es
be
tw
ee
n
je
tti
es

Je
tty

w
or
ks

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
09

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

R
eb
ui
ld
ar
ea
s
of
th
e

ex
is
tin
g
ai
rf
ie
ld

A
irf
ie
ld
S
af
et
y

Ta
xi
w
ay

im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

B
A
A

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010152

A
pp
en
di
x
2
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

S
ch
ed
ul
e

Page 160



N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
14

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
t

In
cr
ea
se
d
pa
ss
en
ge
r
flo
w

Lo
nd
on

un
de
rg
ro
un
d

st
at
io
n
re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
t

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

20
13

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

D
iv
er
si
on

of
in
te
rn
al
ro
ad
s,

re
lo
ca
tio
n
of
fa
ci
lit
ie
s

E
ffi
ci
en
tu
se

of
la
nd

in
ai
rp
or
tb
ou
nd
ar
y

N
ew

ai
rc
ra
ft
ha
ng
ar

B
A
A

N
on
e

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

B
A
A

D
at
es

no
ts
ch
ed
ul
ed

C
os
ta
nd

tim
e
no
t

sc
he
du
le
d

O
th
er

ca
pi
ta
lp
ro
gr
am

m
e

w
or
ks

B
A
A

G
R
E
E
N
IN
F
R
A
S
T
R
U
C
T
U
R
E

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
fo
r

ot
he
ro
rg
an
is
at
io
ns

C
o
n
ti
n
g
en
cy

P
la
n
n
in
g

R
eq
u
ir
ed

F
u
n
d
in
g
A
rr
an
g
em
en
ts

In
d
ic
at
iv
e
D
el
iv
er
y/
P
h
as
in
g

A
p
p
ro
xi
m
at
e

C
o
st

R
eq
u
ir
em
en
ts
o
f
S
ch
em
e

N
ee
d
fo
r
S
ch
em
e

S
ch
em
e

L
ea
d
D
el
iv
er
y
A
g
en
cy

L
ei
su
re
,R
ec
re
at
io
n
an
d
G
re
en
S
p
ac
e

LB
H
an
d
T
fL

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

C
on
tr
ib
ut
io
ns

fr
om

B
rit
is
h

W
at
er
w
ay
s,
LB

H
an
d

S
ec
tio
n
10
6
co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

20
10
-2
01
1

£2
00
,0
00
-4
00
,0
00

m
or
e
de
si
gn

ne
ed
ed

an
d
in

pr
og
re
ss

W
at
er
w
ay

w
al
lw

or
ks

an
d

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

P
er
m
an
en
tp
re
se
nc
e
on

w
at
er

to
di
sc
ou
ra
ge

ar
ea
’s
an
ti-
so
ci
al
be
ha
vi
ou
ri
ss
ue
s
an
d
to
he
lp

m
ee
tl
ar
ge

de
m
an
d
fo
r
m
oo
rin
gs

O
ff-
lin
e
re
si
de
nt
ia
l

m
oo
rin
g
sc
he
m
e
ab
ov
e

S
ta
tio
n
R
oa
d
br
id
ge

in
H
ay
es

B
ri
ti
sh
W
at
er
w
ay
s

LB
H
an
d
T
fL

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

C
on
tr
ib
ut
io
ns

fr
om

B
rit
is
h

W
at
er
w
ay
s,
T
fL
,S

ec
tio
n

10
6
co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

N
ot
ye
td
et
er
m
in
ed

N
ot
ye
t

de
te
rm

in
ed

D
et
ai
ls
of
sc
he
m
e
to
be

di
sc
us
se
d
w
ith

B
rit
is
h

W
at
er
w
ay
s.

To
im
pr
ov
e
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
ta
cc
es
s
an
d

pr
om

ot
e
le
is
ur
e/
to
ur
is
m
us
e
of
w
at
er
w
ay
.

W
at
er
pa
ss
en
ge
rt
ra
ns
po
rt

se
rv
ic
e

B
ri
ti
sh
W
at
er
w
ay
s

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

E
m
er
ge
nc
y

w
or
ks

B
rit
is
h
W
at
er
w
ay
s

20
09
-2
01
0

£2
00
,0
00

S
co
pi
ng

of
w
or
ks

re
qu
ire
d,

fe
as
ib
ili
ty
of
po
ss
ib
le
op
tio
ns

fo
r
re
pa
irs
,d
es
ig
n
an
d

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n

R
ep
ai
r
to
w
at
er
w
ay

w
al
ls
to
en
su
re

fit
fo
r

pu
rp
os
e
an
d
no
ta

ris
k
to
pa
ss
in
g
cr
af
t/
cl
os
in
g

na
vi
ga
tio
n.

W
at
er
w
ay

w
al
lr
ep
ai
rs
at

Ir
on
br
id
ge

N
ar
ro
w
s,

ad
ja
ce
nt
to
S
to
ck
le
y
P
ar
k

B
ri
ti
sh
W
at
er
w
ay
s

F
or
es
tr
y

C
om

m
is
si
on

N
on
e

Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on
/F
or
es
tr
y

C
om

m
is
si
on

C
ur
re
nt
P
la
n
(2
00
3-
20
08
)
ha
s

be
en

ro
lle
d
fo
rw
ar
d
to
th
is
ye
ar
.

N
ew

pl
an

is
be
in
g
pr
od
uc
ed
.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

O
ut
lin
ed

in
th
e
R
ui
sl
ip
W
oo
ds

M
an
ag
em

en
tP

la
n

To
m
an
ag
e
H
ill
in
gd
on
’s
on
ly
N
at
io
na
lN

at
ur
e

R
es
er
ve

R
ui
sl
ip
W
oo
ds

M
an
ag
em

en
tP

la
n

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

P
ar
tn
er

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d.

N
on
e

LB
H
an
d
pa
rt
ne
r

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

by
th
e

em
er
gi
ng

O
S
S

U
nk
no
w
n
un
til
th
e

de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
f

th
e
re
vi
se
d
O
pe
n

S
pa
ce

S
tr
at
eg
y

(O
S
S
).

O
bt
ai
n
13

ad
di
tio
na
lG

re
en

F
la
g
de
si
gn
at
io
ns
.

To
in
cr
ea
se

th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
hi
gh

qu
al
ity

op
en

sp
ac
es

in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h.

Im
pr
ov
in
g
th
e
qu
al
ity

of
op
en

sp
ac
e
pr
ov
is
io
n

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

B
rit
is
h
W
at
er
w
ay
s

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

U
nd
is
cl
os
ed

D
et
ai
ls
of
th
e
sc
he
m
e
to
be

di
sc
us
se
d
w
ith

th
e

E
nv
iro
nm

en
tA

ge
nc
y

To
pr
ev
en
to
ve
rt
op
pi
ng

of
B
in
gl
ey

D
itc
h
an
d

flo
od
in
g
of
pr
op
er
tie
s
be
tw
ee
n

C
ol
ne
/W

ra
ys
bu
ry
.

A
rk
ly
ne

K
en
ne
ls
P
ro
je
ct

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t
A
g
en
cy

LB
H
,S

po
rt
E
ng
la
nd

N
on
e,
fu
nd
in
g

al
re
ad
y
in

pl
ac
e

F
un
de
d
th
ro
ug
h
LB

H
C
ap
ita
lp
ro
gr
am

m
e
+
in
pu
t

fr
om

ex
te
rn
al
pa
rt
ne
rs

P
ha
se

1
co
m
pl
et
ed

M
ay

20
06

P
ha
se

2
co
m
pl
et
ed

To
ta
lc
os
to
f

P
ha
se

1
an
d
2

(A
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y

£3
2
m
ill
io
n)

Tw
o
ph
as
ed

de
ve
lo
pm

en
ts
:

P
ha
se

1:
A
th
le
tic
s
st
ad
iu
m
,

pa
vi
lio
n
an
d
as
tr
o-
tu
rf

pi
tc
he
s.
P
ha
se

2:
50

m
et
re

po
ol
,i
nd
oo
r
sp
or
ts
ha
ll,

m
ix
ed

us
e
sp
or
ts
ce
nt
re

Im
pr
ov
ed

le
is
ur
e
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
to
en
co
ur
ag
e
ac
tiv
e

lif
es
ty
le
s
in
H
ill
in
gd
on

U
pg
ra
de

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

S
po
rt
s
an
d
Le
is
ur
e
C
en
tr
e

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

Lo
nd
on

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

A
ge
nc
y:
2.
02
5
m
ill
io
n

S
po
rt
E
ng
la
nd
:£
1.
5

m
ill
io
n
H
er
ita
ge

an
d

Lo
tte
ry
F
un
di
ng
:£
1
m
ill
io
n

F
oo
tb
al
lF
ou
nd
at
io
n:

£5
00
,0
00

London Borough of Hillingdon

153Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

2
Infrastructure

S
chedule

Page 161



LB
H
,S

po
rt
E
ng
la
nd

N
on
e,
fu
nd
in
g

al
re
ad
y
in

pl
ac
e

£2
50
,0
00

fo
ot
ba
ll

fo
un
da
tio
n

C
om

pl
et
io
n
M
ay

20
10

£2
0.
3
m
ill
io
n

R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tf
or
H
ay
es

P
oo
l

an
d
S
po
rt
s
H
al
l.
F
ac
ili
tie
s

in
cl
ud
e:
25

m
et
re
P
oo
lS
po
rts

H
al
lG

ym
C
en
tr
e
O
ut
do
or

Im
pr
ov
ed

le
is
ur
e
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
to
en
co
ur
ag
e
ac
tiv
e

lif
es
ty
le
s
in
H
ill
in
gd
on

B
ot
w
el
lG

re
en

S
po
rt
s
an
d

Le
is
ur
e
C
en
tr
e

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

£5
0,
00
0
G
re
en
w
ic
h

Le
is
ur
e
Li
m
ite
d

A
st
ro
tu
rf
P
itc
h
2x

m
ul
ti-
us
e

ga
m
es

ar
ea

H
ea
lth

an
d

F
itn
es
s
R
ep
la
ce
m
en
to
f

H
ay
es

Li
br
ar
y

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
to
be

fo
rm

ed
w
ith

ke
y

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

N
on
e,
fu
nd
in
g

al
re
ad
y
in

pl
ac
e

R
ol
lo
ut
of
Li
br
ar
ie
s

re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
ta
nd

ne
w

bu
ild

ca
pi
ta
lp
ro
gr
am

m
e

F
ur
th
er

re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
tp
ro
je
ct
s

in
20
10
/1
1
ar
e
un
de
r

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

8
re
fu
rb
is
hm

en
ts
co
m
pl
et
ed
.

F
ur
th
er
co
nv
er
si
on
s
an
d
ne
w

bu
ild
s
ar
e
un
de
r

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n.

To
up
gr
ad
e
al
ll
ib
ra
ry
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
in
H
ill
in
gd
on

Li
br
ar
ie
s
R
ef
ur
bi
sh
m
en
t

P
la
n

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
fo
rm

ed
w
ith

ke
y

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

S
om

e
pr
og
ra
m
m
es

al
re
ad
y
ha
ve

fu
nd
in
g
in

pl
ac
e.
O
th
er
s
ar
e
T
B
C

T
he
se

pr
og
ra
m
m
es

ar
e
lo
ng
er

te
rm

an
d
lo
ok

be
yo
nd

th
e

cu
rr
en
tC

or
e
S
tr
at
eg
y

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

Lo
ng
er

te
rm

as
pi
ra
tio
ns

fo
r
im
pr
ov
ed

le
is
ur
e

fa
ci
lit
ie
s
at
H
ig
hg
ro
ve

P
oo
l.

U
pg
ra
de

of
sp
or
ts
an
d

le
is
ur
e
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
in

H
ill
in
gd
on

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
al
re
ad
y

fo
rm

ed
w
ith

ke
y

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
ns

th
ro
ug
h
H
ill
in
gd
on

sp
or
ta
nd

le
is
ur
e.

N
on
e
re
qu
ire
d

F
un
di
ng

ag
re
ed

A
re
as

w
ill
be

de
liv
er
ed

in
tw
o

ba
tc
he
s
of
11
.F
irs
tp
ha
se

to
be

de
liv
er
ed

by
sp
rin
g
20
10
,

se
co
nd

ph
as
e
to
be

de
liv
er
ed

by
M
ar
ch

20
11
.

To
be

de
te
rm

in
ed

P
ha
se
d
de
ve
lo
pm

en
to
f2
2

ne
w
ch
ild
re
n’
s
pl
ay

ar
ea
s.

To
co
nt
in
ue

to
pr
ov
id
e
fo
r
th
e
ne
ed
s
of

H
ill
in
gd
on
’s
ch
ild
re
n.

Im
pr
ov
ed

ch
ild
re
n’
s
pl
ay

ar
ea
s

L
o
n
d
o
n
B
o
ro
u
g
h
o
f

H
ill
in
g
d
o
n

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010154

A
pp
en
di
x
2
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

S
ch
ed
ul
e

Page 162



Appendix 3 London Borough of Hillingdon Housing Trajectory

The following extract fromHillingdon's Annual Monitoring Report 2008/2009 shows the current
London Plan annual housing target and housing completions by year since 1997. Figures
10 and 11 show Hillingdon's housing trajectory, which forms the basis of it's five year land
supply.

H1 (Core) - Plan period and housing targetsIndicator:

8,890 new dwellings to be provided between 1997-2016/7 (London
Plan)
3,650 new dwellings to be provided between 2007/08 to 2026/2027
(revised London Plan)

Target:

See housing trajectory table belowProgress:

H2 (Core) Housing TrajectoryIndicator:

440 units per annum from 1997 to 31st March 2007 and 365
units per annum from 1st April 2007 to the end of the plan period.

Target:

See housing trajectory table belowProgress:

London Borough of Hillingdon

155Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

3
London

B
orough

ofH
illingdon

H
ousing

Trajectory

Page 163



London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010156

A
pp
en
di
x
3
Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

H
ou
si
ng

Tr
aj
ec
to
ry

Page 164



Housing trajectory includes the following core output indicators:

H2(a) – Net additional dwellings – in previous years
H2(b) – Net additional dwellings – for the reporting year
H2(c) – Net additional dwellings – in future years
H2(d) – Managed delivery target

Hillingdon’s LDF Housing Trajectory compares the levels of actual and projected completions
over the 1997 – 2026 period against the London Plan strategic housing requirement.

Completions information is obtained from various sources including building control data,
street naming and numbering, NHBC records, etc. The redevelopment, conversion and
change of use to residential use are also recorded as part of the monitoring in the Housing
Trajectory.

All data is presented in financial years with the exception of the first year, which include 92
units completed during the period 1 January 1997 to 31 March 1997, and needs to be counted
against the London Plan targets.

Projections information is based on the data in the 2004 London Housing Capacity Study,
published July 2005 and updated by new information on housing allocations which came
forward from the LDF process.

The period covering beginning of April 2008 to the end of March 2009 acknowledged 785
additional housing completions. Completions data show large fluctuations from one year to
another, this is mainly due to the way the Council collects completion data. This year's
completions and those dating back to April 2004 reflect the information as contained in the
London Development Database and the Council's Housing Monitoring Database as of the
time of writing this report. Housing monitoring is based on building control data and does not
reflect the progressive completion of residential units. Single residential units are not recorded
as completed until all residential units on a development site are completed. Although this
should not affect the accuracy of data in long-term calculations, it may make the year to year
monitoring less representative.

Annual Monitoring Report Table 12: Housing Completions by Year

Cumulative
gains above
target

Plan:
annualised
strategic
allocation

Total actual
completions

Year

1584405981997/98*Completions

2334405151998/99Completions

1164403231999/00Completions

3234406472000/01Completions

2074403242001/02Completions

London Borough of Hillingdon

157Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

3
London

B
orough

ofH
illingdon

H
ousing

Trajectory

Page 165



54402382002/03Completions

2704407052003/04Completions

6814408512004/05Completions

7434405022005/06Completions

4984401952006/07Completions

5643654312007/08Completions

9843657852008/09Completions

Sources

Figure 10: London Borough of Hillingdon, Planning, Environment and Community Services
and London Development Database.

Figure 11: London Borough of Hillingdon, Planning, Environment and Community Services.

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010158

A
pp
en
di
x
3
Lo
nd
on

B
or
ou
gh

of
H
ill
in
gd
on

H
ou
si
ng

Tr
aj
ec
to
ry

Page 166



Appendix 4 Glossary

Glossary

MeaningTerm

The ability of people to move around an area and reach
places and facilities, including elderly and disabled people,
those with young children and those encumbered with
luggage or shopping.

Accessibility

A designated zone where specific air quality management
proposals (defined in an Air Quality Action Plan) are
implemented by a local authority to improve air quality.

Air Quality Management Area

Housing subsidised in some way for people unable to rent
or buy on the open housing market. PPS3 Housing
defines affordable housing as follows: "Affordable housing

Affordable Housing

includes social rented and intermediate housing, provided
to specified eligible households whose needs are not met
by the market.

Affordable housing should:

Meet the needs of eligible households including
availability at a cost low enough for them to afford,
determined with regard to local incomes and local
house prices.

Include provision for the home to remain at an
affordable price for future eligible households or, if
these restrictions are lifted, for the subsidy to be
recycled for alternative affordable housing provision."

A positive element or elements that contribute to the
overall character or enjoyment of an area. For example,
open land, trees, historic buildings and the
inter-relationship between them, or less tangible factors
such as tranquillity.

Amenity

Development of 'landlocked' sites behind existing
buildings, such as rear gardens and private open space,
usually within predominantly residential areas. Such sites
often have no street frontages.

Back-land development

Literally the 'variety of life' - the innumerable species of
animals and plants on earth, and the wide range of urban
and rural habitats where they live.

Biodiversity

London Borough of Hillingdon

159Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 167



MeaningTerm

Living matter within an environmental area, for example
plant material, vegetation, or agricultural waste used as
a fuel or energy source.

Biomass

A spatial policy covering London’s waterways and water
spaces and land alongside them. The Blue Ribbon
Network includes the Thames, the canal network, the

Blue Ribbon Network

other tributaries, rivers and streams within London and
London's open water spaces such as docks, reservoirs
and lakes. It includes culverted (or covered over) parts of
rivers, canals or streams.

A plan that sets objectives and actions for the conservation
of biodiversity in Hillingdon. The action plan also identifies
priority species and habitats for conservation.

Biodiversity Action Plan

A building or group of buildings that are not on the
statutory list of buildings of special architectural or historic
interest but that contribute positively and significantly to
the character and appearance of an area.

Building of Townscape Merit

BREEAM (BRE Environmental Assessment Method) is
an environmental standard that rates the sustainability of
buildings in the UK. The BREEAM environmental

BREEAM

assessment aims to minimise environmental impact by
ensuring sustainability best practises are in place while
also lowering organisations' costs through energy
efficiency.

Both land and premises are included in this term, which
refers to a site that has previously been used or developed
and is not currently fully in use, although it may be partially

Brownfield Site

occupied or utilised. It may also be vacant, derelict or
contaminated. This excludes open spaces and land where
the remains of previous use have blended into the
landscape, or have been overtaken by nature conservation
value or amenity use and cannot be regarded as requiring
development.

A carbon footprint is a measure of the impact our activities
have on the environment, and in particular climate change.
It relates to the amount of greenhouse gases produced
in our day-to-day lives through burning fossil fuels for
electricity, heating and transportation etc.
The carbon footprint is a measurement of all greenhouse
gases we individually produce and has units of tonnes (or
kg) of carbon dioxide equivalent.

Carbon Footprint

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010160

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 168



MeaningTerm

A term relating to Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings,
but also to the appearance of any rural or urban location
in terms of its landscape or the layout of streets and open
spaces, often giving places their own distinct identity.

Character

A new national standard for sustainable design and
construction of new homes launched in December 2006,
covering water use, waste generation, and the use of

Code for Sustainable Homes

low-polluting materials and processes. Developed by the
Building Research Establishment, the Code for
Sustainable Homes (CSHs) subsumes the requirements
of the BREEAM / EcoHomes System. The Code is based
on levels, level 1 being the lowest and level 6, the
zero-carbon level, the highest.

Combined Heat and Power (CHP) is the term used when
electrical energy is made on-site and the waste heat from
the engine is utilised for a heating application such as

CombinedHeating andPower
/ Decentralised Energy

making hot water or space heating. A decentralised
energy scheme provides heat and /or power from a central
source to more than one building, dwelling or customer
as an alternative to providing individual national
grid-connected systems to each dwelling. Schemes can
vary in size from a few dwellings to city-wide networks,
and reduce costs for tenants and cut carbon dioxide
emissions.

Items not bought on a frequent basis, for example
televisions and white goods (fridges, dishwashers etc).
Customers often compare items and prices between
several stores before making a purchase.

Comparison goods

These are practical tools for promoting or improving the
economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the area
of jurisdiction of a local authority. Such strategies are

Community Strategies

prepared allowing for local communities (based upon
geography and/or interest) to articulate their aspirations,
needs and priorities.

An area declared by a local planning authority in
accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended), as being of special architectural, historical

Conservation Area

or landscape interest, the character or appearance of
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance. Consent is
required for the demolition or partial substantial demolition
of unlisted buildings in Conservation Areas.

Everyday essential items, such as food and newspapers.Convenience goods

London Borough of Hillingdon

161Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 169



MeaningTerm

The Core Strategy Development Plan Document sets out
the key elements of the planning framework for the area.
It comprises a spatial vision and strategic objectives for

Core Strategy Development
Plan Document (DPD)

the area; a spatial strategy; core policies; and amonitoring
and implementation framework with clear objectives for
achieving delivery. Once adopted, all other Development
Plan Documents must be in conformity with it.

Culture includes arts, media, sports, libraries, museums,
parks, and the countryside, built heritage, tourism, and
the creative industries.

Culture

As stated in PPS3 Housing: “Density is a measure of the
number of dwellings which can be accommodated on a
site or in an area”. Net dwelling density is calculated by

Density (Residential)

including only those site areas which will be developed
for housing and directly associated uses, including access
roads within the site, private garden space, car parking
areas, incidental open space and landscaping and
children’s play areas, where these are provided.

A statement that accompanies a planning application to
explain the design principles and concepts that have
informed the development and how access issues have

Design and Access
Statements

been dealt with. The access element of the statement
should demonstrate how the principles of inclusive design,
including the specific needs of disabled people, have been
integrated into the proposed development and how
inclusion will be maintained and managed.

Divided into 2 categories:Designated Shopping
Frontage

Key frontage: Shopping area which is to be retained
primarily in retail use and from which further non-shop
uses will normally be excluded.

Secondary frontage: Area intended for shopping use
where complementary non-retail uses such as cafés,
laundrettes, estate agents etc. may be permitted.

See Planning Obligations.Developer Contributions

Defined and qualified by the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (s.22) as the carrying out of building,
engineering, mining or other operations in, on, over, or
under land, or the making of any material change in the
use of any building or other land.

Development

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010162

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 170



MeaningTerm

The process whereby a local planning authority receives
and considers the merits of a planning application and
whether it should be given permission having regard to
the development plan and all other material
considerations.

Development Control &
Development Management

DPDs form part of the Local development Framework and
can be the Core Strategy, Site Allocations, Proposals
Map, Development Management Policies and sometimes

Development Plan Document
(DPD)

Area Action Plans. Development Plan Documents together
with the London Plan form the Development Plan for the
area.

District centres have traditionally provided convenience
goods and services for more local communities while
some District centres have developed specialist shopping

District Centre

(e.g. Hayes, Yiewsley & West
Drayton) functions. Developing the capacity of District centres for

convenience shopping is critical to ensure access to goods
and services at the local level, particularly for people
without access to cars. Many have a linear nature, which
may need to be consolidated to make more efficient use
of land and transport capacity (London Plan 2008
definition).

A park of at least 20 hectares providing a fairly wide range
of activities, including outdoor sports and recreational
facilities for households within about 1.2km of the park.

District Park

See Code for Sustainable Homes.Eco-Homes

Land / sites defined by the Council for employment uses
(usually B class uses)

Employment Land / Site

Undertaken on the ‘soundness’ of the Submission Local
Development Framework Documents. The examination
is held by an independent inspector appointed by the

Examination

Secretary of State. The final report is binding on the
Council. For Development Plan Documents an
examination is held even if there are no representations.

Green belts are a national policy designation that helps
to contain development, protect the countryside and
promote brownfield development, and assists in the urban
renaissance. There is a general presumption against
inappropriate development in the green belt.

Green Belt

A series of linked open spaces forming extended parkways
for the public and wildlife corridors in natural
surroundings. These can cross borough boundaries.

Green Chains

London Borough of Hillingdon

163Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 171



MeaningTerm

This refers to relatively continuous areas of open space
leading through the built environment, whichmay be linked
and may not be publicly accessible. They may allow

Green Corridor

animals and plants to be found further into the built-up
area than would otherwise be the case and provide an
extension to the habitats of the sites they join.

All aspects of the environment resulting from the
interaction between people and places through time,
including all surviving physical remains of past human
activity, whether visible or buried, and deliberately planted
or managed fauna.

Historic Environment

Essential services necessary for development to take
place, for example, roads, electricity, sewerage, water,
education and health facilities.

Infrastructure

Strategic Industrial Location designed to accommodate
general industrial, light industrial and research and
development uses that require a higher quality

Industrial Business Park
(IBP).

environment and less heavy goods access than a PIL.
They can be accommodated next to environmentally
sensitive uses.

Prior to June 2008, part of the production stage for the
preparation of DPDs. This has effectively been replaced
with Regulation 25 of the amended Town and Country
Planning (Local development) (England) Regulations.

Issues and Options

Criteria developed by a group convened by the Joseph
Rowntree Foundation in 1991 to help house builders
produce new homes flexible enough to deal with changes
in life situations of occupants e.g. caring for young
children, temporary injuries, declining mobility with age.

Lifetime Homes Standards

A building of special architectural or historic interest
included on a statutory list. Listed buildings are graded I,
II* or II with grade I being the highest. Listing includes the

Listed Building

interior as well as the exterior of the building, and any
buildings or permanent structures (e.g. wells within its
curtilage). English Heritage is responsible for designating
buildings for listing in England. Permission is required for
their demolition or alteration.

Provides a range and choice of local shops and services
for people within walking distance.

Local Centre (eg Harefield,
South Ruislip)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010164

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 172



MeaningTerm

Sets out, in the form of a 'portfolio’ or ‘folder’, the
documents which collectively deliver the spatial planning
strategy for the Council. The Local Development

Local Development
Framework

Framework comprises Development Plan Documents,
Supplementary Planning Documents, the Statement of
Community Involvement, the Local Development Scheme
and the Annual Monitoring Report.

Non-statutory, multi-agency partnership which matches
a local authority boundary. LSPs bring together, at a local
level, different parts of the public, private, community and

Local Strategic Partnership
(LSP)

voluntary sectors, allowing different services to support
one another so that they can work more effectively
together. LSPs are charged with developing Sustainable
Community Strategies and Local Area Agreements. In
Hillingdon, LSPs are referred to as Hillingdon Partners.

A park of at least 2 hectares providing court games,
children’s play, sitting out areas, including nature and
landscape conservation, a landscaped environment and
possibly playing fields for households within about 400m
of the park.

Local Park

Designated employment area suitable for light industrial,
office and research uses that require a higher quality
environment and good public transport access.

Locally Significant
Employment Location (LSEL)

Designated industrial area suitable for general industrial,
light industrial and warehousing uses.

Locally Significant Industrial
Site (LSIS)

The plan is a spatial development strategy for Greater
London, to deal with matters of strategic importance to
the area. The plan was first published by the Greater
London Authority (GLA) in 2004 and has since been
amended.

London Plan

The draft MTS was published in October 2009 for
consultation. It sets out the Mayor's vision for transport
in the Capital over the next 20 years. The final MTS will
be published in spring 2010.

Mayor's Transport Strategy
(MTS)

Metropolitan centres serve wide catchment areas covering
several boroughs and offer a high level and range of
comparison shopping. They typically have over 100,000

Metropolitan Centre (e.g.
Uxbridge)

square metres of retail floorspace, including multiple
retailers and department stores. They also have significant
employment, service and leisure functions (London Plan
2008 definition).

London Borough of Hillingdon

165Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 173



MeaningTerm

Open land within built-up areas which has a London-wide
significance and receives the same presumption against
development as the Green Belt, defined in the Mayor's
London Plan.

Metropolitan Open Land

Provides a full range and choice of local shops and
services, including comparison goods, for people within
approximately a three kilometre radius.

Minor Centre (eg Ruislip
Manor, Northwood Hills)

A method of operating two runways allowing for a mix of
both take-offs and landings on each.

Mixed Mode

A development that combines a mix of uses either on a
site or in individual buildings, such as flats or offices over
shops. It can refer to a small site or individual building

Mixed Use Development

with a mix of uses within the same building, or to a variety
of uses in an area such as a neighbourhood, a town centre
or an urban village.

Used in this Core Strategy to refer collectively to District,
Minor and Local Centres.

Neighbourhood Centres

Protection, management and promotion for the benefit of
wild species and habitats, as well as the human
communities that use and enjoy them. This also covers

Nature Conservation

the creation and re-creation of wildlife habitats and the
techniques that protect genetic diversity and can be used
to include geological conservation.

Open areas, which are not extensive enough to be defined
as Green Belt or Metropolitan Open Land, but act as
pockets of greenery of local significance, contribute to the

Other Open Land of
Townscape Importance

local character, and are valued by residents as open
spaces in the built up area. These areas include public
and private sports grounds, some school playing fields,
cemeteries, some large private gardens and some
allotments.

All land in London that is predominantly undeveloped
other than by buildings or structures that are ancillary to
the open space use. The definition covers a the broad

Open Space

range of types of open space within London, whether in
public or private ownership and whether public access is
unrestricted, limited or restricted.

A legally binding agreement between a developer and a
council or undertaking by a developer to undertake works
or to meet costs in connection with their development to
enable it to become acceptable.

PlanningObligations/ Section
106 Agreements

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010166

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 174



MeaningTerm

Statements of Government planning policy covering a
range of issues. They are being replaced by Planning
Policy Statements.

Planning Policy Guidance
note (PPG)

Statements of national (England only) policy and principles
on aspects of the town planning framework. They are
legally binding and may be treated as material

Planning Policy Statement
(PPS)

considerations in the determination of planning
applications. They were introduced under the provisions
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and
are gradually replacing PPGs.

Strategic Industrial Location normally suitable for general
industrial, light industrial and warehousing uses.

Preferred Industrial Location
(PIL)

Prior to June 2008, part of the production stage for the
preparation of DPDs. This has effectively been replaced
with Regulation 25 of the amended Town and Country
Planning (Local development) (England) Regulations.

Preferred Options

Previously-developed land is that which is or was occupied
by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the
developed land and any associated fixed surface
infrastructure.

Previously Developed Land

An Ordnance Survey based map showing the location
and extents of policies, site allocations and constraints in
Development Plan Documents, updated as necessary to
reflect any changes in such documents.

Proposals Map

All open spaces of public value, including not just land,
but also areas of water such as rivers and canals which
offer important opportunities for sport and recreation and

Public Open Space

can also act as a visual amenity. The definition covers a
broad range of types of open spaces within the borough,
whether in public or private ownership and whether public
access is unrestricted, limited or restricted.

That part of the built environment to which the public have
free access, including streets, squares, parks, etc. Public
realm issues embrace the social interaction and use of
spaces as well as their servicing and management.

Public Realm

A measure of the relative accessibility of buildings and
uses by public transport. The higher the PTAL score, the
better the accessibility.

Public Transport
Accessibility Levels (PTAL)

London Borough of Hillingdon

167Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 175



MeaningTerm

A classification notified under theWildlife and Countryside
Act (1981 as amended). All the London sites of biodiversity
interest are included within sites of Metropolitan
Importance for Nature Conservation.

SSSI (Site of Special
Scientific Interest)

A large area of over 400 hectares primarily providing for
informal recreation with some non-intensive active
recreational uses for households within 3.2 to 8km of the
park

Regional Park

Energy generated from sources that are non-finite or can
be replenished, e.g. solar power, wind energy, power
generated from waste, biomass etc.

Renewable
Energy/Renewables

A Development Plan Document that sets out detailed
proposals for the development of land in the area, with
specific or mixed uses, locations and extents clearly
shown.

Site Allocations DPD

Required by European and UK law, SEA is a way of
systematically identifying and evaluating the impacts that
a plan is likely to have on the environment. The aim is to

Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA)

provide information, in the form of an Environmental
Report, that can be used to enable decision makers to
take account of the environment and minimise the risk of
the plan causing significant environmental damage.
Government guidance advises that where a plan requires
both strategic environmental assessment and
sustainability appraisal, that the former process should
be integrated into the latter one.

The Environment Agency produce maps to show which
areas of the country are most likely to be affected by
flooding. The maps show three different zones covering

Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment

the whole of England and referring to the probability of
river and sea flooding, ignoring the presence of flood
defences. The zones illustrate: the area that could be
affected by flooding from a river by a flood that has a 1%
(1 in 100) or greater chance of happening each year (Zone
3, divided into: 3a: High probability; and 3b: Functional
floodplain), areas that are likely to be affected by a major
flood, with up to a 0.1% (1 in 1000) chance of occurring
each year (Zone 2: Medium probability), and all other
areas (Zone 1: Low probability) (see PPS25: Development
and Flood Risk for further information).

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010168

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 176



MeaningTerm

The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) for
Hillingdon has been based on these maps, but has also
taken into account other types of flooding to produce more
detailed flood risk maps that can be used to help guide
land use allocations within the borough.

Regionally important industrial areas designated through
the London Plan. These should be promoted, managed
and, where appropriate, protected as London’s main

Strategic Industrial Location

reservoirs of industrial capacity. SILs are divided into
Preferred Industrial Locations (PIL) and Industrial
Business Parks (IBP).

Included in the Local Development Framework, SPDs
may cover a range of issues, both topic and site specific,
which may expand policy or provide further detail to
policies in a Development Plan Document.

Supplementary Planning
Guidance/Documents
(SPG/SPD)

The Planning andCompulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
Development Plan Documents to be prepared with a view
to contributing to the achievement of sustainable

Sustainability Appraisal

development. The purpose of Sustainability Appraisal is
to appraise the social, environmental and economic effects
of the strategies and policies in a Development Plan
Document from the outset of the preparation process.
This will ensure that decisions are made that accord with
sustainable development.

Sustainable communities are places where people want
to live and work, now and in the future. They meet the
diverse needs of existing and future residents, are

Sustainable Communities

sensitive to their environment, and contribute to a high
quality of life. They are safe and inclusive, well planned,
built and run, and offer equality of opportunity and good
services for all.

Local authorities are required by the Local Government
Act 2000 to prepare these, with aim of improving the
social, environmental and economic well being of their

Sustainable Community
Strategy

areas. Through the Sustainable Community Strategy,
authorities are expected to co-ordinate the actions of local
public, private, voluntary and community sectors.

This covers development that meets the needs of the
present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

Sustainable Development

London Borough of Hillingdon

169Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010

A
ppendix

4
G
lossary

Page 177



MeaningTerm

Sustainable transport is used to describe all forms of
transport which minimise emissions of carbon dioxide and
pollutants. It can refer to public transport, car sharing,
walking and cycling as well as technology such as electric
and hybrid cars and biodiesel.

Sustainable Transport

An alternative approach from the traditional ways of
managing runoff from buildings and hardstanding. They
can reduce the total amount, flow and rate of surface
water that runs directly to rivers through stormwater
systems.

Sustainable Urban Drainage
Systems (SUDS)

The general appearance of a built-up area, for example
a street a town.

Townscape

Plans previously produced by each council, which
contained policies and proposals for the development and
use of land in their areas.

Unitary Development Plan
(UDP)

London Borough of Hillingdon

Core Strategy Consultation Draft June 2010170

A
pp
en
di
x
4
G
lo
ss
ar
y

Page 178



Produced by the London Borough of Hillingdon May 2010
10474

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Quarterly Performance Information Report 
 
Contact Officers:  Yaser Ghauri and Steve Buckingham 
 
Telephone:  01895 277234 
 
Reason for item 
 
The Terms of Reference for Policy Overview Committees include: 
 

“To monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit (including 
the management of finances and risk).” 

 
The Quarterly Performance Information Report provides POC with an overview of the 
performance in both the Environment and Consumer Protection Group and the Planning 
and Community Services Group for 2009/10.   
 
NB from June 2010 these 2 groups have merged to form the new Planning, 
Environment and Community Services Group.  Future reports will be combined to 
reflect this. This report reflects the reporting structure in place at the end of 
2009/10. 
 
Options open to the Committee 
 

1. Consider, question officers and comment on the reports, as appropriate. 
2. Agree to raise any concerns with the relevant Cabinet member  
3. Or note the content of the reports. 

 
Information 
 
The Quarterly Performance Information Report provides a review of the actions taken to 
meet the Council Plan targets, the Local Area Agreement targets (both of which are 
outcome driven), performance indicators (local and national) that the groups use to 
manage and monitor their performance (and are available quarterly). 
 
Backing Documents 
 
• Year end Performance Review for both Planning and Community Services Group 

and Environment and Consumer Protection Group. 
 
Suggested Overview Activity. 
 

1. The Committee to question Officers about their groups’ performance as set out in 
the QPRs. 

2. Make recommendations to Cabinet or Cabinet Member as appropriate 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 181



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Section A – Serving our community & customers  
 
FORMER ENVIRONMENT AND CONSUMER PROTECTION GROUP 
 
CUSTOMER CARE STANDARDS 
 
a. NI 14 – “Avoidable contact” 
 
As part of 3 sets of NI14 measurements actions have been put in place to reduce 
“avoidable contacts” for some areas where residents get in touch with the Group direct, 
as opposed to via the Contact Centre.  This has led to reduced avoidable contacts for 
the Consumer Protection teams where items such as misdirected calls were identified 
as a problem.  We have also worked with the Contact Centre to substantially reduce the 
number of callers requesting recycling bags (e.g. we now stock these for resident 
collection in all council outlets) 
 
b.     Telephones 
 
The Group answered 91% of calls within 3 rings (target is 90%).  500,694 calls out of a 
total of 548,392. 
 
c.     Service Requests 
 
Approximately 85,000 received by our Customer Contact Centre – this has been 
reducing year on year and represents a 49% reduction on requests received in 2005/06 
when the group was established. 
 
d. Members Enquiries 

 
We handled 2754 enquiries during the year, 2724 of which were answered within the 10 
day target (98.9%).  This compares to 96.5% in 2008/09 based on roughly similar 
figures.  We are now also distributing and monitoring “Freedom of Information Act” 
enquiries and responses.  
 
e. Complaints 
 
ECP Group dealt with 244 complaints during the year and these comprised –  
48 against council policy 
21 against failure to perform 
62 against officer conduct 
110 against poor service  
3 against racial incidents – complaints alleging a racist motivation for an incident.   
 
Of these –  
223 were resolved at Stage 1 (Service Head) 
17 at Stage 2 (Group Director) 
3 at Stage 3 (Chief Executive) 
1 at Stage 4 (Ombudsman).   
For Stage 1 91% were resolved within target, Stage 2 = 82%, Stage 3 and 4 both 
equalled 100%. 

Page 182



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

The total of complaints has been reducing year on year since the group was formed.  In 
2004/05 there were approximately 825 complaints.  Much work has been carried out 
over the past couple of years, e.g. via NVQ training in a number of teams such as 
Waste, Green Spaces and Passenger Services, aimed at improving customer service. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN 
 
There were 8 main tasks for ECP in the Council Plan, one of which was showing 
as amber and the rest were completed, updates are as follows –  
 
RECYCLING INITIATIVES –  
Achieved target of 40% with textile recycling being trialled and estate based recycling 
being expanded.  We have also received planning permission for the refurbishment of 
the New Years Green Lane Civic Amenity site. 
 
IMPROVE THE QUALITY OF OUR ROADS AND OPEN SPACES AND ALSO THE 
TOWN CENTRES –  
Highways improvement works have been carried out.  Works to Uxbridge and 
Northwood Town Centres have been completed and Phase 1 of the works to Yiewsley 
and West Drayton are well advanced, with a much larger Phase 2 to follow in 2010/11. 
Due to the severe winter weather a programme of highways potholes permanent repairs 
was carried out.  Phase 1 was undertaken in the final quarter of 2009/10 (£1.141m).  
Phase 2 is being undertaken in the first quarter of 2010/11 (£1.337m). 
 
LAUNCH A NEW LOCALITY INITIATIVE –  
5 “Streets Ahead Weeks of Action” were completed successfully and these covered the 
whole borough.  They involved extensive works with partners and other council teams 
and resulted in substantial resident engagement.  In addition to this we have also 
launched the new Junior Environmental Team Scheme (JETs) – with 15 schools signed 
up to go for EcoBronze awards.  Almost 5000 Street Champions remain a key part of 
our strategy to engage with residents. 
 
STREET LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS –  
Repairs turnaround times have improved (see section on local performance indicators 
late in the report) and new schemes totalling £300k completed. 
 
ROAD SAFETY PROGRAMME AND TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENTS 
Our road safety team have carried out a very substantial training programme which has 
benefitted amongst others school children (with almost 3000 in the traffic club, cycle 
users and vulnerable pedestrians. Our Junior Road Safety Officer Scheme now covers 
39 schools. In addition 12 new Pedestrian Crossings have been installed across the 
borough (exceeding our target of 10). 
 
LOCAL ROAD SAFETY SCHEMES 
All available funds were spent installing schemes suggested by residents. 
 
 
 

Page 183



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

REDUCE TRAFFIC CONGESTION AND IMPROVE CCTV SERVICES 
A number of traffic congestion schemes were completed and new ones are being 
worked up.  A new CCTV draft strategy was agreed and is being implemented by the 
CCTV Steering Group. 
 
INITIATIVES TO TACKLE CLIMATE CHANGE (nb – AMBER ITEM – some slippage) 
Arrangements are well advanced for the Electric Vehicle Trial working with Ford Motors.   
We have also been sending household waste to the Grundon’s incineration site in 
Colnbrook (although problems at the plant beyond our control mean that the initial target 
of 25,000 tonnes has been missed as the plant was out of action for prolonged periods 
of time). 

 
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY (SCS) 
 
The Group played a lead role in the “Cleaner and Greener Borough” theme group as 
well as contributing to some of the other theme groups.  A number of items overlap with 
the Council Plan items above.  Others that were unique to the SCS included: 
 
Continue to improve street and highway cleaning. 
Our NI 195 (ENCAMS Survey) scores continue to show improvements, reflecting work 
carried out to address perceived areas of weakness e.g. more solo sweepers and 
machinery.  On 93% of our roads we have now aligned street sweeping days with 
refuse collection rounds to try and prevent unnecessary littering. 
 
Tackle graffiti, fly tips and fly posts in public places. 
Graffiti continues to be tackled within 2 working days, offensive and racist graffiti within 
1 working day.  Our procedures for dealing with flyposting are scored as “effective” 
under National Indicator guidelines – improving on last years’ performance. 
 
Street scene and highways enforcement, including zero tolerance of litter. 
This has been a record year for enforcement actions. 
 
2009/10 saw a substantial rise in the Fixed Penalty Notices issued by Street Scene 
Enforcement Officers for environmental crime offences. 90 Fixed Penalty Notices were 
served in 09/10 compared with 48 in the previous 12 months, an increase of 53%. In the 
same period prosecutions taken for fly tipping offences in monitored ‘hot spots’ fell by  
67%, this may be due to the high levels of prosecutions taken in previous years and 
Hillingdon being seen as a pro-active Borough against environmental crime. 
 
Engage Brunel in developing a project of who to engage with young people in 
regards to environment issues. 
Completed - Brunel were involved in our successful borough wide litter campaign which 
was completed in 12/09. 
 
Support campaigns across the borough e.g. World Environment Day. 
Several campaigns were completed, in particular in Green Spaces with participation in 
Breathing Spaces, Green Balloon and Tree O’clock amongst others. 
Strengthen partner organisations recycling policies, and roll out into Business 
Community. 

Page 184



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Work has begun on discussions with Stockley Park and businesses in Hayes to improve 
recycling facilities and uptake. 
 
Implement the Green Spaces strategy. 

• Parks improvements works - to include use of Chrysalis funding. 
• Seek additional green flags plus reaccreditation of existing holders. COMPLETE 

– Now 14, achieving our LAA stretch target and attracting £725k in reward grant. 
• Biodiversity and action plans in place where appropriate (NI 197).  COMPLETE 

target exceeded by 4 
• Encourage more events in green spaces. (see campaigns above) 
• Use of green spaces for recreation, conservation and allotments/food growth.  
• Improvements to war memorials – all renovation works complete bar Polish War 

Memorial (to be carried out in 2010/11) and a new website established listing 
information about all our war memorials. 

 
Installation of bus and cycle measures. 
Completed at various locations borough wide. 
 
Investigate the possibility of developing Green Business Awards for local 
businesses. 
Carried over into 20010/11 due to problems with general economic conditions. 
 

Page 185



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

FORMER PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP 
 
CUSTOMER CARE STANDARDS 
 
a. NI 14 – “Avoidable contact” 
 
As part of 3 sets of NI14 measurements actions have been put in place to reduce 
“avoidable contacts” for some areas where residents contact the Group direct, as 
opposed to via the Contact Centre.  This has led to reduced avoidable contacts for the 
former P&CS group 
 
b.        Telephones 
 
The Group answered 91% of calls within 3 rings (target is 90%).  275,407 calls out of a 
total of 301,981. 
 
c.  Members Enquiries 

 
We handled 804 enquiries during the year, 803 of which were answered within the 10 
day target (99.9%).  This compares to 100% in 2008/09 based on roughly similar 
figures.  We are now also distributing and monitoring “Freedom of Information Act” 
enquiries and responses.  
 

  d.  Complaints 
 
P&CS Group dealt with 37 complaints during the year and these comprised –  
6 against council policy 
3 against failure to perform 
6 against officer conduct 
22 against poor service  
 
Of these –  
23 were resolved at Stage 1 (Service Head) 
7 at Stage 2 (Group Director) 
7 at Stage 3 (Chief Executive) 
 
For Stage 1 95% were resolved within target, Stage 2 = 100%, Stage 3 equalled 100%. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN 
 
There were 34 main tasks for P&CS in the Council Plan, all were on track at the 
end of the financial year. The good news items are as follows –  
 

Continue to increase the numbers of local residents who feel secure - 
improving the safety and well being of older people and vulnerable people and 
their feeling of security.  
Completed. 646 burglar alarms have been fitted to homes of residents aged 65+. 
Age Concern are in process of replacing some alarms that have proved to be faulty 

Page 186



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

(replaced free of charge as still under warranty). 100% of burglar alarm recipients 
have received home and personal security information packs that include doorstep 
security advice, hints and tips. 100% of Serious Domestic Violence Crime sessions 
attended and monitored by Community Safety Team. 2 multi agency domestic 
violence training sessions delivered in Q4. 4 domestic violence advice sessions 
presented to mental health patients at Hillingdon Hospital in Q4. 
 
We will continue to refurbish the borough's libraries 
Ickenham library was formally opened 26th January 2010, the event was attended 
by The Leader, Chief Executive, Lead member for Libraries, Arts and Culture and 
the Director for Planning and Community service, among other members of the 
Cabinet.  
 
Extend opportunities for older people to participate in leisure, recreation and 
cultural activities 
Recruitment process with Age Concern complete. Active Ageing Coordinator 
appointed commencing January 2010. Nordic walking session commenced in 
February and over 50 people expressed an interest in the course. 
 
Enable our communities to engage with the arts through the provision of a 
comprehensive programme of events and services 
Successfully programmed and delivered Hayes Carnival which attracted 12,000 
people along with Medfest and Bigfest At the end of the financial year the arts 
service recorded 81,072 attendants for the events organised by the LBH Arts and 
Culture Team. 
 
Complete work on the new Hillingdon Sport & Leisure Centre and Botwell 
Green Leisure Centre and Library in Hayes 
Botwell Green Leisure Centre facility was available for use, arrangements made to 
transfer bookings from the sports hall at Hayes Stadium to the centre. The Centre 
and Library was formally opened 08th July 2010 by the Leader and Mayor of 
Hillingdon. The Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex was opened to residents on 
22 Feb 2010, official opening with Boris Johnson - Mayor of London completed 23 
March 2010 and open to non-residents from 24 March 2010. 
 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY (SCS) 
 
The Group played a lead role in the “Strong and Active”  and the  “Safer Hillingdon 
Partnership”  theme group plan as well as contributing to a number of the other theme 
groups.  A number of items overlap with the Council Plan items.  Others that were 
unique to the SCS included: 
 
Safer Hillingdon Partnership 
 
To reduce the harm caused by alcohol and knives 
Alcohol strategy has been signed off. Final agreements being reached on the individual 
tasks in the action plan to be implemented and monitored from 2010/11. We had 
completed 40 investigations against alcohol and 38 against other age restricted goods 
(eg knives, tobacco and fireworks).  

Page 187



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Reduce the number of domestic burglaries. 
Burglary figures reduced from a peak in October 2009. 1,000 burglar alarms during 
09/10 and were fitted to homes of residents aged 65+. 
 
Reduce robbery. 
Further police resources were deployed in robbery hotspot areas to reduce robbery. 
Offences remained low with an average of 2 offences per day. 
 
Strong and Active Partnership 
 
Establish programme of community events that brings local communities 
together. 
The Week of Peace event was successful held and supported by local schools, 
community groups, 150 people joined the peace walk and over 400 spectators attended 
the civic event. One World Week programme of events took place in Feb 2010 which 
involved local schools and community events. 
 
Equip schools to deliver their duty to promote community cohesion and support 
projects that promote community cohesion in schools. 
All secondary schools in the borough participated in a research project stage using an 
online questionnaire with over 3000 student responses. An Inter faith model for schools 
has now been written up to be shared as best practice. 
 

Page 188



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Section B – Achieving value for money 
 
1) FORMER PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP 

% capital projects on track against time, quality & cost 
 
The total spend for 2009/10 was £1,728k, representing 72% of the budget, £2,411k. 
The largest area of variance was the Libraries refurbishment programme and the fit out 
and joinery works for the new Botwell Library, with the enhancements that were made to 
the specification, this work was slipped into April and May 2010 and is now completed. 
All other capital projects in the P&CS programme were ‘on track’ against quality, cost, 
time and business benefits. 

Progress in achievement of MTFF and Value for Money indicator National 
Indicator 179 savings  
 
At the end of 2009/10, P&CS successfully delivered the savings identified in the 
Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) and contributed to the Council’s achievement 
of the Value for Money National Indicator 179 target of 3% savings of 2007/08 baseline 
budgets between 2008-2011 

Monthly budget position (Outturn 2009- 2010) 
 
The 2009/10 outturn position for the PCS group was an underspend of £59k 
(representing 0.46% of the net budget). The main area of variances were Community 
Safety which under spent by £264k, of which the largest element was the £162k for the 
Community Safety Fund. The balance of the Community Safety underspend was due to 
staffing and non-pay items, plus lower than expected year-end recharges for the Police 
Antisocial Behaviour team.  
 
The Group’s main pressures have been around its income streams and these have 
featured in the Arts service, Libraries, Planning & Transport (pre-applications fee 
income) services, as well as the Group Directorate where a number of pressures have 
been managed across the group. 
 
The main planning income streams, of Development Control, Building Control and Land 
Charges were identified as exceptional items in the previous financial year, due to the 
adverse economic conditions in the property market. Pressures from these areas have 
been managed from a corporately held contingency budget which was established as 
part of 2009/10 budget setting. The combined outturn pressure across these areas was 
£1,597k, which was 11% greater than the contingency of £1,435k. The most significant 
pressures were on Development Control and Building Control income. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 189



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

2) FORMER ENVIRONMENT AND CONSUMER PROTECTION   GROUP 

% capital projects on track against time, quality & cost 
 
Capital projects in the council funded programme finished 2009/10 largely on track 
against quality, cost, time and business benefits. All projects were subject to a revised 
capital release process. An overspend on the Highways Improvements programme -
representing additional works carried out due to the impact of the adverse weather 
conditions - was offset by underspends on other programme of works schemes. The 
Breakspear Crematorium project was completed during 2009/10, with some additional 
spend incurred which was funded through a further additional contribution by the 
London Borough of Harrow, and prudential borrowing, which will be recovered through 
the income generated by the service. Actual expenditure on the 2009/10 Transport for 
London (TfL) schemes was 93% of the budget. 

Progress in achievement of MTFF and Value for Money indicator National 
Indicator 179 savings  
 
At the end of 2009/10 E&CP successfully delivered the savings identified in the Medium 
Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) and contributed to the Council’s achievement of the 
Value for Money National Indicator 179 target of 3% savings of 2007/08 baseline 
budgets between 2008-2011. 

Monthly budget position (Outturn 2009/10) 
 
The 2009/10 outturn position for E&CP was an underspend of £17k (representing 
0.05% of the net budget for the Group). Within this figure were adverse variances on 
Off-Street parking income, Street Cleansing, Harlington Road Depot and the Street 
Scene Locality team. These were offset by favourable variations on Waste Disposal, 
Trade Waste income and Green Spaces. The outturn position excludes contingency 
provisions for the Waste Disposal Levy, Waste and Recycling services and Vehicle Fuel 
costs, where the outturns were broadly in line with the budgeted contingency sums. 
 
Budget Planning 2011/12 

 
MTFF Review Process 
 
1. The Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) process for 2011/12 is broadly similar 

to last year’s process. The Business Improvement Delivery (BID) programme will 
play a key a role in identifying efficiencies that will meet the required savings targets.   

 
2. The timetable for 2011/12 is similar to that followed for the 2010/11 budget. MTFF 

sessions will be held with each Group, and will focus on the themes and 
workstreams around which each group will develop a detailed programme of budget 
work.  CMT will track the progress on the delivery of the MTFF strategy on a monthly 
basis through the Business Transformation Board (BTB) meetings. 

 
3. The corporate MTFF timetable is set out below: 
 

Page 190



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

MTFF Timetable 2010/12 
 

Process Timetable 
Initial scoping meeting with Leader March 
Monthly CMT (Business Transformation Board - BTB) 
updates (March 10 to Feb 11) 

Monthly 

Monthly Leader MTFF updates (March 10 to Feb 11)  Monthly 
MTFF Group Review (1) Scoping session June 

MTFF Review (2) – Challenge Session September  
Joint CMT and Cabinet Awayday November 
MTFF Review (3) – Final Sign-off November 
MTFF reported to Cabinet December 
POC review of draft Group Plans and budget proposals January 
Council Tax setting February 

 

Page 191



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

 
Section C – Strengthening planning & performance 
 
FORMER ENVIRONMENT AND CONSUMER PROTECTION GROUP 
 
National and Local Performance Indicators  
 
Our National Indicator (NI) scores continued to show substantial improvements, 
these included: 
 
NI147 and 148 – People killed or seriously injured on our roads – figures are due to 
be published in 9/2010. 
NI191 – Household Waste (kgs. per household) = 660, below target of 720 and low 
figure is good. 
NI192 – Recycling – 40% target achieved. 
NI195 – Cleanliness – scores on litter, detritus, and graffiti have improved on last year.  
This includes the combined litter and detritus scores.  Flyposting has stayed the same 
but the score is very low.  The way we deal with flytipping has improved from “not 
effective” to “effective” (i.e. fewer reported incidents and same amount of enforcement 
actions – compared to 2008/09). 
NI197 – Management of Biodiversity/Conservation sites – up to 48% - exceeding our 
LAA target. 
 
SOME KEY LOCAL INDICATORS: 
 
BV215a – Street light repairs – 1.21 days, improvement on 2008/09 score (1.35 days). 
BV215b – District Network Operator street lighting repairs – 26.97 days – the first 
time they have achieved their under 30 day target (08/09 =  45.3 days).  Due to close 
working with our Street Lighting Team. 
BV216a – Inspection of potentially contaminated sites – reduced by 48 to 334 
outstanding sites – achieving the target for the year. 
BV 218a – Inspecting reported abandoned vehicles - 99.7% achieved in target 
BV218b – removing abandoned vehicles within 24 hours – 100% achieved – 44 in 
total. 
Checklists for Enforcement Best Practice by EPU and Trading Standards – both 
achieved 100% 
Emergency road repairs completed within 24 hours – 3698 reports, 3697 achieved 
within target – virtually 100%. 
 

Page 192



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

FORMER PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP 
 
National and Local Performance Indicators  
 
Our National Indicator (NI) scores continued to show substantial improvements, 
these included: 
 
KEY NATIONAL INDICATORS 
 
NI 008 - Adult participation in sport  –18.9% participation, compared to 20.7% from 
08/09, the 1.8% difference is statistically insignificant 
NI 011 - Engagement in the arts – 44.7% from 41.2% in 08/09, a 3.5% increase. 
NI 015 - Number of serious violent crimes per 100,000 population –1.78 per 
100,000 population (Target  1.24). 
NI 016 - Number of serious acquisitive crime per 100,000 population – 26.53 per 
100,000 population (Target 27.43) 
NI 020 - Assault with injury crime rate – 8.19 (Target 8.99) 
NI 049(a) - Number of primary fires and related fatalities and no-fatal casualties, 
excluding precautionary checks - total number of primary fires. – 185.75 per 
100,000 population a decrease on 08/09 208.8 per 100,000 population.  
NI 049(b) - Number of primary fires and related fatalities and no-fatal casualties, 
excluding precautionary checks - number of non-fatal causalities in primary fires 
– 12.2 per 100,000 population, decrease on 08/09 16.35 per 100,000 population. 
NI 157a - Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 
'major' Actual 09/10 80.33% (Target 75%) 
NI 157b - Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 
'minor' Actual 09/10 77.29% (Target 74%) 
NI 157c - Processing of planning applications as measured against targets for 
'other' application types Actual 09/10 92.16% (Target 89%) 
NI 189 - Flood and coastal erosion risk management – 100% of agreed actions 
completed, maintaining our performance from 08/09. 
 
SOME KEY LOCAL INDICATORS: 
 
PCS-SP3 - Making new tree preservation orders –12 tree preservation orders 
completed, as 11 were completed in 08/09. 
PCS-SP4 - Local Implementation Plan (LIP) programme delivered of Environment, 
School Travel Plans, Work Travel Plans, Travel Awareness Regeneration and 
Accessibility (%) – 100% maintaining our performance from 08/09 
PCS-CS1 - Success rate of anti social behaviour interventions - number of anti 
social behaviour cases accepted for allocation in the Community Safety Team 
reaching success level 1 or 2. – 76 (Target 70%) 
PCS-LI1 - Number of book issued and renewed in libraries –1,551,666 books issued 
and renewed (Target 1,549,788) 
PCS-AR2 - Attendance at arts events by adults (16+) – 81,072 attendees to arts 
events organised by the Arts Team (Target 70,000) 
 
 
 

Page 193



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

Section D – Building a culture for success 
 
FORMER ENVIRONMENT AND CONSUMER PROTECTION GROUP 
 
As well as the works listed in sections A and C above there were other 
substantial achievements as part of the Group Plan key schemes – a selection of 
these would include –  
 
Traffic – have successfully assisted Planning Officers by meeting their deadlines for 
land search requests. 
Parks – a number of new playgrounds and Chrysalis schemes have been installed. 
Noise enforcement - 70 Noise Abatement Notices (NAO’s) were served by the noise 
team.  16 of these resulted in court cases due to breach of the notice and all of these 
cases were successful.    
Third runway – staff in EPU played a key role in the court case which rejected the 
Government’s case for a third runway. 
Traffic Management – have adopted a proactive approach to minimise impact of works 
on the highways such as traffic counts. 
NRSWA – we have closely monitored the works of Utility Companies on the highways 
to ensure that works are kept to a minimum and that proper reinstatements are carried 
out after completion.  
Street Scene Enforcement Team – carried out a review of street trading legislation 
which led to a Cabinet Report which ensured that Street Trading activity is effectively 
licensed and regulated in a manner that complies with the London Local Authorities Act 
1990 and also in a manner that is fair and equitable to traders and the Council. 
Pest control and stray dogs – reports continue to be dealt with and the new stray dog 
service is operational, 
Airport – New “catch certificates” for fish imports successfully introduced to comply with 
new legislation, new X-Ray equipment has been installed in all the terminals and we 
have continued to guard against infections e.g. Swine Flu entering the country. 
Transport Services – received a much improved audit report.   They have also 
successfully introduced the new Driver Policy and training and enhanced accident 
investigation procedures with daily vehicle checks.  
School Crossing Patrols – maintained their exemplary record of zero accidents on the 
crossings they patrol and also tested the new lollipop cameras to prevent dangerous 
driving at crossings. 
Civil Protection Team – introduced the newly agreed Civil Protection Policy and dealt 
with a number of major incidents including the Swine Flu pandemic, the response to the 
severe weather conditions and disruption caused by the ash cloud. 
CCTV – introduced a number of new camera schemes, continued close working with 
the Police and Street Scene Enforcement Team (for flytipping).  They also introduced a 
newly agreed CCTV Strategy. 
Support Teams – our Support Teams continued to provide essential back up for the 
front line teams and have helped gain the Group a reputation for timely effective and 
accurate services and reporting, 
 
 
 
 

Page 194



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS                                 
   

FORMER PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES GROUP 
 
All of the tasks in the group plan that link to the council priority of ‘building a culture for 
success’, are showing completed.  These include –  
 

• Encourage creativity and innovation 
• Expand Cultural and Sport’s activities 
• Improve access to services and employment for the elderly, disabled and 

minority groups. 
• Invest in our staff through training and development 
• Listen & take account of our customers and users 
• Modernise council processes 
• Plan and prioritise effectively 
• Retain and recruit high performing people 

 
 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



RESPOC – PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 

 

REVIEWS IN 2010/11:   
What problems are posed to Hillingdon, and beyond, by the legal high 
Khat and what can we do to tackle them? 
 
 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: Natasha Dogra 

Telephone: 01895 277488 
REASON FOR ITEM 
To approve the scoping report for the Committee’s 2010/11review. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
1. To approve the scoping report on what problems are posed to Hillingdon, and 

beyond, by the legal high Khat and what can we do to tackle them. 
 
2. To request further amendments to the report to best reflect the Committee’s 

intentions during the review. 
 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1. The Committee is responsible for undertaking the ‘policy overview’ role in 

relation to Residents and Environmental Services. This role is outlined at the 
start of the agenda.  
 

2. Previous experience from both Hillingdon and other Councils indicates that the 
Committee can have the greatest impact by focusing on a particular topic at one 
or several meetings. 

 
3. Following discussion at the Committee’s meeting on 8thJune 2009, Members 

decided to review the problems caused by Khat leading to recommendations to 
help Hillingdon deal with the problems associated with the legal drug. 
 

 
SUGGESTED SCRUTINY ACTIVITY  
 
1. To agree the scoping report for the review 
 
2. To agree the terms of reference for the review 
 
3. To agree the list of witnesses to be invited 
 
4. To agree the time-frame for completion of the review 
 
5. To agree a potential aim for the review – what the Committee hope to achieve 
 
6. To identify issues that the Committee may wish to investigate further as part of 

the review.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



   

 
 

 

London Borough of Hillingdon 
 

RESIDENTS’ AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 

 
2010/11 

 
REVIEW SCOPING REPORT 

 
What problems are posed to Hillingdon, and beyond, by the 

legal high Khat and what can we do to tackle them? 
 
 
Aim of review 
 
A review into the problems caused by Khat leading to recommendations to 
help Hillingdon deal with the problems associated with the legal drug. 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1. To learn about the production of Khat: where the drug is grown, who grows 

it and how much it costs to produce it; 
 
2. To examine the importation of Khat: how the UK Border Agency deal with 

Khat dealers at Heathrow Airport; 
 
3. To analyse the distribution patterns in the borough: where is the drug sold 

and the cost; 
 
4. To examine the usage of Khat: the profile of the average user, social 

effects, health side effects; 
 
5. To investigate the link, if any, between Khat use and crime; 
 
6. To analyse whether the use of Khat is spreading in the UK and what can 

be done to discourage this in the future: would it be possible to grow the 
drug in the UK and could this lead to expansion of use not only within 
communities renowned for consuming this drug now but more wide-spread 
usage; 

 
7. To investigate how the London Borough of Hillingdon could help tackle the 

problem of Khat in the future; 
 
8. To understand the legislation behind the control of drugs and determine 

whether making Khat a controlled drug under the Misuse of Drugs Act help 
or hinder efforts to deal with Khat related harms. 

 
9. To report to Cabinet recommendations based upon comprehensive 

evidence. 
 

Page 199



   

 
 

 

10. To identify ways in which the London Borough of Hillingdon can raise 
awareness of the problem.  

 
Reasons for the review 
 
Members believe it would be timely to discuss Khat, with the recent closure of 
“Khat Houses” in areas in the South of the borough. Khat is becoming a major 
problem within some communities and Members were aware of some 
women’s associations located within the borough who were facing difficulties 
at home due to problems related to Khat usage.  
 
The drug had been associated solely with the Somalian community; however 
the recent spread of use to various communities has made the issue of Khat 
very prominent. With the age range of users lowering in recent years the 
Committee believe this review must take place imminently. This will enable 
the London Borough of Hillingdon to thoroughly analyse the current situation 
and what can be done to tackle the problem while working together with 
external agencies and residents of Hillingdon.  
 
The issues surrounding Khat have recently been highlighted in the media, 
with reports on the spreading of use to younger people and different 
ethnicities. The Committee will uncover the problems Khat poses to Hillingdon 
and how the problems can be dealt with before they spread further. For this 
reason, the Committee believe this review to well-timed and of great 
significance to the residents of the London Borough of Hillingdon. 
 
There is a lack of knowledge about the services already available to Khat 
addicts, with Hillingdon PCT funding an outreach service for Khat users which 
has not been well publicised. The Committee believe these services should 
be bought to the attention of residents who are in need of support.  
 
Khat is imported from eastern Africa and its use is associated almost 
exclusively with people of Somali or Ethiopian ethnicity. However, the use of 
the drug is spreading to wider communities and younger people. 
 
Who is this review covering? 
1. People affected by the usage of Khat in Hillingdon, which is mainly in the  
Hayes area 
2. Council services including Community Safety Team and Environmental  
Protection 
3. External partners e.g. Metropolitan Police, Voluntary Sector groups working  
with Somali people in Hayes, NHS Hillingdon Drug and Alcohol Action Team 
4. Relevant decision makers 
5. Scientific and medical experts  
 
Key issues 
 
Methodology 
The Policy and Overview Committee is to receive reports, presentations and 
hear from witnesses, including a site visit.  
 

Page 200



   

 
 

 

 
Relevant Documents 
2005 Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs “Khat: Assessment of Risk to the 
Individual and Communities in the UK” 
 
Potential Witnesses 
Witnesses will either be invited to meetings or will be sent questions by the 
Committee: 
 
Witness Name Organisation 
James Brokenshire Minister for Drugs / Senior Civil Servant 
Joe Onofiro HMRC 
Mark Prunty Department of Health 
Councillors with 
relevant experience 

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Annette Patterson Senior Health Visitor, Hillingdon PCT 
Inspector Kiaran Wood Drugs Unit, New Scotland Yard 
Judge Thomas Joseph Resident Judge, Croydon Crown Court 
Axel Klein Drugscope 
Saeed Abdi Somali Mental Health Project 
Richard Kramer Turning Point 
David Brough Chairman, Hayes Town Partnership 
Roda Agab EACH counselling service Brent - Counselling 

Psychologist 
Lakhvir Randhawa EACH counselling service Harrow 
Mahamoud Ahmed EACH counselling service Brent - Somali Outreach 

Worker 
Ali Saka Hillingdon Action Group for Addiction Management 
Ms Carmel Clancy Principle Lecturer Mental Health & Addictions, 

Middlesex University 
Dr Clare Gerada General Practioner, London, Primary Care Lead for 

Drug Misuse 
Mr Hassan Isse Khat Group Hounslow 
Shilpa Patel Policy and Practice Research Group, Middlesex 

University and author of NACRO (crime reduction 
charity) Khat report 

Kola Makoyawo Hillingdon Action Group for Addiction Management 
Outreach Worker 

Rashid Jama Co-ordinator, Horn of Africa Youth Association 
Ijaz Khan  Centre Manager for the Hayes Islamic Centre 
Mustafa Aden Tageero, service providing access to Health, 

Employment, Education & Training 
Lee McLellan Community Safety Officer, London Borough of 

Hillingdon 
Sergeant Andy Shuker Townfield Safer Neighbourhood Team 
Inspector Mike Smith Metropolitan Police Service 
Kathy Sparks Planning, Environment & Community Services, 

LBH 
Jill Downey Primary Care Trust, Drug and Alcohol Strategic 

Manager 

Page 201



   

 
 

 

Dr Ellis Friedman Director for Public Health, Hillingdon 
Trevor Begg Hillingdon Local Involvement Network 
Viv Pullha UKBA Freight Official 
Joanne Kingham UKBA Freight Official 
Linda Bedford Health Control Officer, Heathrow 
Jill Downey Strategic Commissioner, Drugs and Alcohol, DAAT 
Khat Users Members of the Somali Community who use Khat 
 
Stakeholders and consultation plan 
Partner agencies will be invited to make submissions to the Review.  
Representatives of stakeholders will be invited as witnesses. The review will  
be publicised in Hillingdon People, Hillingdon Council website and in  
Hillingdon newspapers. The media will be invited to meetings, and the review 
will be publicised in the Gazette newspaper. Interest in the review has the  
potential to be picked up by regional and national media, with Sky News  
recently running a story on Khat and the issues it poses to society. 
 
Outcome 
Recommendations to Cabinet and the Council’s partners. 
 
Proposed timeframe & milestones: 
 
Meeting Date Work Programme 
27 July 2010 Committee to agree review scoping report 
22 September 2010 Witness Session 1: Doctors, Medical Researchers & 

Scientists 
7 October 2010 Witness Session 2: Importation Officers, UKBA and 

Airport Control 
16 November 2010 Witness Session 3: Voluntary Sector Organisations 

and Police 
November 2010 Site visit: to shops selling Khat, areas where Khat is 

used and areas notorious for Khat houses. 
14 December 2010 Committee to consider the evidence so far and decide 

on attendees to next witness session 
18 January 2010 Witness Session 4: Users and Social Workers 
15 February 2010 Witness Session 5: Somalian Women and Children 

affected by Khat – meeting to take place at a Somalian 
Women’s Association.  

 Special session for Civil Servant / Minister for drugs, 
should they agree to attend.  

9 March 2010 Committee to discuss possible conclusions and 
recommendations 

12 April 2010 Committee to agree final report 
27 May 2010 Report presented to Cabinet 
 
Background Information 
 
1. Introduction  
1.1 Khat is a herbal product consisting of the leaves and shoots of the shrub 
Catha edulis. It is cultivated in the Horn of Africa and the Arabian Peninsula 
and chewed to obtain a stimulant effect.  

Page 202



   

 
 

 

 
1.2 Khat is not currently controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971. Two 
of the chemical constituents isolated when the plant is chewed, cathinone and 
cathine, are classified as Class C drugs under the Act.  
 
2. History  
 
2.1 In February 2005 the then Minister responsible for Drugs asked the 
Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs (ACMD) to advise the government 
as to the current situation in the UK and the risks associated with Khat use. 
The ACMD is established under the 1971 Misuse of Drugs Act to keep under 
review the drug situation in the United Kingdom and to advise government 
ministers on measures to be taken for preventing the misuse of drugs or for 
dealing with the social problems connected with their misuse.  
 
2.2 The classification of drugs, in Schedule 2 of the 1971 Misuse of Drugs 
Act, is based on the harm they cause:-  
Class A: (most harmful) includes cocaine and heroin.  
Class B: (intermediate category) includes cannabis, amphetamines and 
barbiturates.  
Class C: (least harmful) includes anabolic steroids and benzodiazepines.  
 
2.3 When advising about harm the ACMD takes account of the physical harm 
they may cause, their pleasurable effects, any associated withdrawal 
reactions after chronic use, and the harm that misuse may bring to families 
and society at large.  
 
3. Epidemiology  
 
3.1 Information about the use of Khat in the UK comes from reports into the 
communities from countries that traditionally use Khat. Reports are subject to 
sampling bias due the way interviewees are recruited. The largest 
epidemiological survey of drug misuse in England and Wales, the British 
Crime Survey, does not include Khat as one of its reference drugs.  
 
3.2 Most of the prevalence data comes from the Somali community. Figures 
range from 34% to 67% of the Somali community who identify themselves as 
current users of Khat. The figure of 34% is from the highest power study and 
likely to be the most accurate figure. The wide range is due to the sampling 
techniques employed, males tend to report more use than females, so if the 
group sampled is biased toward men, the prevalence increases.  
 
3.3 There are no published reports in the other individual ethnic communities. 
When ethnic communities are grouped together people reporting current Khat 
use ranges between 37% and 60%.  
 
3.4 Levels of Khat use in traditional Khat chewing countries are comparable if 
not slightly higher, than rates in the UK. In Somalia a large survey found 31% 
of respondents admitting current use. In Ethiopia this was 50%, and in Yemen 
82% of men and 43% of women admitted they currently used Khat.  
 

Page 203



   

 
 

 

3.5 There are no reports of Khat use in the UK outside of the communities 
that traditionally use Khat.  
 
4. Import, export, distribution and use of Khat in the UK  
 
4.1 Approximately 6 tons of Khat arrives in the UK per week, mostly by air 
from Kenya. The bulk of this is in transit for supply to the United States of 
America. The UK is a base for Khat distribution to many countries, including 
the US, where the plant is illegal.  
 
4.2 There is an efficient distribution network to the Khat using communities 
across the UK. Most users buy Khat at the mafresh, a meeting place where 
Khat is bought and chewed. Mafreshi proprietors often sell soft drinks and 
cigarettes alongside Khat. The trade in Khat is a legitimate business and is 
quite distinct from the trade in illegal drugs.  
 
4.3 Mafreshi are subject to health and safety requirements as they are public 
places where a product is sold and consumed, however many are unknown to 
the local authorities. They are of varying standards of cleanliness and safety. 
Alternatively Khat is bought at local shops, in markets or via ‘mobile traders’ 
(people selling Khat from the back of a car or van on the street).  
 
4.4 Men are more likely to use at the mafresh and women are more likely to 
use at home, often alone. There is under-reporting of women’s use of Khat 
probably as a result of the extra stigma they face.  
 
4.5 Khat is used in bundles of approximately 250g of fresh stems and leaves; 
each bundle costs £3-5 (approximately £15/kg). In the United States of 
America, where Khat is illegal, the street price is approximately $400/kg.  
 
4.6 Most people who use Khat, chew it once or twice a week. The average 
chewing session lasts 6 hours and usually 1 or 2 bundles of Khat are 
consumed. A significant minority chew daily and use greater amounts per day.  
 
5. The pharmacology of Khat  
 
5.1 Cathinone and cathine are alkaloid stimulants present in Khat and are 
responsible for its subjective effects. Chewing is an efficient way of extracting 
these chemicals from the plant matter. Khat degrades with time so it must be 
consumed within 36 hours of harvesting.  
 
5.2 Effects from chewing Khat can be felt within 30minutes, but maximal 
plasma concentrations occur after about 2 hours. The time taken for the drugs 
to be eliminated from the blood is approximately 8-20 hours for cathinone and 
25 hours for cathine.  
 
5.3 There is evidence that Khat, like other drugs of misuse, can cause the 
release of the neurochemical dopamine in the brain. Dopamine is thought to 
be responsible for the re-enforcing properties of drugs of abuse. Khat may 
also act on central serotonergic and peripheral adrenergic neurotransmitter 
systems.  

Page 204



   

 
 

 

 
6. Risks to physical health  
 
6.1 There is evidence that chewing Khat is a risk factor for the development of 
oral cancers. In pre-clinical and clinical studies, chewing Khat leads to 
macroscopic and microscopic pre-cancerous changes in the buccal mucosa.  
 
6.2 Khat has significant sympathomimetic properties. Chewing Khat leads to 
an increase in blood pressure and may precipitate myocardial infarction. It is 
difficult to tease out the specific risk factor of Khat for heart disease as most 
users also smoke tobacco during a Khat session.  
 
6.3 There is some evidence that Khat affects the reproductive health of both 
sexes. In women it may be associated with delivery of low birth weight babies 
(as with smoking cigarettes), although the evidence for this is not strong.  
Cathine is excreted in breast milk although the impact of this is unknown.  
 
6.4 In men there is some evidence that using Khat is associated with lower 
sperm motility and sperm count. Some studies report an increase in libido 
when using Khat and others have found decreased libido with chronic use of 
Khat.  
 
6.5 Residual pesticide, dimethoate, has been found on Khat leaves produced 
in Yemen. There is no published data on Khat produced in other countries. 
Chronic dimethoate poisoning can lead to weakness, fatigue, slurred speech 
and lack of co-ordination.  
 
6.6 Khat administered chronically to animals causes an increase in liver 
transaminases and signs of chronic hepatic inflammation. There are no 
studies investigating the effects of Khat on the hepatic system in humans.  
 
7. Risk of addiction and to psychiatric health  
 
7.1 There is evidence that Khat may cause the release of dopamine in the 
brain. Release of this neurotransmitter is thought to be important in the 
development of dependency on drugs of abuse.  
 
7.2 Dependency on a drug is defined as a syndrome of symptoms related to 
the desire to use a drug, the control over drug use, tolerance of drug effects, 
withdrawal symptoms, and harms from drug use and neglect of other activities 
of life.  
 
7.3 There is evidence that some individuals use Khat in a dependent way. 
However, for the majority of users this does not appear to be the case. 
Animals can be made dependent on Khat and they will self-administer the 
drug in a dependent way.  
 
7.4 There are case reports of people developing psychosis after use of Khat. 
Unfortunately, as yet, there are few controlled studies investigating the 
possibility of a causal link between Khat use and psychosis. Evidence points 
to social stress such as the effects of war on the Somali population mixed with 

Page 205



   

 
 

 

misuse of Khat can increase the likelihood of the development of psychotic 
symptoms.  
 
7.5 As yet there is insufficient evidence to make a definitive statement about 
the risks of developing psychosis after using Khat. However, in countries 
where Khat use is widespread there is no corresponding elevation in 
prevalence of psychotic disorders. This suggests that Khat is not a causal 
factor for the development of psychosis.  
 
7.6 In common with other stimulants, users of Khat often report feeling low in 
mood after a Khat using session. However, there is no evidence that Khat use 
is a risk factor for developing depression.  
 
8. Risk to society  
 
8.1 The partners of Khat users often complain that their partners’ Khat use is 
responsible for lack of input into family life, for family arguments, and leads to 
excessive expenditure of the family budget. It is cited as a reason for family 
breakdown by spouses, and there is a fear that men using excessively (as 
heads of the family unit) lead to isolation for their spouses and children. It is 
impossible to say if Khat use is the cause of or the scapegoat for family 
disharmony.  
 
8.2 Khat users appear to have very low levels of other drug or alcohol use. 
There is no evidence that Khat use is a gateway to the use of other stimulant 
drugs, although there is however, high associated tobacco use.  
 
8.3 Khat does not lead to acquisitive crime in the way that is evident with 
crack or heroin use. This may be due to its low cost and its lower re-enforcing 
properties.  
8.4 There is evidence that administering Khat to rats causes an increase in 
aggressive behaviour. There is only anecdotal evidence of the same response 
in humans.  
 
8.5 There are several case reports of individuals using Khat and driving. Khat 
is likely to reduce attention span whilst driving; however co-ordination appears 
to be minimally affected.  
 
8.6 The Khat industry is a legitimate business. There is no indication of 
organised criminals or terrorists being involved in the UK trade, perhaps 
because of its legality. However, since the USA made Khat illegal there is 
some evidence of organised criminals becoming involved in its shipment to 
the USA.  
 
9. In Summary 
  
9.1 Existing evidence suggests that Khat use is widespread in the UK among 
immigrant communities from the Horn of Africa and the Arabian Peninsula. 
There is no evidence of its use by the wider community.  
 

Page 206



   

 
 

 

9.2 Khat is a much less potent stimulant than other commonly used drugs 
such as amphetamine or cocaine. However some individuals use it in a 
dependent manner.  
 
9.3 Khat use is a risk factor for oral cancers and possibly for myocardial 
infarction. Residual pesticides on the leaves of Khat represent a health risk.  
 
9.4 There is some evidence of an association with chronic Khat use and 
development of psychological symptoms. However, as yet there is no proven 
causal association. 
 

Source: Advisory Council on the Misuse of Drugs (ACMD)  
Khat (Qat): Assessment of Risk to the Individual and Communities in the UK 

 

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee     27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 

FORWARD PLAN:  
2010 – 2011    

 

 
               Contact officer: Natasha Dogra  

                      Telephone: 01895 277488 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Committee is required by its terms of reference to consider the Forward Plan and 
comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on key decisions which relate to services 
within its remit (before they are taken by Cabinet or Cabinet Member). 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

• To comment on items going to the Cabinet or Cabinet Members for decision.   
 

• Or to note the items and decide not to comment. 
 

INFORMATION 
 
The Forward Plan 
 
1. The Forward Plan for the following months has been published.  Those items that are 

within this Committee’s remit are shown on the attached version of the Forward Plan. 
The Committee may wish to consider these items and comment to the decision-
maker.  
 

2. Committee Members are requested to send in any questions they have on any items 
in the attached Forward Plan or in the published Cabinet agenda and reports, and to 
request any officers that they wish to be present to give advice.   
 

SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 
 

• To consider whether there are comments or suggestions that the Committee 
wishes to make that will aid Cabinet’s decision-making.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 8

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

No Cabinet scheduled

SI Standard Items taken each 
month by the Cabinet 
Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions 
each month on standard items - details of these 
standard items are listed at the end of the 
Forward Plan. 

Various All DCEO         
Democratic 
Services 

Various Various

475 Major Events Report PROVISIONAL DESCRIPTION: Report from 
Planning, Environment and Community Services 
updating Members on major events planned over 
the coming months, including the Ice Rink and 
Christmas Market and seeking the necessary 
authorisations.

All Cllr Henry 
Higgins

PE&CS        
Alan Dalton

NEW

SI Reports from Policy Overview 
Committees

Major Policy Review recommendations for 
consideration by the Cabinet as and when 
completed.

TBC as 
appropriate

DCEO                   
Democratic 
Services

SI Monthly Council Budget - 
monitoring report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting 
out in detail the council’s revenue and capital 
position.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

F&R            
Paul 
Whaymand 

SI Quarterly Voluntary Sector 
Leases Report - Quarter 1

Regular quarterly report on discounted leases to 
voluntary sector organisations that benefit 
residents and the wider community

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

PE&CS          
Gregory 
Morrison

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

The Cabinet Forward Plan                                                    

AUGUST

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS - AUGUST 2010

CABINET - 23 SEPTEMBER 2010

                                           

P
age 211



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

SI Quarterly Council Plan, 
Performance, Local Area 
Agreement and Achievements 
monitoring - Quarter 1

Regular monitoring report about how the council 
and partner organisations are performing and 
how the council is delivering its priorities as set 
out in the Council Plan. 

All Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot & 
Cllr Douglas 
Mills 

DCEO           
Kevin Byrne / 
Sue Crehan / 
Ian Edwards 

SI Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring of the Sustainable 
Community Strategy - Quarter 
1

Regular quarterly monitoring report of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy about how the 
council and its partners are performing and 
delivering its priorities as set out in the Strategy.

All Cllr Douglas 
Mills

DCEO           
Ian Edwards 

SI Quarterly Planning 
Obligations Monitoring report 
- Quarter 1

Regular monitoring report with information about 
spending on section 106 (developer contribution) 
monies.

All Cllr Keith 
Burrows

PE&CS                 
Jales Tippell / 
Vanessa Scott

Previous 
Cabinet 
Reports

SI Standard Items taken each 
month by the Cabinet 
Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions 
each month on standard items - details of these 
standard items are listed at the end of the 
Forward Plan. 

Various All DCEO         
Democratic 
Services 

Various Various

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS - SEPTEMBER 2010

CABINET - 14 OCTOBER 2010

                                           

P
age 212



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

474 Electronic (Online) Petitions 
to the Council

To inform Cabinet of legislation that becomes 
law with effect from 15 December 2010 requiring 
the Council to have in place an electronic petition 
scheme with the aim of strengthening local 
democracy. Members will be aware that the 
Council has benefited from a well established 
petition procedure for many years. It continues to 
receive high praise from residents who 
participate in it. 

Democratic Services are already prepared for a 
move to e-petitions having previously invested in 
the technology capable of implementing this new 
requirement. Following consultation with the 
Leader and relevant Cabinet Members, this 
report to Cabinet will set out a new Petitions 
Protocol which will form part of the Constitution 
and be recommended to Council on 4 November 
2010.

14-Nov-10 Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot

DCEO          
Nikki Stubbs

Members, ICT 
and internal 
testing of the 
system using 
Council staff

Local 
Democracy, 
Economic 
Development 
and 
Construction 
Act 2009

SI Reports from Policy Overview 
Committees

Major Policy Review recommendations for 
consideration by the Cabinet as and when 
completed.

TBC as 
appropriate

DCEO                   
Democratic 
Services

SI Monthly Council Budget - 
monitoring report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting 
out in detail the council’s revenue and capital 
position.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

F&R            
Paul 
Whaymand 

SI Standard Items taken each 
month by the Cabinet 
Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions 
each month on standard items - details of these 
standard items are listed at the end of the 
Forward Plan. 

Various All DCEO         
Democratic 
Services 

Various Various

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS - OCTOBER 2010

CABINET - 18 NOVEMBER 2010

                                           

P
age 213



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

SI Reports from Policy Overview 
Committees

Major Policy Review recommendations for 
consideration by the Cabinet as and when 
completed.

TBC as 
appropriate

DCEO                   
Democratic 
Services

SI Monthly Council Budget - 
monitoring report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting 
out in detail the council’s revenue and capital 
position.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

F&R            
Paul 
Whaymand 
01895 556074 

SI Standard Items taken each 
month by the Cabinet 
Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions 
each month on standard items - details of these 
standard items are listed at the end of the 
Forward Plan. 

Various All DCEO         
Democratic 
Services 

Various Various

354 The Council's Budget - 
Medium Term Financial 
Forecast 2011/12 - 2014/15

This report will set out the Medium Term 
Financial Forecast (MTFF), which includes the 
draft General Fund reserve budget and capital 
programme for 2011/12 for consultation, along 
with indicative projections for the following three 
years.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

F&R             
Paul 
Whaymand 

Internal only with 
Council 
departments - the 
proposals will 
then be subject to 
public 
consutlation 
through the Policy 
Overview 
Committee in 
accordance with 
the Budget and 
Policy Framework 
rules and 
statutory 
consultation with 
business 
ratepayers

Local 
government 
finance 
settlement 
information on 
DCLG website

NEW

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS - NOVEMBER 2010

CABINET - 16 DECEMBER 2010

                                           

P
age 214



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

355 Financial Support to 
Voluntary Organisations 

The report to Cabinet will make 
recommendations on the level of financial 
support to voluntary organisations for the 
2011/12 financial year.

All Councillor 
Douglas 
Mills

DCEO           
Nigel Cramb 
01895 250394  

NEW

465 Review of Statement of 
Licensing Policy

The Licensing Act 2003 requires the Licensing 
Authority to review its Statement of Licensing 
Policy every three years. Cabinet will be asked to 
recommend to full Council a policy to take effect 
from February 2011 to February 2014.

13-Jan-10 Cllr Sandra 
Jenkins

PE&CS, 
Norman 
Stanley

Wide 
consultation, 
including the 
Licensing 
Committee, 
relevant partners 
and the public

Licensing Act 
2003

SI Reports from Policy Overview 
Committees

Major Policy Review recommendations for 
consideration by the Cabinet as and when 
completed.

TBC as 
appropriate

DCEO                   
Democratic 
Services

SI Monthly Council Budget - 
monitoring report

The Cabinet receives a monthly report setting 
out in detail the council’s revenue and capital 
position.

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

F&R            
Paul 
Whaymand 

SI Quarterly Voluntary Sector 
Leases Report - Quarter 2

Regular quarterly report on discounted leases to 
voluntary sector organisations that benefit 
residents and the wider community

All Cllr 
Jonathan 
Bianco

PE&CS          
Gregory 
Morrison

SI Quarterly Council Plan, 
Performance, Local Area 
Agreement and Achievements 
monitoring - Quarter 2

Regular monitoring report about how the council 
and partner organisations are performing and 
how the council is delivering its priorities as set 
out in the Council Plan. 

All Cllr Ray 
Puddifoot & 
Cllr Douglas 
Mills 

DCEO           
Kevin Byrne / 
Sue Crehan / 
Ian Edwards 

SI Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring of the Sustainable 
Community Strategy - Quarter 
2

Regular quarterly monitoring report of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy about how the 
council and its partners are performing and 
delivering its priorities as set out in the Strategy.

All Cllr Douglas 
Mills

DCEO           
Ian Edwards 

                                           

P
age 215



Ref Report Title Advance information Ward(s) R
ep
o
rt
 t
o
 F
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
ci
l

C
ab
in
et
 

M
em
b
er
(s
) 

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
le

O
ff
ic
er
 

C
o
n
ta
ct

C
o
n
su
lt
at
io
n

B
ac
kg
ro
u
n
d
 

D
o
cu
m
en
ts

N
E
W
 IT
E
M

ASCH&H = Adult Social Care, Health & Housing; DCEO = Deputy Chief Executive's Office; E&CS = Education & Children's Services; F&R = Finance & Resources; PE&CS = Planning, Environment & Community Services

SI Quarterly Planning 
Obligations Monitoring report 
- Quarter 2

Regular monitoring report with information about 
spending on section 106 (developer contribution) 
monies.

All Cllr Keith 
Burrows

PE&CS                 
Jales Tippell / 
Vanessa Scott 

Previous 
Cabinet 
Reports

                                           

P
age 216



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee               27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
   

 
 
RESIDENTS’ AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 
2010-11 
 
                                                                                           Contact Officer: Natasha Dogra 

Telephone: 01895 277488 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
That the Committee consider revisions to the scheduling of existing meetings based upon 
review topics during 2010/11 as set out below: 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 

Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review Discuss – to discuss potential review topics for 
2010/11. 

8 June 2010 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – to consider various scoping reports and 
decide on one or two review topics for 2010/11. 

LDF - Core Strategy: Consultation on Policy 
Framework document. 

Performance and Budget Report 

27 July 2010 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – Witness Session 1 

22 September 2010 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 7 October 2010 

 Review 1 – Witness Session 2 

Agenda Item 9

Page 217



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee               27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
   

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Statement of Licensing Policy -  consultation update by 
Licensing Service Manager 

Annual Safety at Sports Ground Report – Committee 
update. 

Review 1 – witness session 3 

16 November 2010 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – consideration of evidence 

Performance and Budget Report 

14 December 2010 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – witness session 4 

18 January 2011 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – witness session 5 

15 February 2011 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Review 1 – discussion of conclusions and 
recommendations 

9 March 2011 
 

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
12 April 2011 Work Programme – review the annual work programme 

Page 218



 
Residents’ and Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee               27 July 2010 
 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
   

Review 1 – agree final report  

Cabinet Forward Plan – review forthcoming decisions 
and if appropriate, comment to the decision-maker. 

 
 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2010
	5 Consultation on Policy Framework Document: LDF Core Strategy
	A vision for 2026  - core strategy

	6 Performance and Budget Report
	7 Review Discussion: consideration of scoping reports
	Khat Scoping Report

	8 Forward Plan
	Forward Plan - Dec 10

	9 Work Programme 2010

